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Let me just touch on two or three areas where there are differences
between S. 821 and H.R. 6265, because the whole thrust of those
two bills is similar.

There is a title II of our bill which provides due process for
juveniles under Federal jurisdiction. Title II is not contained in
6265 primarily due to jurisdictional reasons, but I hope by working
together we can do something to add title II to the House measure.

The second difference is in title III, where we changed directions
on you, as originally introduced S. 821 was identical with H.R.
6265 in establishing a White House office to coordinate juvenile
delinquency programs. S. 821 now, recognizing the pragmatic prob-
lems of such placement, would establish a program headed by an
Assistant Secretary in HEW. -

Title V which provides for a National Institute of Juvenile Justice
is also not in IR. 6265. This is also a product of jurisdictional
considerations in the House. Congressman Railsback has been a
very strong advocate of a Juvenile Justice Institute. The compre-
hensive approach in S. 821 provides for a National Institute of
Juvenile Justice within HEW. I hope you will give some attention
to that Juvenile Justice Institute idea. It provides a clearinghouse
for information, a resource for training the kind of professional
help we are going to need, and of course it provides for needed
research and evaluation.

I would be pleased to answer a few questions.
M r. HAWKINS. On the differences that you have indicated, I am

in broad agreement with you; we do intend to modify the bill to
provide the changes in the juvenile system but that may be carried
in a companion bill, for jurisdictional reasons.-

On the second point, as to the structure of the agency, I certainly
agree with you, your conclusion that HEW will be a much better
home than was originally proposed.

Then as to title V, the Institute, we have had discussions with
Congressman Railsback and certainly it is our intent to possibly
incorporate the Institute idea into this bill.

So I think we are moving close together and what few differences
do exist will certainly be reconciled during the hearings which we
will hold this week and probably the first part of May.

I will forego any questions because of time.
Mrs. Chisholm.
Mrs. CrSTOLM. I know the distinguished Senator has to leave,

but I would like to ask, in your subcommittee's 10 days of hearings
on this question, what did you find are the relative benefits of
categorical funding as contrasted with the general revenue concept
that everybody is talking about? What is your stand on this ?

Senator BAYH. I think if we are determined to deal with specific
unattended problems such as juvenile delinquency, it must be done
through existing governmental agencies, and to expect this to be
done by revenue sharing is to expect the impossible.

Mrs. CHISTIOLM. Do you advocate establishing some means to
prevent the discriminatory treatment, the expulsion of minority
members going to desegregated schools, as a result of which we
are having an increase of juvenile delinquency in many parts of
this country?
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This is becoming a problem. Minority students who have because
the desegregated schools are being expelled, maybe on the part of
the staff at the school have an inability to comprehend the back-
ground of these children, and they, too, are joining the troops of
the juvenile delinquents.

Senator BAYH. That is something I am very familiar with in my
State and I know you are familiar with this problem. I should point
out that we do have a significant amount of leeway to let each local
communities determine the various ingredients of its program in
S. 821.

In other words, we are not sitting in Washington writing a bill
which says,-"You have to do the following 69 things or you don't
qualify for this program. On the contrary New York or Indiana or
California have broad discretion to decide what to do about de-
linquency under S. 821.

In fact, there is ample opportunity under this bill to provide
additional counseling and services to children who are about to be
expelled and long before they reach that stage.

In fact, one of the best suggestions made to me, at hearings we
held in the field to obtain suggestions concerning this bill concerned
counseling. At one meeting a number of grade school teachers sug-
gested that the guidance counselors should not be placed in junior
and senior high school but rather in the second, third and fourth
grade to find out what can be done to keep the child in school at
that level. Once a child drops out of school he is a prime candidate
for training school and after that for prison.

Mrs. CHIsHoLM. Thank you.
Mr. HAWKINS. Mr. Benitez.
Mr. BENITEZ. In Puerto Rico we have just completed a 5-year

study on juvenile delinquency. One of the basic conclusions was the
enormous responsibility of the school in forcing young children into
delinquency-particularly from the slums. They regard the school
as a last chance of remaining within the social structure, and the
evil resulting from the basic approach of schools to "get rid of the
rotten apples" and "good riddance of troublesome students" was
a decisive factor in cutting off their links with society.

My question is whether is your bill or in your basic approach you
feel sufficient attention is given to the factor of prevention through
social attention prior to the breakout of juvenile delinquency.

Senator BAYN. Yes, sir, I think this bill should be recommended,
and for that reason more than any other.

If there is one word that sums up the goal of S. 821 it is preven-
tion. There are a lot of protestations from HEW that they are
solving all the problems, but if you go out in the field and talk to the
individuals who supposed to be the beneficiaries of these services,
you will find out that most services for delinquents or potential
delinquents are provided after the youth is part of the juvenile
justice system.

H.R. 6265 authorizes substantial funding. It is going to be costly
to prevent delinquency but it is well worth making such an invest-
ment in our youth. If there are ways we can strengthen this aspect
of the bill Mr. Benitez we will be glad to do so.
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Mr. J-IAWKINs. Thank you very much.
Mrs. Popkin, thank you.
Our next witness is Hon. Stanley B. Thomas, Assistant Secretary

for Human Development, Department of HEW, who is responsible
for administering the existing legislation, Public Law 92-381.

Mr. Thomas, it is again a pleasure to have you before the Com-
mittee.

STATEMENT OF HON. STANLEY B. THOMAS, JR., ASSISTANT SECRE.
TARY FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,
EDUCATION, AND WELFARE; ACCOMPANIED BY JOAN HUTCHI.
SON MILLER; JAMES A. HART, COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF
YOUTH DEVELOPMENT; AND ROBERT FOSTER, CHIEF, YOUTH
SERVICE SYSTEMS DIVISION
Mr. TIroMAs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
To mv left is Mrs. Joan Hut-hison Miller; on my right, Commis-

sioner Jim Hart. Office of Youth Development, and Mr. Robert
Foster, head of the Youth Service Systems Division.

Rather than reading my prepared statement, I would like to make
a few comments; then I would be delighted to answer any ques-
tions from you or your colleagues.

[Mr. Thomas' prepared statements follows:]
STATEMENT BY STAN.EY B. THOMAS, JR., ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HUMAN

DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

INTRODUCTION
I am pleased to appear before this Subcommittee to present the views of the

Administration on H.R. 6265. After this brief stateldent, I will be happy to
answer whatever questions the Subcommittee may have, or to supply informa-
tion for the record.

We are in general agreement with the objectives of H.R. 6265. However, we
believe the same objectives are being attained through the ongoing programs of
the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare and other Departments and
will continue to be attained if these programs are extended and modified as
proposed in H.R. 13737, without the establishment of a new juvenile delinquency
action office in the Executive Office of the President, a National Advisory.Council or expansive new grant programs. I will speak to the major provisions
of the bill after a brief general statement about the Department's activities In
the juvenile delinquency field.

The Department, since its establishment, has been serving delinquent youth
and youth in danger of becoming delinquent, directly or indirectly, through
many of its programs. Most of this aid is in formula grants to States and in
project grants to communities and nonprofit organizations, and through tech-
nical assistance related to these grants. The programs most directly concerned
with youth development and delinquency prevention are located In the newly
established Office of Youth Development: National Institute of Mental Health;
the Office of Education; and the Social Rehabilitation Service. These agencies
expended $66,788,492 in the field of juvenile delinquency for FY 1973. In addi-
tion. preliminary computations indicate that under the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 as amended, LEAA has expended more for Juvenile
delinquency and juvenile justice in FY 1973 than the $143,000,000 expended in
FY 1972.

Title II of H.R. 6265 establishes two grant programs-one a formula grant
operated by a single-State agency with local participation under an approved
State plan, the other a project grant program-both of which would relate to
all program aspects of the prevention and treatment of juvenile delinquency,
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Including training. Such programs would duplicate a number of existing ones,
the largest of which is the grant program administered by LEAA which involves
a State Planning Agency and a comprehensive State plan as well as the efforts
of the Office of Youth Development in HEW.

tI.R. 6265 authorizes a total appropriation of $1 billion for the two grants
for fiscal year 1973 through fiscal year 1976. If the present level of actual expen-
ditures by LEAA and HEW in the juvenile delinquency field is maintained for
the same four-year period, the amount would be more than three quarters of a
billion dollars. We, therefore, believe existing appropriations are more than
adequate for both the comprehensive approaches of HEW'§ juvenile delin-
quency programs and for the broader prevention and control support programs
of LEAA.

Title III establishes a National Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention in the Executive Office of the President. This new Office would
have a number of functions including coordination of all Federal juvenile
delinquency programs, as well as those for neglected, abandoned or dependent
youth. This Office would also evaluate problems, review budgets of other
agencies, recommend changes in organization and develop a comprehensive
plan for Federal JD programs. The implementation of this Title would add
another costly organizational layer to a wide variety of Federal programs,
when authorization and mechanisms already exist to acomplish most of these
objectives.

Although we do agree that coordination is necessary, we believe that set-
ting up of a Special Office isolated from the operational agencies is not the
most effective approach. The factors -leading to juvenile delinquency are multi-
dimensional in nature, as are those leading to neglect, abandonment and
dependency of youth. To place the leadership for programs for such a hetero-
geneous group in a Special Office concerned with delinquency would, in effect,
dissipate any impact on the numerous programs in HEW and other Depart-
ments which are far removed from juvenile delinquency. We believe the out-
come will be undesirable and will not accomplish what we believe -ire mutual
goals of the Department and this Subcommittee.
-TitleIV-af H.R. 6265 establishes a National Advisory Council of 21 members

to advise the Director of the National Office of Juvenile Delinquency Preven-
tion. flistory and experience has shown that advisory committees serve a very
limited purpose, are a waste of taxpayers dollars and create expectations
which are never filled.

I.R. 13737 would continue the Interdepartmental Council on Juvenile De-
linquency established in 1971 to coordinate all Federal juvenile delinquency
programs. We believe that directly involving agency heads insures a greater
degree of coordination with a minimum of duplication of effort. Membership
on the Council, as designated by the President, has included the Department
of Justice, HEW, Labor, IHUD, Transportation, Interior, Agriculture, the
Office of Economic Opportunity, the Office of Management and Budget, and
the Special Action Office for Drug Abuse Prevention. In addition, the follow-
ing offices and special agencies have been invited to be ex-officlo members of
the Council: Action, the National Institute of Mental Health, the Office of
Child Development of HEW, the Bureau of Prisons, the Veterans Administra-
tion, the Department of Defense, and the District of Columbia City Council.

Since the Office of Youth Development was established, it has been active
in the work of the Council. There have been three Council meetings since
January and numerous staff meetings, focusing on matters pertaining to coor-
dination find joint funding.

The President designated the Attorney General as Chairman of the Council
who in turn named the Administrator of the Law Enforcement Assistance
Administration as Chairman-Designate. The Secretary named the Assistant
Secretary of OHD as HEW's voting representative to the Council.

Another effective coordinating mechanism is the Federal Regional Council
(one in each HIEW Region), composed of Regional Directors from all of the

Federal, agencies within the Government. Federal Regional Directors, or their
designees, attend Council meetings, and assist the program agencies involved
in juvenile delinquency in working with State, local and other Federal agencies
seeking combined Federal support. In nine of the regions, the Regional Program
Directors for the Office of Youth Development have been designated as the
Secretariat for juvenile delinquency programs, and have been charged with
the responsibility of bringing before the Council matters of interdepartmental
concern in the juvenile delinquency program field.
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For example, Office of Youth Development regional staff in Atlanta had a

major role in developing an Integrated Grant Administration program for the
Atlanta Regional Council. The program provides major HEW and LEAA
funding for the Youth Services System in Louisville, Kentucky. Other Federal
agencies in the Atlanta Regional Council plan to participate.

The New York Federal Regional Council uses the Office of Youth Develop-
ment funded Youth Services System in the Virgin Islands to coordinate youth
development funding and programming in that protectorate.

HEW has also taken a significant organizational step in the direction
of strengthening and coordinating its programs for delinquency prevention
and youth development.

In 1973, the Office of the Asistant Secretary for Human Development (AS/
HD) was established, including among its units the Office of Child Develop-
ment and the Office of Youth Development. The placement of these agencies
directly in the Office of the Secretary will give their programs greater visibility,
facilitate coordination, and most of all impact upon the totality of HEW pro-
grams to insure that such programs give special attention to the problems of
youth within their specific program target groups.

We are pleased with the increased momentum now taking place in the Office
of Youth Development. We believe a greater degree of coordination is possible
with the organizational visibility we now have. We have requested a 50 percent
increase in our budget and will expand our program activities through the
amendments to the Juvenile Delinquency Act Included in H.R. 13737.

The Office of Youth Development is currently funding 98 youth service sys-
tems, 14 of which are in initial planning stages, 48 are just beginning to pro-
vide services; and 36 are in full operation. These youth service systems have
linked together through formal agreements, public agencies having statutory
responsibility for youth (schools, police, court, and welfare) other relevant
public and private agencies, and representatives of the private sector. During
the second quarter of-tils fiscal year, 33 additional contractual agreements
were made with relevant public and private agencies. These contractual agree-
ments resulted in increased funding and increased services. During the same
period, the 98 YSS served 24,296 youth. Two thousand two hundred sixty-four
potential drop-outs have returned to school.

The support furnished by the Office of Youth Development acts as a funding
catalyst to attract permanent community financial support and other resources,
such as revenue sharing. Our long-range goal is to stimulate interest in order
that the youth service projects will continue with reduced or no support from
the Office of Youth Development. The 15 projects that are under intense evalua-
tion have generated three dollars from other resources for every one dollar of
OYD money. By the end of the fiscal year this ratio is expected to reach four
to one.

Through the youth service projects, we have been successful in achieving
such changes as eliminating status offenses from statutes, revising police pro-
cedures with respect to contact or arrest, revising court intake procedures for
filing for a court hearing on status offenders, creating an alternative mode
of handling status offenders to be used as a resource by police, court intake
and courts, eliminating truancy as a Juvenile offense, and providing new de-
cision-making roles for youth within the- youth services system and the com-
munities.

The following are some specific examples of OYD funded activities:
a. The City Wide Action Plan in Syracuse is a collection of ten specific

service programs, each working in its own area of specialization and interest-
but tied together by a single concept: that delinquency prevention begins
with providing youth with responsible, acceptable and socially gratifying roles
in society. One of the ten components, Salt City Playhouse, displays youth
involvement at its finest. It provides meaningful new experiences for kids
in a creative positive way and it involves young people working with adults
in a common effort. Another component, PEACE, is seen as "nipping delin-
quency in the bud" by helping youngsters to end a cycle of school failure that
usually leads to a whole range of antisocial acts. PEACE is a learning center
for children whose special problems have made traditional school meaningless.
One of the principal results of this city-wide project thus far has been a cross
fertilization of planning bodies among the major youth agencies and those
that provide the sources of funding-locally and nationally.



167
B. In May 1972 the South Bend Youth Advocacy Project cosponsored the

litigation of a suit on behalf of all juveniles Incarcerated at the Indiana Boy's
School, a State Institution for delinquent youth. The purpose of the suit was to
challenge certain practices at the Boys' School. The first order eliminated cor-
poral punishment from the Boys' School, required new procedures for solitary
confinement and for the administration of tranquilizing drugs and restricted
cencorship of mail. It also Included a provision stating that juveniles have a
constitutional right to treatment. The appellant court decisions agreeing wtih
the lower court were made January 31, 1974. The lower courts are currently
reviewing the Constitutional Standards for Treatment.

C. R. W. Brown Boys' Club of Philadelphia, another project receiving sup-
port from OYD, was instrumental in the selection of Gilbert Baez as 1973 na-
tional "Boy of the Year" from ten regional winners representing 1,100 boys'
clubs in 650 communities. Baez lives with his father in a home even more
sub-standard than is normally found in the ghetto. Baez wil receive $4,000
toward his college education. The R. W. Brown Boys' Club is changing the
image of North Philadelphia. A feeling has been created that says "You don't
have to belong to a gang. You don't have to get high off drugs." The club is
a place for anyone that just wants to do something.

D. At the request of Mryor Bradley of Los Angeles, we funded an R&D
program to establish a city-wide youth council on February 1, 1974. The youth
council in cooperation with city and county youth serving agencies will plan
a coordinated youth services system in the city.

E. The St. Louis Youth Service System Agency Is developing the admin-
istrative capacity to establish and maintain linkages between public and
private agencies at the Federal, State, and local levels, and is establishing
a demonstration Youth Service Center to assist in coordinating the activities
of participating agencies in a specific urban area. Staff of the YSSA office
maintains responsibility for developing linkages between the existing youth-
serving agencies, utilizing existing resources and expertise to promote re-
sponses to youth needs. The Youth Service Center is designed to serve youth
referred by the police, schools, and youth-serving agencies. lnoth informal coun-
seling and referrals to existing agencies wil be provided. Policy for the Center
is estabilished by the Citizen Steering Committee, composed equally of local
business representatives, community residents, and youth, and overall monitor-
ing and supervision is provided by the YSSA.

F. Sisters of the Good Shepherd Residences, New York-This project is de-
signed to complement and expand the LEAA-funded program operated by the
grantee for delinquent and predelinquent youth at the Family Reception Center
in the Park Slope area of Brooklyn. The project will expand the provision of
preventive services for vulnerable groups of youth and their families; develop
coordinated community delinquency prevention strategies; provide youth de-
velopment services to promote social competence; and draw together com-
munity, civic group, and service program representatives into a unified network
of youth development services.

Our present program is evidence that progress can be made within the present
OHD-OYD organizational structure on each of the functions proposed for the
Action Office without setting up this new bureaucracy. In fact, to establish
such an Office for one selected program-in this case, Juvenile delinquency-is
not defensible in view of the numerous other programs in HEW impacting
on other serious national social problems.

Before closing my statement, I would like to draw the Subcommittee's at-
tention to H.R. 13737, a bill submitted by our Department to extend and modify
the Juvenile Delinquency Prevention Act, which expires June 30, 1974.

H.R. 13787 would amend the Juvenile Delinquency Prevention Act by adding
a new program of research and demonstration grants in the field of youth
development and Juvenile delinquency prevention and treatment

Many questions still remain unanswered in the field of youth development.
How can we reduce youth-adult alienation? How can we reduce premature and
negative labelling practices? What changes in policy, practices and procedures
of youth-serving agencies and organizations are necessary to eliminate barriers
facing youth in finding socially acceptable and gratifying roles? How can we
improve skills for learning and living through work experiences, volunteer
services and participation in the affairs of the community? These are some of
the questions which we hope to answer through our research program.
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In addition to its research component, the new program would authorize the

Secretary to make grants to any State, its political subdivisions or instrumen-
talities, and to any nonprofit private agency, institution, or organization for the
purpose of assisting the demonstration and treatment of problems leading to
juvenile delinquency. Emphasis will be placed upon developing diversion pro-
cedures and innovative programs as alternatives to the Juvenile Justice systems.

The focus of the current Act is on the development of coordinated community-
based youth service systems in the area served. In proposing the new research
and demonstration program, we do not intend to change that focus. Our aim,
rather, is to enable us to enrich community-based programs by encouraging
them to draw upon carefully selected model projects, assisted under the new
authority.

To further this objective, the bill removes the Act's bar against grants to,
agencies which are a part of the juvenile justice system, and substitutes a
provision specifically requiring that the Secretary consult with the Attorney
General for th epurpose of coordinating the development and implementation of'
programs and activities funded under the Act with those related programs and
activities funded under the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968.

The removal of the bar against grants to agencies which are a part of the-
juvenile justice system also permits assistance under Title I of the Act pertain-
ing to the community-based youth service systems to juvenile justice agencies.
The reason for this amendment is that in some States juvenile justice agencies,
have the added responsibility 'of conducting programs intended to divert youth
from the Juvenile justice system, and therefore could profitably serve as locus
for coordinated youth services for prevention and treatment in the grant area.
The need for coordinated youth service systems for treatment purposes is also.
just as great as it is for prevention services.

SUMMARY

HEW will continue its efforts to marshall all of its resources, financial ant
technical, in order to assist States and local communities to increase their own
capacity to deal with the problem of juvenile delinquency. We also pledge our
continuing cooperation with other departments and with the Subcommittee in
this common effort. We firmly believe that the extension of the Juvenile De-
linquency Prevention Act, as amended, coupled with other existing authoriza-
tions, will provide ample resources to do the job without program dulication or-
the establishment of additional organizational entities.

We, therefore, strongly urge the passage of H.R. 13737 as a substitute for
H.R. 6265.

Mr. THOMAS. I particularly welcome this opportunity to speak
before you just after the distinguished Senator from Indiana has
expressed his concern for juvenile delinquency. It can unequivocally
be stated that you and the Senator from Indiana have demonstrated
your concern about juvenile delinquency.

As I have listened to the Senator and the questions asked of him,
I heard such words as diversion, providing alternatives to incar-
ceration, improving our ability to coordinate the delivery of services.
to young men or women who are delinquent, emphasizing the need
for data collection in resolving this matter, and your concern about
the problem of runaways. For a second, I thought that you may
have been discussing the bill we have introduced. These are areas
and approaches in which we are most interested.

The office of youth development has been working with courts and
police departments and others to provide alternatives to incarcera-
tion. We are very concerned with the specific problem of runaway
youth.

We are emphasizing our interest in research and demonstration
activities and improving our capacity to gather information on this
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problem. The problem we face in terms of the discussion on that
issue is strategical. We are convinced the principal problem con-
fronting State and Federal Government is that of the proliferation
of categorical approaches to resolving the problem of juvenile de-
linquency.

What we really need is to provide Governors and mayors with
the tools to more appropriately bring together the resources that
already exist in the community. They have, in fact, not been ad-
dressing themselves to this problem as they should. _

I think you will agree, Mr. Chairman, that in consulting with
maors and Governors, one of the things they say is that it is
difficult for anybody with executive responsibility to resolve the
problem of coordination. We think through the 98 youth service
systems that the Department has funded throughout the country we
have made a very important approach to resolve this issue.

We cannot assume that simply another block grant program is
going to resolve the issues and problems; just the reverse potentially
could happen, as you also know.

The Law Enforcement Administration has been providing large
sums of money for J.D. programs. The sum of approximately $140
million was allocated by LEAA for juvenile delinquency, in addi-
tion to the resources we in HEW also spend. Mr. Chairman, by rea-
son of the various amounts we are spending now and the amounts
being spent by the Law Enforcement Assistance Administration, the
expenditure of almost $1 billion would be achieved under our pres-
ent authorities.

I want to emphasize the point I feel is very important: it is the
problem of the orchestration and organizing of services.

The youth services systems agenda is designed to achieve that,
and that is why we have reintroduced such legislation and hope
you will look at our legislation in terms if its potential impact.

--- That is all I have to say Mr. Chairman.. I would be glad to answer
questions from the committee.

Mr. HAWKINS. Mrs. Chisholm.
Mrs. CHISHOLM. H.R. 13737 amends the Juvenile Delinquency Pre-

vention Act, yet it fails to make any specific request for funding
over the next 3 years. How much will you be requesting over this
period?

Mr. THiOMAS. We asked for a 50-percent increase in our 1975
budget request. In the bill itself, we request such sums as necessary,
so we don't have a specific authorization figure. But our 1975 budget.-
request is for $15.9 million in fiscal 1975.

Through the Office of Education's title I program, we anticipate
in this fiscal year, fiscal 1974, we will expend approximately $32
million specifically in juvenile delinquent programs.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Does the Interdepartmental Council on Juvenile
Delinquency meet the required number of times, six times a year?

Mr. THOMAS. There have been three meetings within the past few
months. I would ask my colleague, Mr. Hart, to address himself to
that.

Mr. HART. The requirement of meeting six times a year will be
met. Up to now, three meetings have been held, on is scheduled for
the near future and two later in the year.
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Mrs. CHISHOLM. Have you been able to bring together any real
coordination within the agency?

Mr. THOMAS. I would be the last person to say we are as effectively
coordinated as we hope to become, but the impact cities program is
a demonstration of the ability of agencies to work together. in that
program we are working to utilize our resources to bring the various
agencies together in a comprehensive system. The Law Enforcement
Assistance Administration has also been very aggressive in that
regard.

If I might add one other point to a point the Senator made, which
is the degree of visibility and the consistent concern which the
top levels of the Department have given to the problem of youth
development and juvenile delinquency. A little over a year ago the
Secretary placed the Office of Youth Development under the Assist--
ant Secretary for Human Development to provide an opportunity
for him and for the top elements of the Department to be more
cognizant of the problems in this area.

Congressman Benitez is concerned as to what the schools are doing.
From the visibility of the program in the Office of the Secretary and
from the program's work with truants, I think is very much the
concern of the Department is well as the committee.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. You place considerable stress on the urgency of
a coordinated approach on the delivery systems, thereby supporting
the Department's support to these structures. As I understand it,
this policy position would provide entire support for administrative
costs and little, if any, for ongoing costs. NVhere would you pick
up the support-for that effort?

Mr. THOMAS. We believe the resources we allocate are resources
given to the State, the general purpose entity or the private agency
responsible for the core of the system. The other supporting re-
sources come from the variety of other sources. Already, our youth
service systems are providing service. For example, there is the
problem of runaways which has been cited. We have programs we
support in this area which may be linked with the social service
departments in a given city and other agencies. So, there are those
instances when they are specifically an administrative apparatus
in bringing other services together.

Mrs. CHSHOiJm. No further questions.
Mr. HAWKINS. Thank you. Mr. Benitez.
Mr. BE.NrrEz. The previous witness indicated there is a growing

trend for the increase of juvenile delinquency and identified quite
dramatically the correlation between juvenile delinquency and sub-
sequent adult delinquency.

Addressing myself to the first part of the statement, your re-
search and your statistics coincide with what the Senator said
earlier, that there is a growing development of juvenile delinquency
throughout the United States.

Mr. THOMAS. As a matter of fact, we share your concern and the
Senator's concern that the problem of juvenile delinquency is a very
major problem in our society. Up until last year and for the past 11
years the rate of delinquency has increased. The statistics we have
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indicate there was a 1 percent decrease in juvenile delinquency in
1972.

Further, in response to your question, I think the Senator was
indicating there is a substantial problem and we believe there is a
problem, although there has been a 1 percent decline.

Mr. BENITEZ. What would you say is the main thrust of your
office in its struggle to cope wiih this problem?

Mr. THOMAS. There are two elements of particular importance to
-:, us: one is the recognition on our part that the tragedy of juvenile

delinquency is exacerbated by the Federal Government's propensity
to proliferate categorical service programs. Our basic thrust is that
we are emphasizing the importance of bringing service providers to-
gether in a comprehensive network. A youngster who has a problem
in school has a family that may also need counseling. The youngster
may have some specific health problems. We think it important
that agencies providing services in these areas are brought into our
network.

There has been a mandate, particularly in some of our major youth
service systems on guaranteeing contractual relations between vari-
oius kinds of providers, such as the education system, the health
services agencies, et cetera. This means the youngster who has a
problem and his family are brought into a, system and referred to
the appropriate provider.

This comprehensive network is an essential ingredient in service
delivery. I have seen too many instances where the Federal Govern-
ment institutes another program, thereby fragmenting the initial
intent.

We are specifically concerned with diverting youngsters from the
criminal justice system. We believe, as you know and as the Senator
commented, the chances of the youngster being rehabilitated after
being placed in a correctional institution are small and their chances
of going back are extremely high.

We are very anxious to divert youngsters from this system. Very
often we have to change institutional practices. So, we go to a
school and say, "Just because a youngster is a truant does not mean
you should send him to a court." Those youngsters who commit
offenses that are not against persons or property should not be
thrown into the juvenile justice system.

Mr. BE NTEZ. Do I understand from your argument that you favor
the creation of this central office in the Department charged pri-
marily with the responsibility of dealing, at the highest possible
l6vel,'with the juvenile problem?

Mr. THTOfAS. *I think we addressed that particular issue last year,
Congressman. The Office of Juvenile Delinquency, which was in the
Social Rehabilitation Service, clearly didn't have the kind of visi-
bility and effectiveness as we thought it should, which is precisely
why it was moved into the Office of the Secretary. -

Indeed, Commissioner Hart and his colleagues are responsible
for overall coordination of all activities associated with juvenile
delinquency in the Department.

Another service provider, for instance, the Office of Education,
is spending in the neighborhood of $82 million in areas designed tok

35-821-74-12
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affect juvenile delinquency. There is always the possibility that a,
a result of the creation of an additionalffice for J.D. major insti
tutional providers will begin to say, "That is no longer our problem
there is a new statutory authority for it; there has been a nev
agency created."

Mr. BENITEZ. Do you think in the present stage of awareness anc
nationwide concern it is more important to have research guidelines
concerning what institution lends the best orientation and thinking
and action on these matters rather than to leave it, as you mentioned
earlier, to the mayors and Governors to handle the situation ?

Mr. THOMAS. The first part of your question was whether we
think there ought to be an aggressive involvement in, for example,
schools in coming to grips with this problem. The answer is un-
equivocally es.

When we have proposals submitted to us, we insist'that the major
service provider, such as the educational system, be part of that
system or an element involved in it. It is the reason we have put
an emphasis on trying to change the process for dealing with truants.

Mr. BE.ETEZ. ho you have research projects concerned with this
problem under way at universities and other educational institutions?

Mr. Ti-OMAS. Yes, this is an area where our communication with
the committee from our vantage point could be very helpful. We
feel a very appropriate Federal role is in the area of research and
demonstration. We think a very reasonable role is to provide in-
formation and data to people who are concerned with what should
be done with these problems.

Mfr. BENITEZ. You have human resources for that.
Mr. TIOM3[s. In the legislation we have submitted, there is pro-

vision for research and demonstration projects on juvenile delin-
quency as well as the problem of runaway youth. I don't have the
exact figure we will be spending; I can submit that to the com-
mittee.

Mr. HAWINS. Mr. Thomas, I think you have indicated there is
approximately $16 million in the budget for the funding of this
progrram in the next fiscal year. Is that the correct amount?

Mr. Tno14 AS. $15.9 million; I am sorry.
Mr. HAWKINS. Currently you are spending approximately what

amount?
Mr. TxioimAs. In 1974 our budget was $10 million.
Mr. HAWKINS. So you are proposing under the legislation which

you have introduced-
Mr. THoMAs. Under the legislation it is such sums, but in ozr

budget for 1975 it is $15.9 million.
Mr. HAWKINS. That is the amount proposed in the bill, an increase

of $5 million.
Mr. TtOMAS. For fiscal 1975 over 1974.
Mr. HAWKINS. So we are talking about all the objectives under

H.R. 13737, and a $5 million increase?
Mr. THOMAS. No, I wouldn't say that, Mr. Chairman. What I

would say is that the actual services provided to address this issue
are provided through a number of authorities, such as the rehabilita-
tion service program, research and development, adult education,
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library services, educational personnel development, Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Administration, and so forth.

All of those programs provided resources directly to the area of
juvenile delinquency. As you also know, the LEAA spent over $140
million.

Mr. HAWKINS. I am very familiar with the various agencies that
may obliquely be involved with the problem. I am simply asking if,
under the proposal you have introduced, you are proposing to spend
an additional amount of $5 million. That is a proposal wich com-
pares with others- whether or not the Senate bill or the bill which

have introduced is passed, I assume all the agencies you have
mentioned will still be providing services. We don't intend to elim-
mate services or agencies to diminish their assistance, but we pro-
pose to focus on a particular problem including the runaway youth
and to give to that focus a certain amount of funding. So we are
comparing that funding in these other proposals with that suggested
by the administration.

Mr. Ti[03As. I think all good men can differ on the way things are
done. I can remember my former boss, Elliot Richardson, saying
if HEW did all the things it was supposed to do for all the people
in need it could, it would require a much greater budget.

So I still am very assertive that a new block grant program, the
development of a new agency, and all these kinds of approaches will
only exacerbate the problem.

Oe thing we do agree on is purpose. I don't think there is any
question on that. The issue I am concerned with i:; a ,inst:') i of
process and strategy. As I say, there is a fundamental difference
in our approach.

What we are trying to do is make a service provider do some of
the things they are not doing.

Mr. I-IAwKiNs. Will you be more specific? In what way are you
going to make those providers do what they have not been doing
for several decades? This subcommittee has been gut in the field. We
have seen delinquent youth and runaway youth.

What are you going to do about 1 million runaway youth, for
example; what specific things are you going to do, other than
conduct a survey? In what way is a survey going to solve this prob-
lem which has existed for years, not only under this administration
but under previous administrations as well?

Mr. TirfMAs. As a matter of fact, the National Institute of Mental
Health will be making about $1 million in grants prior to your
legislation or ours. These grants will be made, in the next month or
so, specifically to those runaway youth houses and others which
currently exist. That is a consequence of our own concern with this
problem and precedes anything we have proposed in this specific
area or anything proposed by the Congress.

Mr. HAWKINS. What is your relationship with that agency?
Mr. TOM AS. Our whole initiative in that area, and perhaps

Commissioner Hart would like to respond to that further, but the
whole area was tinder the action of the Office of Youth Development
where the Secretary commissioned the Office of Youth Development
to put together a group of offices specifically to address the problem
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of runaway youth. They are doing it under the direction of that
office.

Mr. HART. Under the leadership of the Office of Youth Develop-
ment in the Offive of the Secretary, there is an intra-agency com-
mittee on runaways and an intraagency committee on runaways. As
chairman of both these committees, oux office was able to impact
on the criteria developed by NIMH pertaining to potential grantees.
In addition to funding capability, our position in the Office of the
Secretary gives us the ability to influence the decisions of others.

Mr. ItAWKINs. As we have gone out into the field, we have seen
citizens doing a lot more than the Government. In Los. Angeles the
National Council of Jewish Women has gone out and established
these centers. Citizens seem to be doing a lot more than the Govern-
menfhlas gotten around to doing. I don't see anything mentioned
in the proposal except vague references to what other agencies are
doing. What is this specific program going to do to solve the prob-
lem, which is growing larger, not smaller?

Mr. ToMAfs. I would be the first to admit the whole matter of
involvement has been peripheral up to now. In our new legislation
we specifically mention the problem of runaways and in our budget
request we mention the fact we want to. pay particular attention to
the problem.

There are three or four areas where we are going to take specific
action. We will fund programs directly involved with the runaway
youth problem.

Mr. HI.wTN-S. In what amount?
Mr. TIuOMAS. In 1974 approximately $1.3 million.
Mr. HAwKINS. That is not enough or New York City.
Mr. THoMAS. We feel-as a matter of fact, Senator Bayh made

t-he point that he did not think there should be any runaway house
that should receive more than $50,000. If you add up the number

-of runaway houses and-multiply that by $50,000 you won't come up
with very much more.

We wvill increase the level of that support, so it could conceivably
more than double.

Mr. HAWKRNS. We spend $1.5 billion on Cambodians. Now you
are talking about spending $1.3 million a year on runaway youth in
thiq country. It does not make sense.

Mrs. Chisholm.
Mrs. CHIisnTor. Let me put it this way, I am usually quite frank:

The bill that the administration has submitted was somewhat be-
latedly submitted after there was recognition that the Senate was
trying to establish services for runaway youth. In other words, what
I am saying is, there was not a real commitment to come up with
legislation in this direction: it was only after things began to generate
here that the bill was sent up on the Hill and Members started
putting it together.

As you read through this bill and you try-to find out some real
specifics as to what is going to be done about the current runaway
problem in this country, nothing is specific. It asks again for more
surveys, charts, and studies. Then we have a demonstration program.
There is nothing specific which addresses itself to localities across the
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Now if we assume there are already successful operating pro-
grams and we start out with an adequate budget for those programs,
then obviously more money is going to be required than is proposed.

If you go out and say'there are any number of successful pro-
grams and we should continue those programs, then obviously it is
going to take more than $10 to $15 million to do that.

I think that is the rationale behind research and demonstration.
Mr. SMTART. As I indicated to you earlier, most of those com-

mumities are desperate for some help because they know what is
going to happen to their children. So we search around.

Now foundations have been a source in the past but almost ex-
clusively they have gone to research and demonstration.

But once "established they will pull back. There are no funds
available there or from the government. So, when you leave the
community you leave it as you found it. with no funds.

Mrs. DUCKREY. One of the greatest faults is providing tentative
programs that lead-to unfilled promises and the common phrases,
"Werhave been researched to death."

I think we know enough-now to be able to provide a service we
know is necessary for the youth in our Nation. We need to disspell
that feeling of disbelief on the part of human action from com-
munity to community across the Nation that really demonstrates a
noncaring for the worth of the youth of this Nation.

Mr. HAWK Ts. Thank you.
Dr. LaVor.
Dr. LAVOR. Mr. Bricker, how much money do your organizations

receive from this program in HEW now? V
Mr. BRICKEI. I can't speak to the exact amount but I would say

it is very little. The YDDPA is now out of existence. It have been
absorbed bv another agency.

Dr. LAVOR. Doesn't the 'office of Youth Development under the
Assistant Secretary for Human Development gives visibility to
juvenile delinquency programs which have not been there over the
past few years?

Mr. BRICKER. If you are talking about gives visibility backed by
dollars.

Dr. LAOR. I did not say that.
Mr. BRICKER. I just wanted to get it clear. I would say the whole

area of delinquency prevention and juvenile development does not
have the effect it had before.

Dr. L4Von. I am not clear what you mean._
Mr. BRICKER. If you recall, at one time we had the Office of

YDDPA. Youth Development and Delinquency Prevention.
At the present time that is part oft the Office of Youth Develop-

ment under HEW. Who reports to one of several offices of the As-
sistant Secretary.

Dr. LAVOR. When the program was under SRS didn't the District
Administrator of SRS, who in turn reports to the Secretary much
the way it is done today? And wasn't the program much lower in
the bureaucracy under SRSf

Mr. BRICKER. I don't know.
Dr. LAVoR. This point is important because the question of

placement is a matter which will have to be resolved by the com-
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of the State committee on crime, "Senator, how much would it cost
to modernize our penal institutions?" They agreed about 200 million
dollars. He said, "We haven't got 200 million dollars." And they
have still got Attica.

So the LEAA has done a magnificent job. We are very proud of
it. But they just don't have anything like adequate funds to deal
with the numerous problems that they have. Only a small part of
what they have has been available to deal with the youth problem in
this country, the juvenile delinquency problem.

Yet that is one of the mainstreams contributing to the crime in
this country. If you really wanted to stop crime in this country or
reduce it 50 percent you could do it by stopping young people from
becoming perpetrators of crime and stopping people who come out
of the prisons from becoming repeaters in the commission of crime.
But how much money have they got to spend on either one of those
subjects? You are not going to have anhing like enough, whatever
you have. If you had twice as much as what you are askTng you
could only scratch the surface of this problem, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HAWKINS. Mrs. Chisholm.
Mrs. CHIsHOLM. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to say to the Senator perhaps I might disagree

with you. The LEAA in my humble opinion can do much more than
it is presently doing if the LEAA like so many institutions in this
country recognizes that the preservation and the conservation of the
human resources of this Nation are most important. This has to be
the philosophy that this society adopts.

The fact that just the other day I sent a letter to Governor Wilson
to remove a 15-year-old girl from the Bedford Hills Reformatory
for Women in upstate New York is an indication that it is not even
only the money. It is not even not enough resources. We do not have
the commitment. We do not really have the commitment in terms
of recognizing or realizing that the human resources in this country
are the most important resources.

Therefore if we have that commitment the establishment of new
institutes and new commissions and what have you can do the job
if you also put in those institutions and in those prisons and the
rehabilitative positions people that have the correct attitude.

I have gone into a number of juvenile courts in this country over
the past 15 years because I have been very much interested in this
entire area. The complete insensitivity and the complete lack of
understanding and the relationship -between those who are in au-
thoritative positions in our corrective institutions, whether for
juveniles or not, does exist. Money in and of itself is not the answer
to the problem.

I think it has to be an attitude that is exhibited from the top
authorities in this country all the way down that the conservation
and preservation of our human rsources is the most important
resource.

When you mentioned our distinguished Governor of New
York-

Mr. NPMnR. I thoroughly agree with you.
Mrs-CMsHOLM. I would just like to say something. Governor

Rockefeller knows that the fact that we need thousands of dollars
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and don't have enough dollars to do what we need to do in the
area of juvenile homes and what have you. But the fact of the
matter is that Governor Rockefeller, the Governor of New York, is
spending thousands of dollars on a mall which still has not been
totally completed.

So I am saying it is not money alone. It is an attitude and a
commitment and a concern for people.

In light of what I have said to you, do you really feel that
LEAA's existing structure will provide a suitable means for fun-
nelling Federal juvenile delinquency funds to the States?

I remember when LEAA came into existence in two States in
articular they spent over 65 percent of their funds for mace and
bullets and air-conditioned automobiles were brought in for the

police force. Nothing was spent on the training of personnel to
deal with the problems that were running rampant with respect
to the juvenile delinquents in those particular States.

In the light of that kind of record that we have on the books
do you feel that LEAA could be structured to funnel these funds?

Mr. PEPPER. LEAA's main emphasis has not been on juvenile de-
linquency prevention. I don't know exactly what they have done.
I know of grants they have made that have been helpful. As I said,
they don't have enough money to do even a small part of the prob-
lems that are presented by crime in the United States, the various
aspects of it. Little of their expen~lituree, in my opinion or in my
estimation, have been on juvenile delinquency prevention.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. There is a new kind of delinquent that is mov-
ing into society that is becoming a reid statistic. Those are the
dropouts particularly in the southern p art of this country where
we are having the desegregation of school facilities and minority
youngsters are now going into primarily white schools or white
areas. Because of the failure or the inability or lack of understand-
ing on the part of the personnel in those schools to deal with these
newly arrived youngsters who don't understand patterns of be-
havior, don't understand the environment from which these young-
sters come, we now are beginning to find that many of these young-
sters as a result of the desegragation of school facilities are being
pushed out and are becoming juvenile delinquents because there
is nobody or no institution to pick up that concern.

What do we do in a situation like that when you already have in
the public school system persons who are trained and persons who
are educators who are not able to deal with the voiagster?

Mr. PEPPR. I will say to the distinguished n 'rwlnfr that recently
I appeared before thb Miami City Commissinn at the same time
that the chief of police of Miami appeared.

I asked what percentage of the offenders in Miami were 'oung
people under 18 years of age. He gave the usual figtire of about
50 percent.

I said, "How many of those are high school dropouts?"
He said, "About 9 out of 10."
Well, then. the other day when we had the education lid)1 on tle

floor of the House I asked the chairman what money wais available
in that bill for trying to prevent school dropouts in the schools.
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They said that there were three sections that offered some funds
and that section I offered some funds to the schools of the country,
although a grossly inadequate sum.

I wrote the superintendent of public instruction of Dade County
and urged him to start a program to try to take advantage of
Federal money that I thought might be available, start a program
correlating school dropouts with the police authority to see how
many of them went into crime and to try to develop a program in
the schools that would prevent the school dropout.

Yet the amount of money available to assist in doing that is just
negligible under any legislation that we now have. We have to have
a billion dollars a year at least available to help the school and that
would be grossly inadequately.

But the saving of children and the saving of victims of crime
would be immeasurable if we would do it.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Thank you very much.
Mr. PEPPER. Thank you.
Mrs. CHISHOLM. No further questions.
Mr. HAWKINS. Thank you very much, Senator. We certainly appre-

ciate the opportunity to have you address the subcommittee.
Mr. PEPPER. I appreciate the privilege and the honor of being

with you.
Mr. HAWKINS. The next witness is Mr. Charles R. Work, the Deputy

Administrator of the Law Enforcement Assistance Administration.
Mr. Work, we welcome you to the subcommittee.
We do have a prepared statement from you which will be entered

in the record in its entirety at this point.
You may proceed to read from it or to summarize it as you so

desire.
[The statement referred to follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF CHARLES R. WORK, DEPUTY ADMI!I8TRATOR,
LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANcE ADMINISTRATION

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to appear today before your subcommittee to
present the views of the Law Enforcement Assistance Administration on H. R.
6265, and to discuss the role played by LEAA in dealing with the complex
issues surrounding what is termed "Juvenile delinquency."

Want to extend my appreciation to the Committee for convening this public
forum which has allowed attention to be focused on the issues surrounding
juvenile delinquency and the resources needed to effectively combat it.

The reduction of juvenile delinquency is an important part of the overall
effort both to prevent, control and reduce crime, and to improve the nation's
criminal and juvenile justice systems.

Last year, with the enactment of the Crime Control Act of 1978, the Congress
required that LEAA specifically include the problems of juvenile justice as an
area towards which our resources are to be focused. For the first time, each
state participating in the LEAA program is required to have a comprehensive
program for the improvement of Juvenile justice.

One consequence of that demonstration of Congressional concetff is our
inclusion of Juvenile justice and delinquency prevention as one of LEAA's
four top national priorities for program action. We are determined to make
an impact on the problems of juvenile delinquency through the joint efforts of
citizens groups and local, state and federal governments. With attention con-
centrated on the problem, we believe progress can and will be made. LEAA has
recently accelerated its national effort in the area of juvenile delinquency
through three developments First, LEAA early this year established a Juvenile
Justice Division within its Office of National Priority Programs. This makes
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wondering in what ways you intend -to utilize the on-site data
technique in these surveys?

Mr. HOLMES. We use the on-site technique throughout our program
and we couldn't conclude reasonably that a situation was discrimina-
tory, a violation of the law, without an on-site visit and obtain
information that one would through such a visit. The pilot project
we intend to do would be on-site. We have collected a lot of data
from this district already just from correspondence, but we will be
gathering more data.

Mr. STOKES. I have no further questions.
Mrs. CHmIOLM. I have a number of questions. I understand you

are planning to cut back on the extent of the civil rights survey.
Shouldn't you be expanding the survey in light of the sophisticated
forms of discrimination which have been pointed out to us?

Mr. HOLAIES. We are not cutting back. What we have done in the
past is to conduct two types of surveys. One was a survey in the
odd number years of approximately 3,000 school districts. The other
was a large survey in the even number years reaching approximately
8,000 school districts.

What we propose in fall 1974 is not to do the 8,000-school survey
but to do the same universe, 3,000, that we did in the odd year last
year, fall 1973.

Now by conducting that survey, we reach 93 percent of the mi-
nority children in this country under that 3,000 district survey. Thus,
were missing very little in terms of data regarding minority students
by not conducting the 8,000 district survey.

We propose-or I propose-to put the 8,000-school survey on a
4-year basis and the reason I do this is in' the interest of freeing
some moneys so that we can conduct more indepth and sophisticated
types of analysis such as we are attempting to do in connection with
the New York City review.

I feel personally that the conduct of a 3,000 district survey in the
even year like we had last year, that picks up 93 percent of the
minority students in this country, is an advisable thing to do. It is
a matter of priorities. I have talked to Mrs. Edelman about this a
number of times. I think she has some understanding. She does have
questions, as does Mr. Stokes, as to the nature of the questions we
will ask on that 3,000 survey.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Up to this time, the Office of Civil Rights has
not really made the push-out problem a major focus of that office,
however, it is something that has been developing and increasing
in recent years in the process of desegregation.

Now according to your testimony you wit be giving more focus
to this issue. When is your enforcement plan to begin?

Mr. HOLMES. Fiscal 1975.
Mrs. CISnOLM. If you plan is going to commence fiscal 1975,

would you report to this subcommittee eve-y three months as to
what has been happening as to what you b ave been detecting or
finding out after the plan has been implemented.

Mr. HOLMES. I would be glad to report periodically to the sub-
committee. We have not many 3hor th reporting requirements. Mr.
Hall mentioned the Adama v. Rikhaa"8n case. We are almost at the
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point of spending all our time putting reports together, but I would
be glad and would commit myself now to advising the subcommittee
and staff on a regular basis as to progress we are making in this area.

Mrs. C1rsIrnOLAr. My reason for requesting this is because so often
one receives a lot of information-sometimes it is rumor-and people
want us to get the true facts and the substance. We on this committee
are very concerned about pushouts because of the reports we have

" received from across the country. In view of the fact that you will
be making a specific focus and 'collecting data, on pushouts. if you
would share your findings with this committee, it would help us
legislatively.

Mr. 1IormSES. On the data, we usually mail the forms out in late
summer; they are filled out in early September or October and really
not in a computed readable form until January or February, but
we can keep you appraised and as the data is produced, supply you
with the data.

frs. CiiisiioTAr. Does your office have any concrete relationship
with the Justice Department as to legal proceedings?

Mr. HOLAIES. Our relationship with the Justice Department is as
authorized by title VI. After conducting an investigation we can
elect to initiate administrative proceedings under title VI or refer
the matter to the Department of Justice.

We also consult very regularly with the Justice Department.
As to the Lau v. Nichos case, it is in the courts. We have an interest.
in it. We have a very close relationship.

Mrs. CHISTIOL-M. How is it that up to this point the Office of
Civil Rights in HEW has-not brought any specific charges? This
push-out problem has been going on every since the desegrogntion
movement has been in existence. I can't 'understand how nothing
concrete has been done about the problem up to now.

Mr. Jo{LmES. Maybe Dr. Henderson would like to help me explain.
Quite frankly, that was first apparent in desegregating the schools
then in connection with assigning students to classes within those
schools where we have been very actively involved and it also has
been in the area of displaced faculty and the need to negotiate with
districts to correct the imbalance which has resulted in dismissals
of black minority faculties in past years.

It is a matter of priority and we feel now we can address the
push-out program as a priority item but not to the exclusion of the
other areas we feel of equal interest.

Mrs. CirTsuoLMr. Thank you very, very much; you and your panel.
[The following material was submitted by Mr. Holmes :]

CONGRESS OF TIlE UNITED STATES,
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,

MR. PETE HOLMES, Washington, D.C., July 17, 1974.
Director, OfeDe of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Wel-

fare, North Building, Washington, D.C.
DEAR M. HOLMES: Pursuant to the hearing held by the Subcommittee oil

Equal Opportunities on student pushoutm at which you testified. I am qublmlittingto you several questions that I would like answered in order to clarify certain
points you made at that time.
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T am very appreciative of the presentation you wade at the hearing. T espe
cdally am hopeful that the increased efforts of--R-W-dvnIInnt and identify
school districts that are practicing discriminatory exelhisios, and your Sulhse-
quent "full scale Investigations" leading to "satisfactory corrective action or
legal proceedings" will prove effective in preventing further unwarranted dis-
criminatory suspensions and expulsions. We need to keep young people of all
races and ethnic groups in school as long as necess'iry for them to become suc-
cessful participants in American society.

The questions are as follows:
1. Would you please submit for the record the tiames and ilack/white enroll.

nientq of the school districts where 170.000 children previously assigned to
racially Isolated or racially i(lentiflabl, classrooms have been reas'ignied to non-
isolated classes since January, 1973. (Page 3)

2. Please submit for the record a copy of the current OCR Annual Enforcement
Plan. ('age5)

3. Would you give a brief legal analysis of why development of a case cannot be
ma(le with numerical disparities in suspensions a nd expulsions between minority
a(d nonminority pupils? (Page 6)

I. What were the names of the districts in whieh pilot investigation reviews
were done and what findings of fact were made in each district? (Page 7)

5. I am interested that the area of pushouts and student (liseipline become a
re',pilar component of a Title VI or national origin discrimination review. What
steps are being taken to make it so and what is your time schedule for achieving
this objective? (Page 11)

6. For the record would you name the school districts in which OCR has done
the following with respect to pushouts and student discipline: (1) terminated

-federal financial assistance, (2) initiated legal proceedings, (3) required correc-
tive action. (Page 12)

7. Based on the 1973-74 school survey, which refers to suspensions and expul-
sionas for the 1972-73 school year, about what number and what percentage of the
school systems In the 17 Southern and border states have a pusholit or strident
discipline problem? What are the characteristics of these districts? High propor-
tion of black students? Urban? Court order districts?

8. In your- testimony you state that OCR is not avoiding the investigation of
discriminatory discipline problems, however, you speak only of Intentions and
of no concrete steps or specific action. Is manpower being increased for on-site
monitoring and investigation? Is an investigation dependent solely unon receipt
of a formal complaint? If so, can investigatory powers be a formal, required
function of the Annual Enforcement Plan? (Page 5)

9. How do suspension nnd expulsion figures for school ditrlcts with ERAA
grants compare with student discipline statistics for school districts without
ESAA grants? (Page 5)

10. The National School Survey of Public Elementary and Secondary schools
is referred to as a primary source for collocti.a statistical data on ImshoutQ. Is
the completion and submission of this survey mandatory? Is there any pen!itv
for non-compliance? What assurances are there that submitted data is complete
and accurate? (This question is prompted by reservations expressed in a IImem-
orandum of October 16. 1972 to J. Stanley Pottinger, then director of OCR. from
Constantine Menges, (Planning) OCR. The memo dealt with the National Suirvey
for the Fall of 1971. Three pages taken from the body of that meno which ex-
pre~s OCR reservations as to validity of Information reported are attached.)

11. Your testimony states that OCR must look at "patterns In behavior of the
persons recommending or imposing disciplinary action," and that tills must be
accomplished through personal interviews. Will the personal interview Include
students and parents as well as administrators and teachers?

I have enclosed for your information a copy of the Committee Report for H.R.
15276. the Juvenile Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974. As you will note, pro-
ersms to prevent unwarranted and arbitrary suspensions and expulsions are
authorized.

Since I would like to include your answers *T) the above questions In the
printed record of the hearing, I would appreciate a quick response.

Sincerely, SHMrLEY CHIsHOLM,
Member of (Jongrems.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCTION, AND WELFARE,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
AUGUST 7, 1974.

11oi. SHIRLY CHISHOLM,
11o use of Repre8entative#,
Wash ington, D.C.

Dear MNs. CHISHOLM: Thank you for your letter of iuly 17 Ilsting additional
questions related to my testimony of May 21, 1974 before the subcommittee on
Equal Opportunities of the House Committee on Education and Labor. My an-
swers are enclosed.

1 want to again assure you that the Office for Civil Rights intends to pursue
in the coming school year the investigation and correction of disciplinary abuses
based on race in federally assisted elementary and secondary school programs.

I hope this is helpful. PFTER E . IIOLME:s,
Director Office for Civil Rights.

1. The school districts in which 170,000 children were reassigned since January,
1973. from formerly racially isolated or racially identifiab'le classes pursuant to
the nondilcrimination provisions of the Emergency School Aid Act (ESAA) are
listed in Tab A. The listing also provides information as to tie riilI/ethlnic el-
rolinent of these school districts. The school districts listed are located in Regions
111. IV, VI, and VII, which include the 17 Southern and Border states.

2. The Annual Enforcement Plan for fiscal year 1975 is being revised. A copy of
the Annual Enforcement Plan for the Elementary m(d Secondary Educatin l)ivi-
siofl. which beailrs the responsibility for the Office's compliance enforcement pro-
gram as it relates to elementary and secondary school systems or institutions, will
be furnished to the Subcommittee whan the plan is conl)leted, I should mention,
however, that student discipline has been selected as one of the two Operational
Planning Systems (OPS) objectives to be submitted for tracking by the Secretary.
I think this would evi(lence our deep commitment to accomplishing as muchll as
possible in the area of student discipline during this fiscal year.

3. Title VI requires proof of "discrimination on the basis of race, color, or na-
tional origin." Statistics indicating that a higher lrol)ortion of minority l)upilis
have been disciplined by school officials do not necessarily lead to the conclusion
that minority pupils have been the subjects of discrimination by school officials.
Without further investigation, it is difficult to contradict the possibility that in
the particular school system, a higher proportion of minority pl)upils have been
disciplined and disciplined fairly by school officials because of factors totally un-
related to race.

For example, in a school district with a 50 percent minority enrollment. assume
the statistics show that the district expelled 10 minority students and five white
students. Further investigation may show that all 10 minority students and nil
five white students were properly expelled for reasons totally unrelated to race.
These facts would not constitute a violation of Title VI. despite the statistics.

Similarly, it is quite possible that minority students might be subject to dis-
crlmination even if a lower proportion of non-minority students are disciplined.
For instance. in a school district with 50 percent minority enrollment, assume
the school district expelled five minority students and 10 white students. The
five minority students may have been expelled illegally for reasons related to
race and the 10 white students may have been expelled fairly because of the com-
mission of offenses warranting expulsion. Despite the statistics in this case, the
school district would violate Title VI in its discriminatory treatment of minority
students.

4. The Anne Arundel County (Maryland) School District was notified that it
was selected for a pilot investigatory review. Although the review has been in-
itiated, a determination of findings has not been made. The remaining school
districts selected for pilot Investigatory reviews are not identified inasmuch as
this Office has not yet notified school district officials of their selection. When

-districts receive such notification, we will submit their names to the Subcom-
mittee.

5. Student discipline (suspension, expulsions, and dropouts/pushouts) was
Included as a component in our priority setting exercise in preparation for the
Annual Enforcement Plan. The staff, both Headquarters and Regional, agreed
that student discipline receive 15 per cent of the total alloted to Issues included In
investigations undertaken pursuant to Title VI and Title iX. By memoranda
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of March 20, 1973 and December 20, 1973, Dr. Lloyd R. Henderson, Director,
Elementary and Secondary Education Division, communicated concern for accom-
plishing the maximum amount of compliance in this area. The Regional Offices
have responded by listing student discipline -as an issue to be included in several
of the district investigations scheduled for FY 75. These investigations will be
part of our total pilot effort. Copies of Dr. Henderson's memoranda have been
included as Tab B.

6. OCR has not terminated Federal financial assistance nor initiated legal
proceedings because of a school district's discriminatory student discipline
.. rttms. Nevertheless, during the two years the ESAA program has been in effect
(FY 73 and FY 74) to date, this Office has notified 102 districts throughout tie
nation of possible compliance problems on the basis of statistics reporting a dis-
proportionate impact of such practices on minority students. One district was
subsequently notified it was ineligible to receive funds under ESA.k because of
discriminatory disciplinary practices, and 30 districts were notified that their
disciplinary practices would be investigated more thoroughly in the post-grant
phase (generally this means in-depth investigation sometime during the first half
of FY 75) : Our activity under ESAA to date has brought about changes in the
disciplinary practices of 30 school districts. These changes have centered on the
institution of due process requirements and on increasing the awareness of school
district personnel of the impact of their actions.

7. We are unable to answer this question at this time because the data collected
In the 1973-74 school survey has not yet been analyzed on a widespread basis.
The Elementary and Secondary Education Division has identified the data anal-
yses it desires, and the contractor has stated that the printouts will be ready
in November. I will submit a response to the Subcommittee in answer to this'- question when the data becomes available to us. The unusual delay in obtaining
this information was caused by our uncertainty until close to the end of FY 74
that we would have sufficient funds to have data analyses conducted. This was
due primarily to the substantial outlays of contractural funds necessitated by the
scope of our review of the New York City School System.

Included as Tab C are data based on the 1972-73 survey of elementary and
secondary school districts. That particular data, which reports district actions
during the 1971-72 school year, shows the numbers of expulsions, by region, with-
in certain specified statistical categories.

These data show that the problems as they are defined occur more frequently in
court order districts and more frequently in the South (where, of course, the
bulk of the court orders are). Also, the data indicate that the problems occur more
frequently in the urban areas; however, this may simply be the result of the
criteria established for the categories and not reflect accurately the total national
picture. These observations are only of a most general nature and should not beviewed as conclusive. The analyses requested for the 1973-74 data should give
us more accurate data with which to answer your questions. We share your con-
cerns for identifying where the problems are.

8. The FY 75 budget request would not increase the staff of the Elementary and
Secondary Education Division. This means that the already existent compliance
staff will bear the responsibility for the student discipline program in addition to
other program responsibilities. Below is the current authorized strength of the
eleven Elementary and Secondary Education Branch Offices:

ProfessionalRegion Office location staff Clerk staff
I.......... Boston. 9 2
l t iE- iladeiphia . ... 14 6IV. Atla... N ta.n................................................ 9
IV. ........ Atlanta .................................................... . ... 22 9
V -------- ChiCaRo ......................................................... 12 5V ......... Cleveland......... ....... . . .V......... Dalas .. ................................. ".. ..... 13 4VII ...... Kansas City ------------------------------.------------------------- 25 7VII K ....... Denver -------------------- 9 3
IX ......... San Francisco ------------------ -------------------------- 23 8
X ...... Seattle ------------------------------- -------̂. ------------- - 6 2

Total--------------- -------------------------------------- 2157
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To answer the second part of your question, investigation is not dependent on

the receipt of a formal complaint, although the receipt of such a complaint may
prompt an investigation. The data analyses referred to in question seven will
serve serve to identify districts in which problems seem most apparent; the infor-
mation will enable us to make informed decisions as to districts requiring further
inquiry and to establish investigation priorities.

9. As I started in my response to question seven above, this information is not
available at this time. I will be glad to provide this information to the Subconimit-
tee when it is available to us.

10. The completion of the National School Survey of Public Elementary and
Secondary School Systems is required. The form distributed to school systems
states: "This report is required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and by
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972." The penalty for noncompliance
could ultimately be the termination of Federal funds although this action has
never been taken with reference to noncompletion of the survey. The completed
forms are submitted to a contractor who edits selected items on the returns
for accuracy and completeness (the majority of the items on the forms are
edited). Admittedly, this editing process is not completely foolproof but it does
reduce arithmetical errors and incomplete responses. On occasion, the data
submitted is questionable (e.g., an extremely high number of students expelled)
but it is not the contractor's responsibility to respond to the questionable data.
Frequently these questions have been called to our attention by the contractor
or have been recognized by the compliance staff in their regular use of the forms.
The Elementary and Secondary Education Division realizes that much more needs
to be (lone in this area. Letters were sent to several districts during the past year
requesting additional or more specific data and reminding districts of their
reporting responsibilities under the law. This process will be expanded as the
Division establishes clearer working procedures in this area with the contractor.

V. PUPIL EXPULSION
A. EXPULSION QUESTION AND SURVEY COVERAGE

Each district in the 1971 survey was asked: "During the previous school year,
how many pupils (by race/ethnic group) were officially expelled from any school
in this system ?"

Although not representative of the country as a whole, the answers to this
question are probably representative of school districts attended by minority
students, since approximately 90% of all minority students were included in the
1971 survey. Because of the que8tionable an&ers from a few districts, it must be
emphasized that the results discussed below are "as reported" by the school
districts surveyed.

B. 1971 RESULTS

Nationally, less than half the districts surveyed in 1971 said they expelled any
students (luring the 1970-71 school year: 1226 districts, of the 2831 districts
surveyed, reported expelling a total of 20.4 thousand students, or two out of
every thousand students in school in those districts.

In those same districts as a whole, the expulsion rate for minority students
was twice that of non-minority students, and for black students, three times that
of non-minority students.

Omaha reported expelling the greatest number of minority students, 1091, and
proportionately their expulsion rate for minority students (8%) was four times
greater than their rate for non-minority students (2%).

One hundred eighty-one districts reported expelling ten or more minority
students. Together, these districts accounted for 78% of the 11-thousand minority
students reported as expelled.

Thirty-one of the 181 districts reported equal or near-equal expulsion rates
for minority and non-minority students. The rest except for three districts, re-
ported variously-disproportionate expulsion rates favoring non-minority
students :

The minority expulsion rate was:
Double the non-minority rate in 31 districts.
Triple the non-minority rate in 26 districts.
Quadruple the non-minority rate in 16 districts.
Five to ten times the non minority rate In 49 districts.
Greater than ten times the non-minority rate in 25 districts.
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11. The interviews conducted during an investigation will most assuredly in-

elude students and parents as well as administrators and teachers. It has hag
been our policy in conducting complaint investigations and on-site investigations
to interview various individuals not employed by the school system. In the area
of student discipline this would, of course, include students disciplined, their
parents, individuals with an understanding of the community, and persons who
may have interacted with the school system on student discipline issues.

Attachment 1 lists 90 of the 181 districts which rel)orted the most minority
expulsion in terms of amount and/or severity. Together, these 90 districts
account for two-thirds of the 11 thousand total minority students reported ex-
pelled.
Three Districts Reporting Di8proportionate Expulsion of Non-Minority Students

Three districts, of the 181 districts reporting ten or more minority students
expelled, had disporportionate expulsion rates favoring minority students. Gary,
Indiana reported expelling 12% of its 11 thousand non-minority students, but only0.1% of its 34,622 minority students. 1,300 non-minority students were reported
expelled and 39 minority students.

Long Beach, California and Petersburg, Virginia reported an expulsion rate
for non-minority students-that was double the rate for minority students. Long
Beach reported 100 non-minority students expelled (0.2%) and 17 minority
students (0.1%). Petersburg reported 8 non-minority students expelled (0.4%)
and 11 minority students (0.2%).
Expulsions in the Top Twenty Citie8 (District8 Containing the Largest Minority

Enrollments)
Reported expulsions were generally non-existent or low in the Top Twenty cities

where the greatest number of minority students are enrolled (equalling 34% of all
minority students survyed in 1971). Eleven of these districts reported no students
expelled, minority or non-minority, and eight of the remaining nine districts
reported equal or near-equal expulsion rates for minority and non-minority
students. (However, Baltimore reported expelling the second highest iniumber
of minority students in the country.) Memphis' minority expulsion rate was
double the non-minority rate.

The Top Twenty districts are listed on Attachment 2.

CIvI, RIGHTS SIONIFICANCE
News reports and other sources have indicated that minority students havebeen suspended, expelled, and, in a number of cases, arrested following student

walkouts, boycotts, and demonstrations over civil rights Issues. An NEA report,
covering 256 school districts in the South over a period of 18 months during 1971
and 1972, reported 24 thousand students involved in walkouts or boycotts, 25
thousand suspended and/or expelled and 2.570 students arrested.

Results from OCR's 1971 survey indicate that in general, minority students
are twice as likely to be expelled as non-minority students and that black studentsin particular are three times as likely to be expelled as nonminority students.

Expulsions are just the tip of the iceberg. Within the power of a public school
district, expulsion is the most extreme of several methods of discipline. As such,
it is generally used only as a last resort and less frequently than other dis-
cipline measures, such as suspension. We have asked districts about expulsion be-
cause we thought they would have reliable Information available, since expulsionusually requires board action, and because- we felt that if this most extreme
pressure is being disproportionately applied to one or another race or ethnicgroup in a school district, this could possibly indicate a more wideranging prob-
lem of mis-applied student discipline in a district.

- On the other hand, lack of expulsion, such as indicated by a number of large
districts, does not suggest that student discipline is being handled equitably.
Some districts have a policy of expelling no one, including districts that send
students to schools established especially for "discipline problems." For those
districts, OCR's survey question about expulsion cannot enlighten us about their
discipline practices.



SCHOOL DISTRICTS fN REGIONS III. IV. VI. AND VII (WHICH INCLUDE THE 17 SOUTHERN AND BORDER STATES) IN WHICH STUDENTS WERE REASSIGNED FROM FORMERLY RACIALLY ISOLATED
OR IDENTIFIABLE CLASSES UNDER ESSA SINCE JANUARY 1973

[The enrollment data is unedited 1973-74 survey data uness otherwise noted; an * denotes data from the 1972-73 survey]

Enrollment

Spanish-American Asian surnamedSchool system State Region Indian Black American American Others Total
Seaford .............. . Delaware ------------------- Ill 3 888 4 4 2,950 3,849Alexandia ............----------------------------- Virginia ----------------- III 16 5,346 224 258 8,486 14,330Amherst --------------------------------------------------- do -------------------- Iii 18 1,766 3 0 3,831 5.618Buckingham ------------------------ do ------------------ Il 0 2,609 1 0 715 3,325Bc kngharlottsmill ..............- - . . . . . do ------------------ -III 3 1,564 3 0 1,128 2,698Chaese---------------------------- --------- do.------------------ III 6 1,771 15 13 4,885 6,690Chesapeake ----------------------------------------------- do ------------------ Il 51 7,680 62 48 18,489 26,330Danville ----- ---------------------------------------- do ------------------ III 0 3,169 0 0 6,302 9,471Essex County ------------------------------------------ do ------------------- III 19 1,151 1 0 815 1,986Haifax County ----------------------------- ------------ do------------------- III 2 3,901 0 0 3,597 7,500Henr County -------------------------------- do ------------------- II 0 3,865 4 1 9,805 13,675King George County ------- ------------------------- do -------------------- Ill 0 737 0 2 1, 517 2,257ia County --- ------------------------- do -------------------- Ill 35 977 1 0 482 1,495Lodsia County ---------------------------- ---- .... do ------------------ I 0 1,711 3 4 2,011 3,729Middlesexl County -------- ------------------------- do ------------------- III 0 713 0 0 715 1, 428PItsyIvan do ------------------ I 1 6,808 0 8,453 15,262South Boston -------------------------------------------- do -------------------- III 0 685 10 1 854 1,550YorkCounty ------------------------------------ do -------------------- III 34 1,639 32 29 6,720 8,454AlexanCer City --------------------------------------- Alabama ------------------- IV 0 1,192 0 0 2,385 3,577Andalusia City -------------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 0 611 0 3 1,825 2,439Barbour County ------------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 0 2,291 0 0 686 2,977Birmingham City ------------------------------------------ do -------------------- IV 1 33,451 22 28 21,010 54,512Brews'on City -------------------------------------------- do ------------------ IV 0 490 0 0 1,009 1,499Butler County .. . . ...--------------------- - -- do------------------ IV 0 2,642 0 0 1,681 4,323Clarke County ----------------------------------------- do ---------------------- IV 0 3,299 0 0 1,359 4,658Conech County ---------------------------------- do------------------ IV 0 2,033 0 1,418 3,451Demopr:is City ----------------------------------- do ------------------ IV 0 887 0 0 868 1,755Elda City --------------------------------------- do ------------------ IV 0 463 0 0 1,329 1,792



EscambiaCounty------------------ --------------- do------------------ IV 1942,197 0 4 3,862 6,257Enterprise City.. . . . . . . ...-----------------------------------do...................... IV 0 1 074 1 0 3, 775 4, 850S----------------------------------------------- IV 0 2. 513 3 4 4,347 6,867Gadsden City . . . . . . ..--------------------------------------- do ---.------------------ IV 0 2,999 6 1 6,305 9,311HenryCounty---------------------------------do-----------------------IV 0 1,666 1 1 1,259 2,927Huntsville City-------------------------------d------------------IV2 
,7 2 0 8 3 4 5

.A doe--- --------- -------- IV 23 5, 676 123 104 28, 233 34,159L e e C o u n ty ---- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - -..........d o - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- IV 0 2 , 2 6 2 0 2 , 6 6 3 4 , 9 2 5Limestone County . . . . . . . ..--------------------------------do------------------ IV 0 1,219 0 0 5, 495 6,714. Mation City ------------------------------------- do----------------- IV0 0 0 411 ,719Mobile County . . . . . . . ...-----------------------------------do --------------------- IV 12 29,887 18 45 35,222 65,184Baldwin County..... ...------------------------------- Georgia"--------------------- IV 0 3,173 0 26 3,168 6,367B sCounty ----------------------------------- do---IV 0 1,967 0 0 1,067 3,034a Butts County .----------------------------------- do-----------------------I0 1,412 0 0 1,187 2,599Chatham County . . . . . . . . ..---------------------------------.do .----------------------.IV 5 17, 907 48 22 15785 33 767Clarke County .--.----------------------------------- do ----------------------.IV 4 3,800 56 29 6,609 10,498Colquia County ............................... do------------------V 9 2,526 1 5,405 7,946olbCounty-----------------------------------------------------------V 1,477 715,237 853DeKab County.. . . . . . . . ..------------------------- ---------- do .----------------------.IV 26 11,076 206 253 75,936 87,497Dodge County- -----------------------------------------------o ----------------------- IV 2 1,514 0 0 2,659 4,175Dougherty County -------------------------------- doIV 0 1,749 3 0 559 2,311
Effingham County.,"-------------------------------------- do--------------------.IV 0 9,91452,3------------------------------------------------- IV / 0,4 32 34 12,057 22,037CitzeraCouCty ----------------------------------- do------------------ IV 0 1,035 0 0 1,172 2,207
L a n i e r C o u n t y . . . . . . .1 , 0 40.. . . . . .0.. .0.. .2.. .6 

41.. . . .3.. . . . . . . ..................................................- IV 1 887 0 3 504 1,389
Lanies County..... .......---------------------------------. do--------------------.IV 5 515 1 2 853 1,374Michufe County...........------------------.---------------do--------------------.IV 

0 1,760 0 0 5,066 6,826MiteCounty.--------------------------------------do------------------ 
IV 0 1,885 2 1

Mi c el o n i 
1, 930 3, 818Montgomery County . . ..----------------------------------- do--------------------- IV 0 1,958 3 0 523 2,484----------- do-- - ------------- ---- IV 0 703 0 0 822 ,525MuscogeeCounty.. .. .. ..---------------------------------do------------------ IV 12 13,280 90 119 24,218 37,719Richmond County ---------------------------------do------------------------IV 0 1,372 0 0 41G 1.782taylorCounty.. .---. . . ..---------------------------------do.----------------------- IV 73 13,884 249 170 16,863 31,239Thyomr County ---------------------- do ------------------- I ,5 2 .8

Thomas County ------------------------------------------- o----------------------- IV 0 1.962 0 0 724 1.781
Turner County -----------------------------------do------------------ IV 0 1,962 0 0 2,394 4,356W ycross City .--.. - "." -.......... .........-- - - - - - - - - - - do ----------------------.IV 0 1, 109 0 0 1,0 33 2,142West.Point.City--------------------------- ------- do------------------ IV 0 1,942 1 204 3,957Wicox County --------------------------------------- ..... do--------------------.IV 0 733 0 0 882 1,615V------------------------------------------------IV 0 1,379 0 0 751 2,130



SCHOOL DISTRICTS IN REG!OfiS IIt, IV, VI, AND VII (WHICH INCLUDE THE 17 SOUTHERN AND BORDER STATES) IN WHICH STUDENTS WERE REASSIGNED FROM FORMERLY RACIALLY ISOLATED
OR IDENTIFIABLE CLASSES UNDER ESSA SINCE JANUARY 1973-Continued

(The enrollment data is unedited 1973-74 survey data unless otherwise noted; an * denotes data from the 1972-73 survey]

Enrollment
Spanish-

American Asian surnamedSchool system State Region Indian Black American American Others Total

Asheville ..---------.---------------------------- North Carolina -------------- IV 0 127 0 0 302 429Brunswick County_ --- - ------------------------- do --------------------- IV 11 2,422 1 4 4,957 7,395Charlotte-Mecklenburg ------ . .. . ...----------------------- do --------------------- IV 164 26.254 82 171 51,928 78, 599Duplin County ---------------------------------.---------- do --------------------- IV 4 4,257 0 2 5,519 9,782Durham County -. . . ..------------ ---------------------- do --------------------- IV 5 3,870 30 12 11,763 15,680Flizabeth City - Pasquotank ..........----------------------- do --------------------- IV 2 2,662 14 5 3,324 6,007Fayettevi'le City ----------------.--------------------- do --------------------- IV 56 6,036 44 63 4,975 11,174Goldsboro -- .--------------- ...............-------------- do ------------------ IV 0 3,808 8 2 2,459 6,277Gieensboro City ---------. ..-------------.-----.--------- do ------------------ IV 101 10,814 75 0 16,883 27,873Grrenvi.le City --------------------------------- do --..------------------ IV 2 2,379 16 6 3,235 638Hickory City -------------.--------------------------- do ---------------------- IV 3 1,072 6 1 4,688 5,770
High Point City -_ .------------------------------------------- do --------------------- IV 46 3,929 4 4 6,970 10,953Hoke City ..... ....--------------------- _ ----------------- do ---------------------- IV 674 2,549 0 1 1,624 4,848New Hanover County -------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 23 5.452 34 18 14,164 19,691Raleigh City --------------------------------.------------- do --------------------- IV 10 7,203 130 66 13,414 20,823Salisbury City ----------------------------------------- do ------------------ IV 4 1,545 0 1 2,037 3,587St. Paul's City -------.........---------------------------- do --------------------- IV 175 682 0 0 771 1,678Statesville City ----------------------.------------------- do -------------------- IV 20 1,325 3 1 2,532 3,881Tyrell County ---------------------------------------------- do --------------------- IV 1 564 2 2 417 986
Union County ------------- i ------------------------------- do --------------------- IV 21 2,247 2 7 8,502 10,779Wake County --------------------.---------------------- do --------------------- IV 24 7,406 32 15 23,677 31,154Warren County -------------------------------------------- do --------------------- IV 150 3,241 0 0 917 4,308Washinrton County ---------------------------------------- do ---------------------- IV 0 1,557 0 0 2,390 3,947Wayne County -------------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 5 4,468 35 7 9,952 14,467Wilson County -------------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 0 2,322 0 0 2,488 4,801Winston-Saiem/Forsyth ------------------------------------- do ---------------------- IV 32 14,242 29 11 31,487 45,801Bamberg No. 2 --------------------------------------- South Carolina -------------- IV 1 1,416 4 0 257 1,678Chester County --- ----------------------------------- do ------------------ IV 0 3,915 2 2 3,641 7,560Dillon No. 3 ----------------------------------------------- do ------------------- IV G 1,075 0 0 1,000 2,075Greenwood No 50 ----------------------------------------- do --------------------- IV 5 3,675 3 9 6,239 9,931Greenville County -------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 24 12, 6- 1 59 45 43,835 56, 598Lancaster -------..... ..-. ..............--------- ----- do ----------------------- IV 0 3,444 0 0 8,029 11,473Marlboro County ------------------------------------------ do ----------------------- IV 4 4,285 0 0 3,496 7,785Marion No. 3 ---------------------------------------------- do ..................... I 0 807 0 0 131 938



Orangeburg No. 4 o......... ................................ do ---------------- - IV 0 877 0 0 758 1.635Orangeburg No. 5 ----------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 0 4, 713 0 0 1,877 6.590Richland No. I -------------------------------------------- do ------------------- IV 26 1,738 96 119 8,146 10.125Saluda --------------------------------------------------- do ------------------- IV 0 984 0 0 984 1,968Williamsburg County --------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 0 7, 585 0 0 1,859 9. 444York No.1I------------------------------------------- do-------------------- IV 2 1,404 0 0 2,388 3,798EscambiaCounty--------------------------- Florida --------------------- IV 117 13,540 317 195 33,402 47,571Orange County -------------------------------------------- do ------------------ IV 185 16,262 327 1,354 67,338 85,466Earlingtof Ind ---------------------------------------- Kentucky ------------------- IV 0 238 0 0 316 554Newport Ind ---------------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 6 217 5 5 4,191 4,424Okalona MSSD .................. ...... Mississippi----------------IV 0 805 0 0 604 1,409Senatobia -------------------------------------- do------------------ IV 0 544 0 0 598 1,142Humboldt City --------------------------------------- Tennessee ------------------ IV 0 1,269 0 0 1,570 2,839J3ckson City --- ------------------------------------- do ------------------ IV 0 3,581 0 0 3,843 7,244Nashville City --------------------------------------------- do -------------------- IV 25 24,067 117 69 59,573 83,857Shelby County -------------------------------------------- do--------------------- IV 15 5,497 105 83 15,128 20,828
Foreman -------------------------------------------- Arkansas -------------------- VI 0 245 0 0 542 787Lakeside ------------------------------------------------- do ------------------- VI 0 1, 167 8 2 587 1,774Acadia ----------------------------------------------- Louisiana ------------------ VI 0 2,943 0 0 8.958 11,901Catahoula Parish ------------------------------------------ do------------------- VI 0 2,515 1 0 1,583 4,099Morehous do------------------ VI 0 1. i18 0 0 2,214 3,542Morehoushe__ ...........- : : : : : : :: : : : do -------------------- VI 0 4,672 0 0 3,105 7,777St Charles Parish-------------------------------------- do -------------------- VI 2 4,463 3 37 4,107 8,612VlSas do------------------ VI 3 3,169 0 16 5,818 8,906Tenss .............. .............................. do ------------------- VI 0 1,884 0 2 481 2, 367Bloomfield ------------------------------------------ New Mexico ---------------- VI 696 0 0 461 1,017 2,174Duloe ------------------------------------------------- do -------------------- Vl 508 0 0 53 39 600Espanola --------------------------------------- do ------------------ VI 386 15 11 5,493 534 6.429Frederick ................. do ------------------- VI 149 7 1 2,599 504 3,260-------------------------- Oklahoma---------------- VI 32 347 0 178 961 1,518Grant ---------------------------------------------------- do -------------------- Vl 33 257 0 0 151 441Carthage --------------------------------------- do ------------------ VI 344 330 6 6 1134 1,820
Cartage~alb ............... " . . . .. .Texas --------------------- VI 0 1,031 0 0 1,625 2,656Japer . . . . :: : : : : ::----------------------------------------do ------------------.... VI 0 459 0 11 871 1,341Jatpe -------------------------------------------------- do ----------------------- VI 0 1,301 0 1 1,900 3,202Tatum ----------------------------------------- do------------------VI 2 287 2 0 369 660Waterloo . --------------------------------- Iowa--------------------V 36 2,483 17 23 14,796 17,355Dod ......o 43------------------ Kansas.------------------ VII 14 317 5 13 1,965 2,314WtAhita No. 259 ----------------------------------------- do ....................... Vii 8 118 10 295 3,874 4,305Kansas City ------------------------------------- do ------------------ VII 474 9,437 214 1,382 43.969 55,476North Pemi.ott......................----------------- Missouri------------------- Vii 215 34,677 118 1,931 25.155 62,096Nrt it ------------------------------------------- do -------------------- VII 0 289 0 0 693 982University City- ----------------------------------- do------------------ V 0 4,467 47 33 2,846 7,393
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WVfLFARE,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY.
March 20, 1973.

Memorandum to: Regional Civil Rights Directors.
From: Lloyd R. Henderson, Director, Elementary and Secondary Education

Division.
Subject: Student Discipline Cases.

As you know our activity in the area of student discipline has been on a case-
by-case basis, and usually in response to one or more complaints. Often we are
able to establish a statistical pattern of disproportionate impact in connection
with minorities: however, we are left with the problem of evidence to prove
discrimination. Since our involvement generally comes as a result of a specific
complaint, we are often confronted with the "who struck John" situation. The
proof of discrimination In a specific incident is at best extremely difficult because
of the "lie said-she said" nature of the evidence. In addition, the school systems
can rebut almost any fact and conclusion we may present in a specific case with
fairly persuasive evidence of habitual bad conduct of the minority child. As a
consequence we have not been very successful in preventing the discriminatory
administration of discipline or of bringing hearings where we believe it has
been discriminatory.

It appears that the most logical approach to reach the solution of discrimina-
tory discipline cases is to establish proof of discriminatory discipline patterns.
Some of you already have started activity in this area. Barry Anderson suggested
an idea by which wemight become more successful in establishing the proof of
discrimination.

In recent years the Federal courts have dealt with issues in equal employment
opportunity with similarly difficult elements of proof, I think that with expertise
which has been acquired in the Regions, the application of those princil)les in
related fields, a little time, and some ingenuity, we can develop a method to prove
discrimination where it exists.

In order to develop such a method of proof we propose to select a small number
of school districts which have engaged in discriminatory discipline, for review.
The procedure will consist of four steps:

1. District identification.
2. Data requests.
3. Selection of districts for review.
4. On-site review and legal remedy.
The first step is identifying districts which have evidenced problems in dis-

cipline. All of these districts will not be reviewed: they are the districts which will
be surveyed to determine the test cases. The criteria for identification are that the
district should:

(a) Have at least two years of desegregation at the secondary level.
(b) Have had complaints against it of discriminatory discipline.
(c) If possible, be an ESAA district.
(d) Have capabilities to produce necessary data displays.
(e) Have some system of record keeping for disciplinary actions taken in

addition to suspensions and expulsions.
(f) Not be a large district (over 20,000 student population).
If you or your Branch Chief have special knowledge of a district which would

make it a desirable test case, please forward the pertinent information. The
Education Branch should identify. if possible, five districts in your Region which
come closest to meeting the above-stated criteria. For your information, I am en-
closing a Draft of the 1971 Expulsion Survey compiled by Program Planning
and Evaluation. (Attachment A).

The second step is a letter from you to time districts selected for review request-
Ing the following information within twenty days from receipt of the letter:

(a) A race/ethnic discipline data display for the school years 1971 and 1972 by
secondary school and grade level showing the reason for the discipline and the
punishment rendered. (See Attachment C).

(b) A district summary of the above by Junior High School and separately by
Senior igh School. (Attachment D).

NOTE.-Items A and B are to be used for different analyses.
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(c) A narrative descriptilol of the district's discipllinary rules including

(1) Wlht a re the ruls of conduct ?
(2) Who determines violations mand what standards are used to make such

(leterhlnations?
(3) What standards for application of rules are written?
(4) flow aire teachers informed of these stahinard.'?
(5) How are students informed ?
(6) What Is the suspension process?
(7) What is the expulsion process?
(8) Who metes out the punishment?
(9i) What options of punishment are available?

(d) The same as (c) above for each school which has different or additional
stlldards.

The third step Is to review the data submitted to determine which districts
should be selected for review. The criteria for selection are:

(a) A high number of blacks or other minorities disciplined in relation to their
number in the district as compared to the low number of whites disciplined.

In order to be selected, a district should have three of the above four criteria.
The selection of the districts does not h'hve to be based on district-wide statistics.
If one school appears to have all the elements and the district does not, the
district should still be considered.

The last step in reviewing selected districts-the details of which will be worked
out at the time of selection.

I have asked Barry Anderson to coordinate the student discipline effort. Part
of his assignment is to assist the Regions in the selection of the districts to be
reviewed and in the conduct of the reviews in order to establish the elements of
proof. If you have any questions about the process, methods, theories of proof
to be used, or wish to provide additional input, please contact Barry at (202)
962-1624.

I realize that you have other priorities-Adams v. Richardson, ESAA, and
routine reviews-which are using up your staff. All I can say is that this effort
is Important, too. It does little good to require desegregation if the minority kids
are then discriminatorily pushed out of school.

Attachments.
ATTACHMENT A (DRAFT)

1971 Survey Totals (2381 Districts).
Expelled pupils.

EXPULSION QUESTION AND SURVEY COVERAGE

Each district in the 1971 survey was asked: "During the previous school year,
how many pupils [by race/ethnic group] were officially expelled from any school
in this system?"

Although not representative of the country as a whole, the answers to this
question are probably representative of school districts attended by minority
students, since approximately 90% of all minority students were included in the
1971 survey. Because of the questionable answers for a few districts, it must be \
emphasized that the results discussed below are "as reported" by the school
districts surveyed.

1971 RESULTS

Nationally, less than half the districts surveyed in 1971 said they expelled
any students during the 1970-71 school year: 1227 districts, of the 2831 districts
surveyed, reported expelling a total of 21-thousand students, or two out of every
thousand students in school in those districts.

In those same districts as a whole, the expulsion rate for minority studekits was
twice that of non-minority students, and for black students, three times that of
non-minority students.

Omaha expelled the greatest number of minority students, 1091, and proportion-
ately, their expulsion rate for minority students (8%) was four times greater
than their rate for non-inority students (2%).

One hundred eighty-two districts expelled ten or more minority students. To-
gether, these districts accounted for 78% of the 11-thousand minority students
reported as expelled.
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Thirty-two of the 182 districts had equal or near-equal expulsion rates for

minority and non-minority students. The rest, except for three districts, had
va riously-(lIsproportionate expulsion rates favoring non-minority stutdeiit:

The minority expulsion rate was :
Double the non-minority rate in 31 districts.
Triple the non-minority rate In 26 districts.
Quadruple the non-minority rate in 16 districts.
Five to ten times the non-minority rate in 49 districts.
Greater than ten times the non-minority rate in 25 districts.

Attachment 1 lists 91 of the 182 districts which showed the most minority ex-
pulsion in terms of amount and/or severity. Together, these 91 districts account
two-thirds of the 11 thousand total minority students reported expelled.

il rec Districts Rcportirg Disproportionate Expulsion of Non.-minority studc)nIts
Three districts, of the 182 districts expelling ten or more minority students,

had disproportionate expulsion rates favoring minority students. Gary, Indiana
reported expelling 12% of its 11-thousand non-minority students, but only 0.1%
of its 34,622 minority students: 1,300 non-minority students were expelled and
39 minority students.

Long Beach, California and Petersburg, Virginia had an expulsion rate for
non-minority students that was double the rate for minority students. Long Beach
expelled 100 non-minority students (0.2%) and 17 minority students (0.1%).
Petersburg expelled 8 non-minority students (0.4%) and 11 minority students
(0.2%).

1rpulW-ions in the Top Twecnty Cities (Districts Containing tte Largest Minority
EnrollmnOts)
Expulsions were generally non-existent or low in the Top Twenty cities where

the greatest number of minority students are enrolled (equalling 34% of all
minority students surveyed In 1971). Eleven of these districts reported no
students expelled, minority or non-minority, and eight of the remaining nine
districts had equal or near-equal expulsion rates for minority and non-minority
students. (However, one district, Baltimore, reported expelling the second
highest number of minority students in the country.) Memphis' minority ex-
l)ulsion rate was double the non-minority rate.

The Top Twenty districts are listed on Attachment 2.
CIVIL RIGHTS SIGNIFICANCE

News reports and other sources have indicated that minority students have
have been suspended, expelled, and, in a number of cases, arrested following
student walk outs, boycotts, and demonstrations over civil rights issues. An
NEA report, covering 256 school districts in the South over a period of 18 months
during 1971-72, reported 24 thousand students involved in walkouts or boycotts,
25 thousand suspended and/or expelled and 2.570 students arrested.

Expulsions are just the tip of the iceberg. Within the power of a public school
district, expulsion is the most extreme of several methods of discipline. As
such it is generally used only as ,a last resort and less frequently than other mea-
sures, such as suspension. We have asked districts about expulsion because we
thought they would have reliable information available, since expulsion us-
usally requires board action, and because we felt that if this most extreme mea-
sure is being disproportionately applied to one or another race or ethnic group
in a school district, this is likely to indicate a more wide-ranging problem of mis-
applied student discipline in that district.

On the other hand, lick of expulsion, such as indicated by a number of large dis-
tricts, does not suggest that student discipline is being handled equitably. ,ome
districts have a policy of expelling no one, including districts that send students
to schools established es pecially for "discipline problems". These districts may
be mis-applying discipline, but a single survey question about expulsion will not
enlighten us about their discipline practices.
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ATTACIIMENT 1

NINETY-ONE DISTRICTS REPORTING MOST MINORITY EXPULSION

The 91 distrits are divided into six sub-lists. The sub-lists ore presented in
what we consider to be their order of importance, considering tlh the ii niter
of minority students expelled and the severity or disproportion of expulsion for
minority students versus non-minority students.

Fifteen districts expelled more than 100 minority studenIts. In eight (of those
districts, the minority expulsion rate was double or more than double the non-
minority expulsion rate. The eight districts were:

NOTE.-The expulsion rates are the percent columns under A and B.

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent of Percent of Minority Nonminority
Percent Col. C Percent Col. D total total

Vernon Parish, La ------------------- 163 13. 5 146 1.9 1,209 7, 655
St. Martin Parish, La ---------------- 644 16. 1 245 4.5 4,002 5, 440
Omaha, Nebr ---------------------- 1,091 8.0 1,040 2. 1 13. 579 50, 352
Jefferson Parish, La ----------------- 181 1.2 173 .3 14,743 50,671
Mobile, Ala ------------------------ 1 04 .3 18 .1 31,045 35, 548
East Baton Rouge Parish, La ---------- 130 .5 100 .3 26, 040 39, 866
Charleston County, S.C -------------- 126 .5 60 .2 27,284 29, 338
Memphis, Tenn --------------------- 120 .2 36 . 1 78, 661 67,242

Fifteen other districts expelled from 50 to 99 minority students. In 14 of those
districts, the minority expulsion rate was double or more than double the ion-
minority expulsion rate. The 14 districts were:

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent of Percent of Minority Nonminority
Nnmber Col. C Number Col. D total total

Bloom Township High, III ............ 60 3.6 10 0.3 1,677 2,995
Lafayette Parish, La ----------------- 80 1. i 30 . 1 7,150 21, 488
Texarkana, Tex ..................... 71 3.7 35 .7 1,920 4,818
Oklahoma City, Okla ................. 70 .4 41 . 1 19, 570 43, 571
Suwani,ee County, Fla ............... 74 6. 4 72 2.3 1, 162 3,086
Saginaw Mich ...................... 57 .6 24 .2 9,871 12,400
Corpus Christi, Tex ------------------ 67 .3 18 .1 26, 370 19, 530
Flint, Mich ......................... 60 .3 18 .1 20,086 25, 424
Poughkeepsie, NY .................. -- 78 4.0 61 1.8 1,959 3, 345
Niagara Falls, NY ................... 92 2.8 241 t. 7 3,316 13,842
Ogden, Utah ........................ .59 2. 3 164 1. 2 2, 581 13, 559
Galveston, Tex ---------------------- 70 .9 16 .4 7, 944 4, 569
Kansas City, Kans ------------------- 70 .6 73 .3 12,540 21,864
Indianapolis, Ind .................... 50 .1 25 0 38, 992 63,334
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One hundred seven districts expelled from 10 to 24 minority sh(Ih1tW!. Th

minority expulsion rate was double or more than double the non-min,,rity -:it,
In eighty-eight of those districts. Seventeen districts had a minority c.xjIu 1ii'
rate that was greater than ten times the non-minority rate. Here art- th.-4,
districts:

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent of Percent of Minority Nonminority
Number Col. C Number Col. D total tota

Fayette County Ky-..-------------- 15 0.2 0 0 6.513 29. 599
Garden Grove, alf ................ 10 . I 1 0 6,959 45.024
Ontario 8, Oreg ..................... 10 1. 7 1 0 958 2.344
Barrow County, Ga .................. 11 1.2 1 0 901 3. 319
Acadia Parish, La ................... 11 .4 1 0 2.899 9.019
Rockford, III ........................ 15 .3 2 0 5.915 36 218
Nacogdoches, Tex ................... 14 .8 0 0 1,706 2.934
Dublin City, Ga ..................... 18 1.1 1 0 1.652 2.216
Pomona Unit., Calif .......... 15 .2 1 0 8. 871 13. 272
Shaker Heights, Ohio ---------------- 14 .7 2 0 2, 010 5. 320
York, Pa ---------------........... 12 .5 2 0 2,491 6.539
Bowling Green, Ky .................. 13 1.6 5 . 1 834 4,716
Normandy, Mo ...................... 11 .3 0 0 - 3, 504 5, 516
Pulaski County Spec., Ark ............ 15 .3 4 0 5,251 21. 696
Ozark City, Ala ..................... 1.4 5 .1 836 3, 725
Pender County, N.C ................. 16 .6 1 0 2,566 2,032
Fairfield City, Ala ------------------- 1 6 1.0 0 0 1,677 1,233

Forty-seven of the 182 districts expelling ten or more minority students ex-
pelled at least 1% of their total minority students. The preceding lists of distrts
include 26 of these districts. The remaining 21 districts are listed below in de-
scending order of their percent of all minority students expelled:

(A) (e) (C) (0).
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent of Percent of Minority Nonminority
Number Col. C Number Col. D total total

Sargent, Colo ....................... 158 100.0 268 100.0 158 268
Benton County, Miss ................ 118 9.8 71 10.8 1,199 658
Essex County Vocational, N.J ......... 75 6.2 58 6.5 1, 219 887
Norphlet, Ark ....................... 11 6.1 13 3.1 180 423
Carthage, Ark ...................... 11 5.6 1 1.0 198 101
Chandler High No. 202, Ariz .......... 22 4.9 23 1.8 452 1, 264
Citrus County, Fla ................... 19 3.3 100 2.7 576 3.691
Providence, R.I 149 2.7 332 1.8 5,597 18,554
St. Anne Community High, III ------- 11 2.5 0 0 A38 211
North Sacramento Elementary, Calif... 35 2. 1 53 1.4 1, 691 3. 733
Tooele County, Utah ................. 18 1.9 65 1. 1 944 5,988
Romulus Community, Mich ........... 19 1.8 58 1. 1 1,028 5.271
Upson County, Ga ................... 20- 1.8 24 1.6 1,135 1,526
Barnwell County, No. 45, S.C ......... 16 1.7 6 .5 949 1,187'
Huntsville, Tex ..................... 23 1.6 8 .4 1,479 2,177
San Angustine, Tex .................. 12 1.6 8 1.0 771 * 794
Camden County, Ga ................. 18 1.4 8 .4 1,305 1,936
Ecorse, Mich ...-.................. 31 1.3 21 1.2 2,357 1,729
Iredell County, N.C................. 24 1.2 19 .2 1,962 8. 415
Idabel, Okla ........................ 10 1.2 9 .6 837 1,402
Putnam County, Ga .................. 15 1. 1 3 .4 1,403 672
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For the record: In addition to 25 previously listed districts, the following 4

additional districts expelled more than 50 minority students:

(A) (8) (C) (0)
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent of Percent of Minority Nonminority
Number Col. C Number Col. D total total

Baltimore Md ...................... 956 0.7 319 0.5 129,993 60,742
Dayton, Ohio ....................... 190 .8 248 .8 23. 693 31,348
Louisville, Ky ....................... 113 .5 124 .5 24,654 25,786
New Orleans, La .................... 111 .1 33 .1 79,110 28,323

ATTACHMENT 2
]Iere are the Top Twenty districts, listed in order of their minority enrollment

totals:

(A) (B) (C) -(0)
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent of Percent of Minority Nonminority
Number Col. C Number Col. D total total

New York City ...................... (I) (,) (I) () 727, 297 424, 418
Chicago ............................ 0 0 0 0 383,601 185, 321
Los Angeles ........................ 36 0 9 0 324, 634 309, b04
Detroit ............................ 0 0 0 0 189, 024. 94,105
Philadelphia........................ 0 0 0 0 176,856 96, 602
District of Columbia ................. 1 0 0 0 135, 977 5,450
Baltimore ......................... 956 0. 7 319 0.5 129,993 60, 742
Houston ........................... 0 0 0 0 123, 994 107, 587
Miami ............................ 13 0 4 0 119, 1 0 125,712
Cleveland .......................... 0 0 0 0 88,742 60,112
New Orleans .......................- 111 .1 33 .1 79.110 28,323
Memphis ......................... 120 .2 36 . 1 78, 661 67,242
St. Louis ......................... 0 0 0 0 73,601 34,385
Dallas ............................ 0 0 0 0 73,410 85, 782
Atlanta ........................... 24 0 1 0 72,474 27,698
Newark ........................... 38 .1 8 . 1 69,841 9,820

*San Antonio ........................ .. 0 0 0 0 58,941 16, 04
San Francisco ...................... 1 0 0 0 55, 241 28, 343
Oakland ........................... 0 0 0 0 46,371 15,617
Milwaukee ......................... 0 0 0 0 42,497 89,318

1 Unknown.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

Washington, D.C.

ATTACHMENT B (SAMPLE LETTER)

ESAA
DEAR SUPERINTENDENT: Your district (has made application for or is a recipient

-of) funds under the Emergency School Aid Act. Section 185.43(d) (4) of 45 CFR
185 states that:

(d) Discrimination against children.
No educational agency shall be eligible for assistance under the Act if, .

it has had or maintains in effect any practice, policy, or procedure which
results or have resulted in . . .

(4) Imposing disciplinary sanctions, including expulsions, suspen-
sions, or corporal or other punishment, in a manner which discriminates
against minority group children on the basis of race, color, or national
origin.
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We are requesting specific information in connection with your disciplinary

practices and procedures to determine your compliance with the above cited
section and pursuant to the assurance your school district gave to provide ". . . in-
formation in such form as the Secretary . . may require" and "Records relating
to the practices or procedures referred to in Section 185.43(d) including specific
information as to disciplinary sanctions ( .. ) imposed upon minority and
non-minority group children in every school operated by the applicant" (45 CFR
185.13 (k) ).

Within twenty days from the receipt of this letter, your school district is re-
quested to provide this Office the following:

(a) A data display for school years 71 and 72 by secondary school and grade
level showing the reason disciplined and punishment received by race and/or
ethnic group. ('See Attachment A)

(b) A district summary for all junior high schools and separately for all senior
high schools. (See Attachment B)

(c) A narrative description of the district's disciplinary practices, policies,
and procedures including: Expulsions, suspensions, corporal or other punish-
ment; statement of general rules of conduct; who determines violations; how
are the violations determined; what standards are used; how are the standards
established, communicated, implemented; who metes out punishment; how; what
options are available?

(d) Same as (c) above for each school.
Within twenty days of receipt of the data submitted, your district will be noti-

fied as to the exact date representatives from this Office will begin their on-site
review.

We appreciate your cooperation in this matter.
Sincerely,

Regional Ciril Rights Director.
cc: Chief State School Officer.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE.

ATTACHMENT B(1)
TITLE VI

DEAR SUPERINTENDENT: Your district is subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 prohibiting discrimination based on race, color or national origin by
a recipient of Federal financial assistance in the delivery of services pursuant to
such assistance. Section 80.6(c) of 45 CPR 80 states that:

(c) Access to sources of information.
Each recipient shall permit access by the responsible Department official

or his designee . . . to such of its books, records, accounts, and other sources
of information, and its facilities as may be pertinent to ascertain compliance
with this part.

We are requesting specific information in connection with your disciplinary
practices and procedures to determine the compliance status of your school dis-
trict in the area of discipline.

Within twenty days from the receipt of this letter, your school district is re-
quested to provide this Office the following:

(a) A data display for school years 71 and 72 by secondary school and grade
level showing the reason disciplined and punishment received by race and/or
ethnic group. (,See Attachment A)

(b) A district summary for all junior high schools and separately for all senior
high schools. (See Attachment B)

(c) A narrative description of the district's disciplinary practices, policies,
and procedures including: Expulsions, suspensions, corporal or other punish-
ment; statement of general rules of conduct; who determines violations; how
are the violations determined; what standards are used; how are the standards
established,-communicated, implemented; who metes out punishment; how; what
options are available?

(d) Same as (c) above for each school.
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Within twenty days of receipt of the data submitted, your district will be noti-

fied as to the exact date representatives from this Office will begin their on-site
1,eviLw.

We appreciate your corporation in this matter.
Sincerely,

Regional Civil Right8 Director.
cc: Chief State ,School Officer.

ATTACHMENT C
District ....................

School .......... Grade level ..........
Number of minorities ........ Number of nonminorities ........

Number of
Number of Percent non- PercentReason disciplined minorities total Punishment minorities total Punishment

......................................................................................................... ..

................................................................................................ .......... .

................................... °........................................................................

.......................................................................................................... °

ATTACHMENT D
District --------------------

Junior high (senior hi h)
Number of minorities ........ Number ofnonminorities ........

Number of
Number of Percent non- PercentReason disciplined minorities total Punishment minorities tota I Punishment

........... °..................... ........................ .......... ....... ............................. °°

.................... ........ .............................................................................

.......................... ---. °. . ..................................... ................................ o....
...................... . ......... . .............. ..... . .... ................................. ......... °°.

-°-............. ............. -- °°....... .............................. -- o°°........ ...................

DECEMBER 20, 1973.
To: Regional Civil Rights Directors, Elementary and Secondary Education

Branch Chiefs.
From: Lloyd R. Henderson, Director, Elementary and Secondary Education

Division.
Subject: Student discipline.

Tie attached article which appeared in The Washington Post on Thursday,
November 29, 1973, serves to remind us of the seriousness of the push-out problem.
particularly as it is evidenced by suspension and expulsion statistics. The con-
clusion of the article that HEW needs to do more in this area is one with which
I think we can all agree. Cur limited discussion of the article at the recent branch
chiefs' meeting showed that we have done little in the area of student discipline.

Admittedly, the push-out problem goes beyond student discipline issues. I think
we have begun to address the problem to a great extent by justifiably concentrat-
ilig our resources on assuring that LEA's l)rovide equal educational opportunity
'for-ft dents, or more specifically that the practices of school districts assign-
ing minority students to lower ability groups or tracks-the educational (lead
ending of minority students-stop. Nevertheless, since we do have a new funding
cycle beginning under ESAA and since the Regulation specifically addresses
student discipline in Section 185.43(d) (4), I think with some additional effort
we can get much further in the area of correcting student discipline problems
than we have so far.

This year we have the advantage of the revised OS/(R 101 and 102 survey
forms containing information on both exlulsions and suspensions for the 72-73
s.hol year. In the past, the infornmation on suspensions has often eon difficult
to obtain because school systems' record keeping left much to he desired; now,
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there has to be some obtainable record on which the 101 and 102 information is
based. Even though the statistical information available on the 101's and 102's
is not the most complete data we could have (e.g., it is useful to know by race/
ethnicity what the duration of suspensions is since our limited experience so far
has shown that minority students are not only suspended more frequently but
are also suspended for longer periods of time), It does give an indication of the
possible disproportionate Inclusion of minority students in the district's meting
out of discipline.

Therefore, I suggest that we now use the disproportionate inclusion of minority
students as a trigger to further investigation, following as a rule of thumb,
either a significant difference between the minority students of the district and
the percentage of minority students suspended and/or expelled, or a comparison
of the minority composition of the school and the percentage of minority students
suspended and/or expelled at that school. The ESAA manual and my March 20,
1973, memorandum on student discipline cases should be adequate guides as to
what additional material to request and analyze. Obviously, you should try to
get as much mileage as possible out of what you get. We may feel that the statisti-
cal over-inclusion of minority students sets up an assumption of discrimination,
as in special education and ability grouping, but we still have to prove discrimina-
tory treatment to'establish a case.

I know we need to do more work in determining violations and providing better
guidelines for use in reviews. At headquarters, we are working to set up teams
which can lie sent into selected sites. I would like to send teams of headquarters
personnel into several regions so that we can start to develop some better guide-
lines. Please let me know by January 15, 1974 if you would like to have a team,
the site you would like investigated, and the dates you would like the Investiga-
tion to take place. I am proposing that these teams work in addition to any re-
views that can be done on student discipline by the personnel in your region. I
know you already have a great deal to do, but I know too that with some addi-
tional effort we can accomplish a great deal for minority students who are being
mistreated through the discriminatory use of disciplinary procedures.

Attachment.
INFORMATION OFFICE,
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS,

November 30, 1973.
NEWS

[From the Washington Post, Nov. 29, 19731

BLACKS TARGET OF "PUSHOUTS"
OUSTERS OF MINORITY STUDENTS BARED IN SURVEY

(By Austin Scott)
The Southern Regional Council reported yesterday that as "part of a pattern

of continuing resistance to desegregation . . . extraordinarily large and dispro-
portionate numbers of minority students have been suspended, expelled, and
induced to drop out of many desegregated school systems."

These "pushouts" have been going on across the South "for the past several
years," and "there is every reason to believe that pushouts exist throughout the
nation," the Council said.

Based in Atlanta, the council has worked to oppose racial discrimination for
30 years. In an 83-page report, prepared in conjunction with the Robert F. Ken-
nedy Memorial, an organization aiding minority youth, it said:

"The pushout problem appears to be related to major desegregation, e.l)ecially
in those school districts where desegregation is poorly handled and educators are
still committed to resistance to it . . .

"In school districts which have tended to produce pushouts. often the most
aggressive and aware black student leaders are among those removed from the
schools."

The rel)ort defines pushouts as students who "have been expelled or suspended
from school or who, because of intolerable hostility directed against them, finally
quit school."

It said discriminatory and arbitrary actions by school authorities cause most
of the lrollen, and It added that even though parents and school officials in some
areas have studied the problem, "the exact number of such students cannot cate-
gorically be measured by any means now used by educators."
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The council said schools gather statistics on dropouts, mid it has tried to

separate dropouts from pushouts, and from students expelled or suspended for
cause.

To give an Idea of the magnitude of the problem, the council cited figures from
several areas.

During the first year of major desegregation in Little Rock High Schools,
1971-72, there were 1,881 suspensions of whom 79.9 per cent-or 1,504--were
blacks.

Little Rock high schools were only 33.4 per cent black, the report said, and its
junior highs were 42.1 per cent black that year.

In St. Petersburg, Fla., suspensions rose from 3,500 in 1968-69 to 8,200 In
1970-71, with 9,500 predicted for the full 1971-72 school year, the council said.

Only 16 per cent of the St. Petersburg student enrollment is black, but blacks
made up "about half of supensions."

,Similar percentages were reported from Tampa, and from Broward County,
Fla., the report said.

Anyone trying to make a serious study of the problem lacks sources of comi-
prehensive statistics, the report said.

"The most renmrkable aspect of this lack is the small effort made by the
federal bureaucracy to assemble relevant data on post-desegregation discrimina-
tion," the council reported, said, adding:

"Despite their clear responsibility under Title 4 of the Civil Rights Act . . .
neither the Office of Education nor the Department of Health, Education and
Welfare has made a serious monitoring effort."

"The Department of HEW and the Department of Justice, mandated by the
Constitution and federal law to be the guarantors of equal educational oppor-
tunity, have largely relinquished their legal and moral functions under the Nixon
administration," turning "deaf ears and blind eyes to persistent denials of equal
protection of the laws . .

])ata collected by. HEW's Office of Civil Rights on 2,831 school districts around
the country enrolling 90 per cent of all minority students indicated "the expulsion
rate for black students was three times that for non-minority students," the report
said.

In 74 districts, it was five to 10 times and more than the rate for non-minorities.
Both HEW and the Justice Department said they could not comment on the

report until they had studied it.
"We also supplied them information and documents on the steps that the De-

partment of Justice had taken to remedy that particular problem."
There is a correlation between pushouts and dropouts, the report said, in that

many pushouts never return to the classroom.
"These figures emphasize not only that black youngsters-are out of school, but

1hat tMe public schools are failing to hol large numbers of children of all races.
with a disproportionate amount of the burden in some cities tending to fall upon
blacks," it said.

It cited figures showing that for the school year 1970-71 Mississippi had 28,447
school-age youngsters out of school. North Carolina had 29,278, and Georgia had
22,042.

"Suspensions are often imposed for reasons that do not warrant s,,ch extreme
action," It said, saying tht desegregation often puts black students into schools
dominated by white culture and tradition.

"Black students have been excluded from extracurricular activities, tracked
into segregated classes and confronted with condescension or hostility," it said.

"School confrontations are provoked through discrimination In disciplining
black students, by use of Confederate symbols, and the displacement of black
principals, teachers and coaches which leaves black students without models.

"The highly sensitive issue of bi-racial dating triggers disciplinary reaction
from school officials, often for nothing more than an innocent and casual greeting.
Dress codes and school regulations are too easily manipulated in an unfair and
arbitrary manner to restrict contemporary student lifestyles, often first intro-
duced by blacks. The curriculum remains oriented around white, middle-class,
college-bound students."

Many local school systems have become concerned enough about the problem
to study it, the report said.

Its recommendations said HEW should assign "the highest priority" to com-
pliance with civil rights standards; schools should reserve suspension and ex-
pulsion for "the most extreme violations of school rules" and apply them fairly,
a-d students and teachers should take part in the disciplinary process. -

:115-821-74-833
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The first set of papers define the available data on exl)ulsions from the cmn-

puterized analyses run on the-1972-73 survey data (expulsions for the 1971-72
school year). These definitions establish the criteria for inclusion of particular
school districts in the various tables and groupings of the analyses. The second
set of papers is a series of tables which show, by region and by compliance cate-
gories, the number of districts included in each category of the analyses. They
also show enrollments and numbers of students expelled. Each region does not
appear In each set of the tables because each region did not have districts which
met the criteria for the various groupings imposed on the data.

- ENFORCEMENT ANALYSES: 'TABLE V-ExPULSIONS

OCR' S FALL 1972 ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL CIVIL RIGHTS SURVEY
Part 1: HEW regional and State listing of districts in four groups:

Group 1: Districts where the minority students expelled were reported to
be greater than or equal to 50. or, where at least 1% of all minority students
were reported to be expelled.'

Group 2: Districts where the percent of total minority students reported
expelled is double, or greater than double, the percent of total nonrminority
students reported expelled and where at least 50 minority students were
reported expelled.-

Group 3: Districts where the percent of total minority students reported
expelled is four, or more, times greater than the percent of total nonminority
students reported expelled and where the minority expelled (ME) is reported
to be less than 50, but at least 25.

Group 4: Districts where the percent of total minority students reported
expelled is 10, or more, times greater than the percent of total nonminority
students reported expelled and where the minority expelled (ME) is reported
to be less than 25, but at least 10.1

Districts are listed by state, within this HEW region, and then by group, within
each state. For each listed district, relevant data is provided. The absence of any
state means that no districts surveyed in that state fit the criteril, for this table.

NOTES.-(1) Ignore the page numbers. (2) DI, CDI, and FI)i are defined in
Note 2 on cover page of Enforcement Analysis: Table I. (3) 'NOM-National
Origin Minority-Students are the total grouping of non-Black minority students:
American Indian, Asian (Oriental), and Spanish-surnamed students. (4) For
this table, "R" is the ratio of the percent of total minority students reported ex-
pelled, divided by the percent of total nonminority ("other") students reported
expelled. Examples: An R of 2 means that minority expulsion is double the rate
of nonminority expulsion; an R of 3 means that minority expulsion is triple, and
so forth. (Example: In X school district, 12% of all minority students were re-
ported expelled, but only 3% nonminority students. Therefore: R equals 4)
Exception: An R of 1000 means that calculation of R was not possible because
reported nonminority expulsion was 0. Caution: Hand-calculation of R may result
in slightly different results due to computer rounding and truncation of extremely
large numbers.
Part 2: HEW regional and Statc utnutaric 8

Part 2 provides two summary pages for the Region andfor every state in the
Region. The first summary page is always a "universe projection"-fan estimate
representing the -eomplete Region or state (see Note 2, below), based upon the
actual districts surveyed, these districts usually being a smaller number than
the complete universe of school districts in a state or Region. The second sum-
mary page Is always a summary of the actual survey data.

Each summary page is divided into seven categories of school district, accord-
ing to compliance category: (1) Plan, (2) Court Order, (3) Litigation, (4) 441.
(5) Plan+441, (6) Court Order+Litigation, and (7) All Categories (Total
Districts).

For each category, three lines of data are presented:
A. Total Number: All districts, schools and pupils (universe br actual) in that

category.

I School districts are examined to see if there Is disproportionate expulsion of minority
students, according to the reported numbers of students expelled. For Groups 2, 3. and 4.
the calculation of "R" (see Note 4, above) Is used as the measure of disproportion ("ME"
means minority students expelled, in the title lines for these groupings.).
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B. Topic Total: The total number of districts, schools and pupils (universe or

actual) in districts reporting more than 0 students expelled.
C. Proportion of A (line B divided by line A) : The proportion of the whole

represented by the topic total. Each proportion can be read as a percent by moving
the decimal point two spaces to the right.

NoTEs.-(1) Ignore the page numbers. (2) "Universe projections" represent
only the total universe of public school systems with 300 or more students, but
these systems contain approximately 99% of all public elementary and secondary
school students.

Part 3: National and geographic area summaries.
Part 3 provides two summary pages for the Nation and for each of the following

geographic areas:
A. North and West (32 states: Hawaii not included because not surveyed):

Alas., Ariz., Cal., Col., Conn., Ida., Ill., Ind., Iowa, Kan., Maine, Mass., Mich.,
Minn.. Mont., Neb., Nev., N.H., N.J., N.M. N.Y., N.D., Ohio, Ore., Pa., R.I., S.D.,
l'talh, Vt., Wash., Wis., Wy.

B. South and Borber (17 states plus D.C.) : See separate lists C and D.
C. South only (11 states) : Ala., Ark., Fla., Ga., La., Miss., N.C., S.C., Tenn.,

Tex., Va.
D. Border only (6 states plus D.C.) : Del., D.C., Ky., Md., Mo., Okla., W. Va.
The first summary page is always a "universe projection"-an estimate repre-

senting the complete Nation or area (see Note 2, below), based upon the actual
districts surveyed, these districts usually being a smaller number than the whole.
The second summary page is always a summary of the actual survey data. Each
summary page is divided into seven categories, of school district, according to
compliance category: (1) Plan, (2) Court Order, (3) Litigation, (4) 441, (5)
Plan+441, (6) Court Order+Litigation, and (7) All Categories (Total Districts).

For each category, three lines of data are presented:
A. Total Number: All districts, schools and pupils (universe or actual) in that

category.
B. Topic Total: The total number of districts, schools and pupils (universe or

actual) in districts reporting more than 0 students expelled.
C. Proportion of A (line B divided by line A) : The proportion of the whole

represented by the topic total. Each proportion can be read as a percent by mov-
ing the decimal point two spaces to the right.

NoTE.S.-(1) Ignore the page numbers. (2) "Universe projections" represent
only the total universe of public school systems with 300 or more students, but
these systems contain approximately 99% of all public elementary and secondary
school students.

Part 4: HEW regional and State listing of districts which did not fit the criteria
for Group 1, as outlined on the cover page for Part 1.

This Is the complement listing for Group 1-the counterpart districts to those
presented in Part 1, Group 1.

Districts are listed by state within this IIEW region. For each listed district,
relevant data is provided in the same manner as done for Part 1.

NOTS.-(1) Ignore the page numbers. (2) DI, CDI, and F1)I are defined in
Note 2 on cover page of Enforcement Analysis. Table 1. (3) NOM-National
Origin Minority--Students are the total grouping of non-Black minority students:
American Indian, Asian (Oriental), and Spanisli-surnanmed students. (4) For this
table, "R" is the ratio of the percent of total minority students reported expelled,
divided by the percent of total nonminority ("other") students reported expelled.
Examples: An R of 2 means that minority expulsion is double the rate of non-
minority expulsion; an R of 3 means that minority expulsion is triple, and so
forth. (Example: In X school district, 12% of all minority students were reported
expelled, but only 3% nonminorlty students. Therefore: R equals 4) Exception:
An R of 1000 means that calculation of R was not possible because reported non-
minority expulsion was 0. Caution: Hand-calculation of R may result in slightly
different results due to computer rounding and truncation of extremely large
numbers.

Part 4: HEW regional and State summary of districts which did not fit the
criteria for Group 2, as outlined on the cover page for Part 1.

This is the complement for Group 2-the counterpart districts to those pre-
sented in Part 1, Group 2.

Part 4 provides two summary pages for the Region and for every state i the
Region. The first summary page is always a "universe projection"-an estimate
representing the complete Region or state (see Note 2, p. 500), based upon the
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actual districts surveyed, these districts usually being a smaller number than
the complete universe of school districts in a state or Region. The second sum-
mary page is always a summary of the actual survey data.

Each summary page is divided into seven categories of school district, accord-
ing to compliance category: (1) Plan, (2) Court Order, (3) Litigation, (4) 441,
(5) Plan+441, (6) Court Order+Litigation, and (7) All Categories (Total
Districts).

For each category, three lines of data are presented.
A. Total Number: All districts, schools and pupils (universe or actual) in that

category.
B. Topic Total: The total number of districts, schools and pupils (universe or

actual) in districts characterized by the Complement.
C. Proportion of A (line B divided by line A) : The proportion of the whole

represented by the topic total. Each proportion can be read as a percent by mov-
ing the decimal point two spaces to the right.

NOTS.-(1) Ignore the page numbers. (2) "Universe projections" represent
only the total universe of public school systems with 300 or more students,but
these systems contain approximately 99% of all public elementary and secondary
school students.

FACT SHEET NO. 5A.-DISTRICTS SHOWING DISPORPORTIONATE EXPULSION OF MINORITY STUDENTS: A
[Information taken from Enforcement Analysis, OCR fall 1972 survey, table V, pt 1, gioup 2. Criteria for inclusion in thisfact sheet includes all districts listed under group 2 ("R at least 2 and ME at least 50'; this means district where thepercent of total minority students reported expelled is double, or greater than double, the percent of total nonminoritystudents reported expelled (R) and where at least 50 minority students were reported expelled (ME)I

Total
Number of Total minority Minority TotalCategory districts students students expelled expelled

REGION III
A. HEW plan ......................... 0 0 0 0 08. 441 ------------------------------ 0 0 0 0 0C. Court order ........................ 2 73, 165 38, 692 189 234D. Litigation -------------------------- 0 0 0 0 0
E. Total ........................

REGION IV
A. HEW plan .........................8. 441 ...............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

REGION V
A. HEW plan .........................
8. 441 ..............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

REGION VIA. HEW plan .........................
8. 441 ..............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

REGION VIIA. HEW plan .........................
B. 441 ..............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................

2 73,165 38, 692 189 234

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 02 146,076 56,504 161 192
0 0 0 0 0
2 146,076 56,504 161 192

0 0 0 0 0
4 153,481 43,325 320 503
0 0 0 0 01 98,076 38,997 51 60
5 251,557 82,322 371 563

1 12,190 7,803 57 65
1 60,275 18,051 70 1146 264,710 84.173 876 1,6710 0 0 0 0
8 337,175 110,027 1,003 1,850

1 57,254 11,312 96 111
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
1 57,254 11,312 96 111E. Total ........................
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FACT SHEET NO. 5B.-DISTRICTS SHOWING DISPROPORTIONATE EXPULSION OF MINORITY STUDENTS: B
information taken from Enforcement Analysis, OCR fall 1972 survey, table V, pt. 1, group 3. Criteria for Inclusion in this

fact sheet includes all districts listed under group 3, plus 2 in region 9 (Los Angeles and San Diego, Calif.) which were
erroneously listed in the computer print out (on p. 122) under a separate listing for group 1, but should have been listed
under group 3 ("R at least 4, ME less than 50, but at least 25"); this means districts where the percent of total minority
students reported expelled is 4 or more times the percent of total nonminority students reported expelled (R) and where
between 25 and 49 minority students were reported expelled (ME)

Total
Number of Total minority Minority Total

Category districts students students expelled expelled

REGION IV
A. HEW plan ......................... 2 11,325 6,187 64 70
B. 441 .............................. 0 0 0 0 0
C. Court order ........................ 4 276,596 133,981 141 173
D. Litigation .......................... 0 0 0 0 0
E. Total ....................... 6 287,921 140,168 205 243

REGION V
A. HEW plan ......................... 0 0 0 0 0
B. 441 .............................. 4 74,264 14,307 127 210
C. Court order ------------------------ 0 0 0 0 0
D. Litigation .......................... 0 0 0 0 0
E. Total ....................... 4 74,264 14,307 127 210

REGION VI
A. HEW plan ......................... 0 0 0 0 0
B. 441 ------------------------------ 1 21,006 5,336 25 31
C. Court order ------------------------ 5 - 111,263 38,461 154 228
D. Litigation .......................... 1 16, 785 3,806 29 36
E. Total ....................... 7 149,054 46,703 208 295

REGION IX
A. HEW plan ------------------------- 0 0 0 0 0
8. 441 ------------------------------ 0 0 0 0 0
C. Court order ........................ 1 620, 659 327, 356 39 45
D. Litigation .......................... 1 124, 487 32, 762 26 28
E. Total ----------------------- 2 745, 146 360,118 65 73
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FACT SHEET NO. 50.-DISTRICTS SHOWING DISPROPORTIONATE EXPULSION OF MINORITY STUDENTS: C
[Information taken from enforcement analysis, OCR fall 1972 survey, table V, pt. 1, group 4. Criteria for inclusion In this

fact sheet includes all districts listed under group 4 (except 7 districts, nationally, which met the conditon described i n
footnote 1), plus I district apiece (see footnote 2), In regions 3, 78, and 9, which should have been listed under group 4
but was erroneously listed under the wrong group heading in the computer printout (group 4 criteria: "R at least 10,
ME less than 25 butat least 10"; this means districts where the percent of total minority students reported expelled Is
10 or more times the percent of total nonminority students reported expelled (R) and where between 10 and 24 minority
students were reported expelled (ME).)

Total
Number of Total minority Minority Total

Category districts students students expelled expelled

REGION III
A. HEW plan ..........................
B. 441 ...............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total .......................

A.
B.
C.
D.

REGION IV
HEW plan .........................
441 ...............................
Court order ........................
Litigation ..........................

E. Total .......................

A.
B.
C.
D.

REGION V
HEW plan ........................
441 ..............................
Court order .......................
Litigation .........................

E. Total ......................
REGION VI

A. Hew plan ..........................
B. 441 ..............................
C. Court order .......................
D. Litigation .........................
E. Total ......................

REGION VII
HEW plan .........................441 ...............................
441tod ----------------------Court order .......................Litigation--------..............

E. Total .......................
REGION VIII

HEW plan .........................
441 ...............................
Court order ........................
Litigation ..........................

E. Total .......................
REGION IX

HEW plan .........................
441 ...............................
Court order ........................
Litigation .........................

E. Total .......................

0
1
0
0

0
3,207

0
0

0
28
0
0

0
18
0
0

0
18
0
0

1 3,207 28 18 18

2 15,186 1,712 20 29
0 0 0 0 0
8 276,759 87,791 142 158
0 0 0 0 0

10 291,945 89,503 162 187

0 0 0 0 0
. 5 44,933 9,215 67 82
. 0 0 0 0 0
. 0 0 0 0 0
. 5 44,933 9,215 67 82

1 2,374 717 12 1
0 0 0 0 4
4 100,922 38,902 76 80
0 0 0 0 0
5 103,296 39,619 88 97

0 0 0 0 0
1 4,861 709 14 22
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
1 4,861 709 14 22

0 0 0 0 0
1 91,616 38,196 19 21
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
1 91,616 38,196 19 21

0 0 ,0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
1 12,533 7,345 18 18
0 0 0 0 0
1 12,533 7,345 18 18

Note (1): The computer did not calculate R for any districts where no nonminoirty students were reported expelled
Instead, the printout shows R as 10000.00. (To calculate R, you need a minority percent expelled (ME%) and a nonminority
percent expelled (NME%): R = ME%/NME%.)Since the computer-assigned R of 10000.00 is not sufficlent indication or
disproportionate minority expulsion, a minimum possible R was calculated based on the hypothetical situation which would
have existed If the district had reported "1, nonminority student expelled, instead of "0" nonminority students expelled
For 7 dIstricts, nationally, the minimum R thus calculated was less than 10. Therefore, the following 7 districts were ex.
cluded from thIs fact sheet: region 3-Nansemond, Va.; region 4-Holly Springs, Miss., Tunica County, Miss., Kinston,
N.C.; region 5--Benton Harbor, Mich., Inkster, Mich. region 8-Eagle Butte, S. Dak.

Note (2): Region 3--Babcock, Pa.; region 7-Sikesion, Mo.; region 8-Denver, Colo.; region 9-Inglewood, Calif.

A.
B.
C.
D.

A.
B.
C.
D.

A.
B.
C.D.
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FACT SHEET NO. 5D.-DISTRICTS SHOWING DISPROPORTIONATE EXPULSION OF MINORITY STUDENTS: D

(Information taken from Enforcement Analysis, OCR fall 1972 survey, table V, pt. 1, group 1. Criteria for inclusion in this
fact sheet: Group I districts, not contained in any other group, where 10 or more minority students were expelled (exclud.
Ing 3 absurd-number 100 percent-expulsion districts and 3 districts where minorities were expelled at a lesser rate
than nonminorities; group I criteria: "Minority expelled greater than or equal 50, or, at least 1 percent minority ex -
pelled")]

Total
Number of Total minority Minority Total

Category districts students students expelled expelled

REGION II
A 1HEW plan .........................
B. 441 ...............................
C. Court order .......... . .......
D, Litigation ....... t ------------------
E. Total .......................

A.
B.
C.
D.

REGION III
HEW plan .........................
441 ...............................
Court order .......................
Litigation .........................

E. Total .......................

0
2
0
0

19,054
0
0

0
4,627

0
0

0
140
0
0

0
420
0
0

2 19,054 4,627 140 420

0
2
2
0

0
204, 548

14,695
0

0
129,992
3,734

0
4 219,243 133,726

0
153
115

0

0
345
344

0
268 689

REGION IV
HEW plan ........................
441 ...............................
Court order ........................
Litigation ..........................

E. Total .......................
REGION V

HEW plan .........................
441 ...............................
Court order ........................
Litigation .........................

E. Total .....................

A.
B.
C.
D.

REGION VI
HEW plan .......................
441 ....................
Court order .......................
Litigation ........................

E. Total ......................
REGION VII

A. HEW plan ........................
8. 441 .............................
C. Court order ......................
D. Litigation .........................
E. Total ......................

REGION VIII
A. HEW plan ......................
B. 441 ..............................
C. Court order .......................
D. Litigation .........................
E. Total .......................

REGION IX
A. HEW plan .........................
B. 441 ...............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total .......................

REGION X
A. HEW plan .........................
B. 441 ...............................
C. Court order ........................
0. Litigation ..........................
E. Total .......................

4 36,504 5,967 91 255

. 4 23,104 3,182 81 187
. 2 17,329 4,369 72 218
. 6 224,747 108,071 6,661 10,685

1 1 417 278 10 14
13 265,597 115,900 6,824 11,104

. 0 0 0 .0 0
1 1 3,925 312 10 31

. 0 0 0 0 0

. 0 0 0 0 0
1 1 3,925 312 10 31

0 0 0 0 0
3 22,837 4,019 122 458
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
3 22,837 4,019 122 458

0 0 0 0 0
3 6,456 2,281 73 154
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
3 6,456 2,281 73 154

0 0 0 0 0
1 8,557 1,420 19 67
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
1 8,557 1,420 19 67

A,
B.
C.
D.

5
2
2
0
9

A.
B.
C.
D.

76,3707,701
3, 829

0
87, 900

0
24,061
12, 443

0

199
29
44
0

272

31,3751,807
2,310

0
35,492

0
4,675
1,292

0

613
42
58
0

713

0
3
10

0
74
17
0

0
175
80
0
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FACT SHEET NO. 5E.-DISTRICTS SHOWING DISPROPORTIONATE EXPULSION OF MINORITY STUDENTS:

TOTALS
[Information taken from Enforcement Analysis, OCR fall 1972 survey, table V V. 1. Criteria for inclusion in this fact sheet:Sum of fact sheets 5A, 5B, 5C, and gDI

Total
Number of Total minorityCategory districts students students Minority Total

expelled expelled

REGION I
A. HEW plan .........................
B. 441 ...............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

REGION II
A. HEW plan .........................
B. 441 ...............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

REGION III
A. HEW plan .........................
B. 441 .............................
C. Court order .......................
D. Litigation .........................
E. Total ..................

REGION IV
A. HEW plan .........................
3. 441 ...............................

0. Court order .......................
D. Litigation ..........................

7 295,615 172,446

9
2

16
0

102,881
7,701

703, 260
0

39,2741,807
280,586

0
E. Total ........................

REGION V
A. HEW plan ........................
B. 441 ..............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

27 813,842 321,667

0
161
1

0
296, 739

12,44398,076
0

71,522
1,292

38,997
18 407,258 111,811

712
42

581
0

800 1,335

0 0
588 - 970

17 80
51 60

656 1,110
REGION VI

A. HEW plan .........................
B. 441 ...............................
C. Court order ------------------------
D. Litigation .........................
E. Total .......................

REGION VIIA. HEW plan ........................
8.441 ------------------------------
C. Court order .......................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

REGION VIII
A. HEW plan ........................
8. 441 ..............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

REGION IX
A. HEW plan .........................
B.441 ...............................
C. Court order ........................
D. Litigation ..........................

4 114,453 42,215

0
3
2
1

E. Total ........................

0
6,456

633,192
124,487

0
2,281

334,701
32,762

6 764,135 369,744
REGION X

A. HEW plan .........................
8.441 .................................
C. Court order .......................
D. Litigation ..........................
E. Total ........................

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
2
0
0
2

0
3
4
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
19,054

0
0

19,054

0
207, 655
87,860

0

0

0
0
0
0
0'

0
4,627

0
0

4,627

0
130, 020

42,426
0

0
140

0
0

140

0
420

0
0

420

0
171
304

0

0
363
578

0
475 941

283
29

488
0

6
4

21
2

33

1
2
0
0

37,668
98,610

701, 642
17,202

855,122

57,254
8,786

0
0

150
167

7,767
39

8,123

266
36312,667
50

13,346

11,702
27,756269,607
4,084

313,149

11,312
1,021

0
0

12,333-

0
42,215

0
0

3 66,040

96
24
0
0

111
53
0
0

0
4
0
0

120

0
114, 453

0
0

164

0
141

0
0

0
479

0
0

141 479

0
73
57
26

0
154
63
28

0
1
0
0

156

0
8,557

0
0

245

0
1,420

0
0

0
19
0
0

0
67
0
0

1 8,557 1,420 19 67
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Mrs. CiiisiiorL). Our next witness is Mr. Hayes Mizell, director of
'South Carolina Community Relations program of the American
Friends Service Committee, and Member, Columbia, S. C., School
Board.

STATEMENT OF M. HAYES MIZELL, DIRECTOR, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMMUNITY RELATIONS PROGRAM OF THE AMERICAN FRIENDS
SERVICE COMMITTEE, AND MEMBER, COLUMBIA, S.C., SCHOOL
BAND
Mr. MIZELL. I am here representing the South Carolina Com-

munity Relations program. Obviously much of what I have-to say
will draw upon my experience as a school board member, but I am
not here representing my school district. I can't speak for my school
district or my school board.

I think the subject we are discussing today is a significant one and
in my judgment there is no question but that there is a direct rela-
tionship between the whole problem of suuspensions and expulsions
and the whole problem of juvenile delinquency.

During the 1972-73 school year in South Carolina a total of 39,491
students were suspended or expelled at least once. During the current
school year in my district a total of 5,477 students have received
short-term suspensions for a total loss of 14,622 school days. This
is just up to April 25, 1974. We know that such an extensive use
of short-term suspensions, whereever they are used, results not only
in escalating the academic problems of those students who are
already behind in their work, but also causes a greater disillusion-
ment with the school system and encourages students to drop out.

In addition to these short-term suspensions, Richland No. 1 has
expelled 32 students, 52 have received maximum long-term sus-
pensions (for the remainder of the school year), and 22 ha ve
received long-term suspensions but have returned to school after
being out for a period beyond 10 days.

Basically what I want to say is twofold: the problem is more
complex than just one. of discrimination being a cause of expulsions
and suspensions, and I think if we are going to be very honest in
dealing with this problem, we have to realize that complexity.
Second, if we are going to deal with this problem, the school districts
have the responsibility to work with those students and keep them
in school.

We need to be, yes, pushing them to see they are living up to that
responsibility and providing them with both resources and alterna-
tive. models as to how to do that.

I think in some respects we can draw a parallel between this
experience we are going to have in suspensions and expulsions and in
desegregation. TIhere were some people we had to take to court to
get schools desegregated, there are many people who went the total
route. Many of these enforcing desegregation many times had to
show them how to do it.

Our lawyers, in many instances, were drawing zone lines. If we
say to school districts, "Okay, you have the problem; you have to



512

deal with it," we can't be sure they will know what to do with it.
For that reason, we have to focus on some alternatives.

First let me allude to the problem first of discrimination and
there is a problem of unreasonableness. Everything that has been
said here in a sense can be summed up by a sentence in a handbook
distributed in South Carolina, which reads:

It is a privilege to attend school. Students who will not act, speak, dress,and react in a manner acceptable to the- school administration will not be
permitted to continue in school.

To me that pretty well sums up the aspect of the school as an
authoritarian.

I have developed a continuum of undesirable behavior. What I
have done is to try to indicate at various points of that continuum,.
acts b7 students which could result in suspension or expulsion.
The first would be (1) acts by a student which are well within
tfie bounds of generally recognized and accepted expressions of civil
liberties and human and civil rights but which may be offensive
to a teacher or an administrator. The school's disciplinary action
may be based on racial or sex prejudice but it may not be challenged
because of fear, lack of information, or lack of legal resouruces.
In such cases the power of the authorities and the powerlessness of
the students and parents means that such disciplinary actions can
and will continue.

Then we can move to acts which violate an unlawful school rule
-or policy. This depends on the State law, the judicial circuit you are
in, the dress code or having to drop cut of school because you are
married or pregnant.

- Then we move to acts which violate a school rule which are not
unlawful, but may be determined unreasonable, such as holding
hands, wearing a hat running to hnch. These are things which
an administrator felt, "Well, we really ought not. to have this."

Then we have acts which may not infringe upon the acts of other
students such as being tardy, cutting a class, the use of expletives,
it might be illeg-al parking, et cetera. This may disrupt the school
or cause a problem, but in and of itself it does not.

Mrs. CHISHOLr. The chairman just entered. He wants to make.
a few remarks.

Chairman PERKINS. First, I want to congratulate the gentlelady
from N~w York for conducting these hearings which are essential
to the welfare of the people in this country. I know of no individual
more interested in protecting the rights of all the people than Mrs.
Chisholm. That holds true to all the members here today-Mr. Bell,.
Mr. Lehman, and Mr. Benitez. I personally am involved in a
meeting at this time in connection with the handicap program. But
I felt this meeting was so important that I should come by and let
Mrs. Chisholm know of my interest and know I am 100 percent
behind her in anything she recommends.

I just want to compliment all of you for conducting those hearings.
I hope wyou can come up with some solutions that will solve this.,

problem. Thank yoti.
Mrs. CIIISHOL31. Thank you for dropping by.
Mr. Mizell, you may continue.
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Mr. MIz EL. Aside from those acts which may or may not cause
some problem, there are those which depend on the discretion of
the administrator or the teacher. This includes things like repeated
small violations, whatever those are, disrespect, a phrase like any
misconduct. These things are highly judgmental.

Then we move into the area where the student does commit an
act which does disrupt the school or interferes with someone's rights.

That may include fighting, acting out, disturbing another class-
room.

Then moving on to acts which may be unlawful as to State law
such as possession of a weapon, blackmail, assault, severe verbal
abuse, et cetera.

In other words, we-move through those clearly discriminatory to
those which appear to me to be clearly criminal. I know as a school
board member, I find myself having to sort out what acts fall where
on the continuum.

Mr. Holmes indicated there is the question of what is clearly
justifiable on the part of the school administration and what is
clearly arbitrary and perhaps prejudicial and that sort of thing.
As I have indicated, these tend to result in a great number of
suspensions and expulsions from when the school is clearly in the
wrong to where the school may be in the right.

One of the methods used is the use of short-term suspensions by
officials, under 5 days. The short-term suspension is now widely
used. I don't think you can argue that it is a useful tool. You ought
to be thinking of abandoning the tool and dealing with the problem
in some other manner.

The problem with the short-term suspension is that it is given
to get the attention of the parent. You send the child home and the
parent is then responsible for his whereabouts.

Mr. LEHMAN. Do you suspend for truancy?
Mr. MIZELL. For cutting class, although it may be the same.
Mr. LEIIMAN. You reward him for cutting class?
Mr. MIZELL. Yes. I mention that in here as a matter of fact, but

the short-term technique makes an assumption that we know is not
correct, that is that there is always going to be a parent at home
who will be able to come to school to talk to the administrator.

Mr. BELL. May I interrupt here? You did not mention the use
of dr.ugs.

Mr. MIZELL. That is in my last criminal area.
Mr. BELL. Smoking marijuana?
Mr. MIZELL. I don't want to get into a discussion on that but

that is in my last category.
My point is, if we keep using these disciplinary techniques which

are not doing any good, why should we continue to use them ?
There is a dynamic that takes place in thd school room which Mrs.
Chisholm and others are aware of. You have this teacher who has
a problem with a student. So what does she do with that student?
She sends him to the administrative office. In South Carolina, and
all over, there are people designated as the assistant principal.
Practically their whole job is to handle disciplinary problems. They
become a sort of self-fulfilled prophecy. The teacher realizes there
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is somebody down the hall to handle discipline so she sends the
student down there.

Mr. LEHMAN. Do you do paddling?
Mr. MIZELL. Yes:
Mr. LEHMAN. All the way up to the 12th grade?
Mr. MIZELL. No. In the State law there is a provision for corporal

punishment, but in our school district, after reviewing all dis-
ciplinary provisions in the State, ours is the best. There is no mention
of corporal punishment.

Mr. LEHMAN. Do you paddle in your school district?
Mr. MIZELL. Yes.
Mr. LEHMAN. Up through how many grades?
Mr. MIZELL. Through 7 and 8 grades it starts dropping off and

as one high school principal told me, "I would be a fool to put my
hands on one of these kids." As a matter of pragmatism, they are
not going to attempt corporal punishment because they know what
will happen.

Mr. LEHMAN. Do you paddle girls?
Mr. MIZELL. I am sure somebody does.
Mfr. LEHMAN. I just wonder, because I have been a school board

member in Miami and I know the problems.
~_~M. MIZELL. When we redid our code, I wanted to have it spelled

out in binding terms but we did not make it.
Mr. LEHMAN. Do you give kids a choice of getting paddled or

suspended?
Mr. MIZELL. I am not sure about that.
Mr. LEHMAN. There are many questions you can dig up on this.
Mr. MIZELL. Yes, once you start probing. When you get to school

boards and superintendents, the attitude is what are we supposed
to do? How do we deal with this problem? We can't be expected
to solve all of society's problems. By and large very little creative
attention has been given to the search for alternatives and that is
what I would hope this bill would prompt.

In my written statement I have tried to suggest some things which
might be done. Some I am sure are being done; some are my own
ideas. We have identified part of the problem as being the teachers-
some who have hangups and some who have problems with dealing
with difficult kids. It seems there might be some who would benefit
by having a teacher ombudsman who might conduct a number of
classes a day, then have the rest of her day free to consult with
teachers having problems. She could discuss ways of handling the
problem without suspending the child and also develop a training
program for the system.
-_ We have found oftentimes new teachers are the ones who might
have difficult problems presented to them. They react wrong or
don't know how to spot danger signals, so they get themselves in
trouble. One thing we can do is have a sort of referral center in
the school. When it is determined the child must be removed, there
could be a room which could be designated as a cricis resource
center and I would put in that center a teacher, a psychologist and
that is going to cost you some money.

If you had a plac6 for a kid to go where he had to keep up with
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his work instead of being suspended 3, 4 or 5 days, that might help.
We don't have anything like that in my district. We have detention
halls, which is different. I think the whole question of alternative
schools within the school system needs to be explored.

There are an increasing number of school systems which have
facilities where students on suspension are being sent. I have some
questions and fears about those schools, but it is a system which
needs to be monitored and evaluated. I am sure you are aware there
is a possibility that such schools can become institutional warehouses
for minority students.

The quality of instruction is not comparable to the other schools
and so forth. But I think that is going to be tried more and more
and we need to provide the resources and regulations which might

,. nakeL-ose, successful.
Then I think we need a program which I call the community of

laws. I think you could do that now with the LEAA funds. There
are obviously people in the school systems now who don't under-
stand what their rights and obligations to the students are and there
are students who don't understand what their obligations are.

I think I would really like to see an effort made to establish a
lawful community within the school. I think this involves a tremen-
dous educational effort but besides just having legal education in
the classroom, I think it needs to be translated into the dynamics
of how that school operates in terms of its student government and
disciplinary competence and this sort of thing.

I have no illusions that is not difficult to do, but I think it is
possible if people want to do it. I also think it is valuable because
if we can't establish some understanding of law and legal processes
and then I have some concern as to how students will apply that
when they go into the community.

As to coordination, I say-there ought to be a kind of council of
agencies so there is a regular meeting of the family groups. and
groups such as the welfare department, NAACP, and so forth. so
they can get a comprehensive handle on the problems of a particu-
lar child.

Then another thing we don't make enough of an effort to identify
teachers or administrators who can work with kids who have prob-
lems. What I would like to see is a program in which we try to
recruit, identify, and encourage such people to receive additional
professional development so they can become teachers. I don't. care
if they are community workers or aides or what., but identify the
people who have some moxie with children who have problems.

I think there are other things we can do like having student
ombudsmen helping students who have a particular problem in
school and help then with it before it leads to some act of disrup-
tion and that sort of thing.

A couple of other comments-one is maybe you can put some
kind of bill of rights into that act but at least no money under this
act should go to a school system which does not have a student
code of responsible law, under Federal and State case law, applicable
to that particular area. I hope we also are not going to make some
of the mistakes we made with ESA, that is we supplant some laws,
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the title I money with ESA, and make like it is all the same thing.
A hard look needs to be taken at what comes in as a curriculum
innovation. I know school systems well enough so they can rationalize
what that is and they end up supplanting one program with another.

Finally I would say particularly in reference to some of the things
Mrs. Chisholm asked-there really is no pressure and I am sure
through a process of education developing case law in the whole area
of student rights, that pressume may accelerate, but there needs to
be some pressure. There are school officials out there who don't like
to kick kids out of school. I serve on a school board made up of very
conservative gentlemen. When we have to deal with a student who
has assaulted a teacher, those men don't like the prospect of putting
that kid out on the street, yet there are no alternatives.
. Mrs. CHISHOLM. I was wondering if Mr. Mizell would be able
to stay until five until twelve. We have two witnesses and I would
like to hear from these two witnesses.

Now we will hear from Miss Diana Jones, staff member, NAACP
Legal Defense Fund, and Robert F. Kennedy Memorial fellow,
Chapel Hill, N.C.

STATEMENT OF DIANA ONES, STAFF MEMBER, NAACP LEGAL
DEFENSE FUND AND ROBERT F. KENNEDY MEMORIAL FELLOW,
CHAPEL HILL, N.C.
Ms. JONES. Congressman Hawkins, distinguished members of the

Subcommittee on Equal Opportunities, ladies and gentlemen. Let
me preface my remarks today by expressing gratitude to you for
allowing me to appear before this important committee. Those of
us working in the area of students' rights appreciate your continued
concern and support.

My name is Diana Jones. I appear before you today as a Robert
F. Kennedy Memorial fellow, assigned to the NAACP Legal De-
fense and Educational Fund, Inc., to work on a students' rights
project in North Carolina.

During the past 16 months I have traveled to over 20 districts in
North Carolina where I have looked into the pushout problem. I
have also considered the juvenile couurt system. During this period
I worked with lawyers, students, parents, and community organi-
zations.

As I understand it, the purpose of these hearings is to focus on
the pushout dilemna, the problems of those who are the victims of
racial discrimination or arbitrary actions of school authorities.

Initially, I would like to offer a definition of the student pushout.
The pushout is "the student who through discriminatory treatment
is excluded from school, or else is so alienated by the hostility of the
school environment that he or she leaves on his or her own accord."
Although we usually refer to suspensions and expulsions when -we
speak of pushouts, we should include ability groupings, exclusions
from extracurricular activities, tracking, dress codes, and school fees
in the realm of discriminatory tactics.

I have identified a number of in-school problems which have led
to, or have the potential for creating, pushouts. The disproportionate



517

assignments of black pupils to special education classes is wide-
spread. Sometimes black students are put into these classes without
any testing or evaluation whatever. It is not unusual to find special
ed classes which are all black. This issue is in court in a case in North
Carolina against the Duplin County Board of Education whose
superintendent stated in his deposition that the racial aspect of the
special education program has a direct connection with the pre-
viously segregated school system. Complaints about segregated spe-
cial ed classes have been filed with HEW.

And I might mention there has been inaction with regard to re-
plies to my complaints. I have not received any replies to my requests
whatever.

Segregated extracurricular activities, corporal punishment, harass-
ment of black youths by teachers and principals and the dismissal
of black teachers are other problems. Sometimes these concerns .have
been expressed in protests or demonstrations by black students which
have led to dismissals and/or arrests. In one instance several young
boys from Edenton were arrested and sent to one of the State prison
camps prior to any adjudicatory hearings or indictments.

Many county jails in eastern North Carolina do not have facilities
for juveniles, male or female. In practice, contrary to law, juveniles
are commonly detained beyond the 5-day limit prior to a hearing.
One case in point involved several black students who were arrested
and detained for over 5 days in Raleigh following a fight which
broke out between some black and white students at a junior high
school there. These same students were notified on the day of their
court hearing that they were expelled from school for the remainder
of the school year.

Oftentimes black students with legitimate complaints, who sought
to express them in peaceful ways be requested meetings with school
officials were denied an ~~pression of their grievances, and indeed
were punished for assuming the initiative in open forums. There is
a case in court now in Sampson County were black students gathered
in the gym for a meeting with the principal and other school officials.
They were not allowed to express their grievances and every student
present at that meeting was suspended.

Over 300 student.; in the Pitt County school system, 90 percent of
this number black, were suspended indefinitely for failure to pay
school fees. No attempts were made to discover whether parents were
indigent or whether valid reasons were present for the nonpayment
of the required fees.

The inherent inequities and injustices of this same school system
are seen again in the rigidly enforced policy of expulsion for preg-
nant students and any male that admits any responsibilty therefor.
We noted that 54 of the 63 females who were out due to pregnancy
in the first half of the 1973-73 school year were black.

I found the comparative ratios between black and white expul-
sions and suspensions in Person County to be striking. The black
students are not allowed the minimal requirements of due process.
Several black students were told by their principal at the beginning
of the 1973-74 school year that they were "on his list." These same
students have subsequently been expelled.
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Another student who was a junior attending a Person County
school last year was expelled after violating a vague probation state-
ment which his mother had signed earlier that year. He returned to
school at the beginnning of the 1973-73 school term and after 8 days
of school, was suspended for allegedly saying "shit" to an instruc-
tor. His mother returned to school with him and was requested to
sign another probation agreement regarding her son. She refused,
based on her experience of the previous year. Because of such re-
fusal, the son was expelled. An LDF attorney requested a hearing
for the boy which was denied. Subsequently, the youth joined the
armed services along with another black male who was pushed out
around the same time.

A black male student in the first grade in Hickory, N.C., was
expelled from the entire school system permanently without- any
form of due process. The superintendent of the school system stated,
"It is the opinion of the administration that he's so severely afflicted
by mental and emotional problems that he cannot substantially profit
from the instruction in the school system." Some members of the
black community became intensely concerned and secured an LDF
attorney who requested a hearing. After several hearings, the child
was readmitted.

In Wilson, N.C., a frail 12-year-old boy was pumnielled by the
school principal, and finally kicked out, onto the concrete sidewalk.
The principal's alleged reason for the expulsion was that upon hit-
ting the sidewalk, the boy called the principal a "bald headed son-
of-a-bitch." This child wa's later tested and it was discovered that he
is exceptionally bright contrary to the school officials' belief that
he was a slow learner. His mother was told that arrangements were
supposedly being made for the boy's enrollment in a special school
for the gifted. However, at present, this youth is walking the streets.
The lack of due process, supposedly a guaranteed right of every
American citizen, youth or adult, is *noticeably lacking in all of the
previously mentioned incidents.

A demerit system is noted in some of the schools-a system admin-
istered discriminately against blacks. An accumulation of demerits
results in suspension. Included within the category of acts acciunulat-
ing demerits are tar(lies. In some schools. I have found an accumula-
tion of tardies often result in suspension.

I have found that. usually there are no formal codes, of conduct,
and in schools where they're existent., the school officials do not
follow them in determining violations. Although I found that some
of the things that happen to blacks happen to whites, there are many
other things that never happen to whites. Blacks clearly are vic-
timized disproportionately.

Many schools discriminate against black students in their extra-
curricular activities. Cases abound where cheerleaders were selected
in a manner which assures a white majority. Other instances involve
the suspension of blacks on a majority black varsity basketball team
because of their boycott made in expression of their concern on racial
issues. Other actil:ities have been found to be all white. A case in
point exists in the Hickory High School swim team. Since the team
practices at. the all-white hickory Foundation Center, which is pri-
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vate and open by membership card only, blacks are effectively
excluded.

I will be glad to provide further information on any of the matters
mentioned in this presentation.

I respectfully make the following recommendations for considera-
tion by this committee:

1. That legislation be adopted requiring school districts to enact
districtwide codes of conduct that meet Supreme Court and other
Federal court standards which would include what specific acts con-
stitute a violation of the code, what penalties may be imposed for
each violation, and specific statements of procedural rights for
students.

2. That additional and better reporting forms be sent to the Office
of Civil Rights concerning ir,-school matters.

3. That any school practice that has an apparent racially adverse
impact must be justified by the school district.

4. That students should not be required to pay school fees and that
no practice be allowed which will result in the exclusion of students
from programs and activities within school, or school itself.

5. That all districts in all States must be required to provide an
appropriate education for all children.

Members of this committee, I appreciate your kind attention and
concern.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Thank you very much, Miss Jones. It is people
like you that we certainly need to move out into leadership. You are
to be congratulated. I am sure members of the committee have ques-
tions of you but we will first hear our last witness this morning, Mr.
Samuel Etheridge.

Welcome, Mr. Etheridge.

STATEMENT OF SAMUEL ETHERIDGE, DIRECTOR, TEACHER
RIGHTS, NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, WASHINGTON,
D.C.; ACCOMPANIED BY GEORGE W. JONES, DR. BOYD BOSMA,
AND DONALD SHIRE

lMr. EiIERIDG.E. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am
Sam Etheridge, director of Civil and Ihuman Rights Programs, for
the National Education Association. With me are )r. George 1T.
,Jones. manager of IHiuman Relations Programs, Dr. Boydl Bosma,
coordinator of Civil Liberties, and Donald Shire, staff associated in
the Teacher Rights Office. These persons have special knowledge of
the "Pushout Problem" and other matters of interest to the com-
mittee.

The NEA as you know is a professional; independent, noprofit
organization made up of 1.4 million members who afe primarily
classroom teachers in public schools and institutions of higher learn-
ing in all the States, territories,.and Department of Defense over-
seas schools.

We wish to thank the committee and staff for calling these hear-
ings and for allowing us to present testimony.

Since the major duty of the Teacher Rights Office is to defend and
protect the rights of our members (the teachers), some people may
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be surprised that we are here today in the interest of the civil and
human rights of students. But this problem is in the interest of
teachers. lost teachers are quite upset about what is happening to
students throughout the nation, but especially in some recently de-
segregated schools. As a matter of fact this matter was first brought
to our attention by one of the most devoted teacher advocates in
America, Joe Ree associate secretary of Alabama Education As-
sociation.

In a phone call to me in December, 1971, Mr. Reed pointed out
that while we are doing a good job of protecting teachers in his
State, no one was helping the "push outs."l He described the typical"push out" as follows:

Above the maximum compulsory age, male, black, a national leader, unsub-
missive, somewhat aggressive.

The public schools in Alabama had no place for these students 16
years old, even if it was a week before graduation. This differs from
students who are law breakers or have other problems. I would ask
the committee to separate this push-out from the normal drop-out
which we have.

At the suggestion of people like Leon Hall, who has already testi-
fied, in January 1972, we called representatives in the south, Urban
League, SCLC, American Friends, and many other groups who met
with us as well as Commissioner Goldberg and some of his assistants.
So, HEW has been aware of this problem for quite a long length
of time.

The major result of this meeting was that we tried to get some-
one who would coordinate bits of information. My associate, Don
Shire, was assigned to that. All we did was take newspaper clippings
and reports from people and put together the information which
came to us over this period of time.

I have brought an exhibit and I would just ask you to examine
this. It points out these suspensions have nothing to do with mari-
juana and being late to class. Most of it is related to the rights of
students to protest. It is all here and is part of the record. So we
would like to keep that clear in terms of what we are talking about.

Following that meeting there were a number of activities which
took place.I refere you to a memo, an exhibit marked A-2. It gives
you an idea as to how we have tried to bring this to.the attention of
people we thought ought to be solving the problem. Shortly after
that we had enough material to amount to what would be a national
publicity campaign. Two of the first people to respond to this were
Nicholas Van 1hoffman in his national syndicated column, Jet Maga-
zine, the UPI, and AP and all others.

I brought along as exhibit B a copy of the news stories which were
released at that time. For all practical purposes I think this is just
sort of a horror story of the kinds of things which have taken place.

Shortly after this publicity we began to get calls from California
and other places and from alienated white students who say, "This
is not just a southern phenomena; this happened to us, too.;

We sought Federal assistance and I think the people who testified
here earlier indicated that in response to requests from the various
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organizations they did begin to develop forums to see what was
going on.

One other thing I would like to bring your attention to: In Feb-ruary 1973, a group of black education leaders met with HEW
Assistant Secretary, Sidney Marland, Acting Education Commis-
sioner Ottina and other high office of Education officials to discuss
developing alternative educational opportunities for young people
who have been permanently expelled from schools and to talk about
possible action by the Office of Education to prevent arbitrary s,'d
capricious expulsions.

'The group left the meeting hopeful that some pilot programs
would be established. Despite the fact that some viable proposals
have been made, the Office of Education has not seen fit to establish
programs to protect students' rights either through its own staff or
through contracts with other groups. Even programs proposed and
advocated by HEW's own staff including some at the assistant secre-
tary level, hiave not been approved. Dr. Marland's departure from
HEW may have contributed to this failure on the part of TIEW
to actively, and adequately respond to this matter.

As exhibit C, we have here a number of letters written by Federal
officials which indicate they had an interest and there was a com-
mitment made at that time.

This was such a big issue that in February 1973, under the guiid-
ance of Dr. Jones here. there was a national conference on student
expulsions. One of the key speakers was Mr. Julian Bond. Repre-
sentative from Georgia, and the Chicano activist, John Aragon from,
I believe, Los Angeles and other people and people other than
push-outs.

These were students who were in jails and detention homes and
students which were referred to physically present in class but ex-
cluded from the educational process.

The conference endorsed many of the principles and ideas discussed
at the Congressional Black Caucius' Education Conference, including
the following: Expansion of child development services; Develop-
mental rather than custodial programs; Child development services
provided as a right; Encouragement of educational reform and in-
novation, and some consumer control of public education.

The figures speak for themselves.
This document T call No. E. It is a 1971 survey of minority ex-

pulsions from the HEW statistics.
The next report is 1972-73 data. This report is far from complete

but is based on 20 of the largest districts, 20 districts which have
large black populations. I do think what it will reveal will be very
important. In the 20 districts embodied by this survey, approxi-
mately 125,000 suspensions-approximately 90,000 of those are black
students.

The larger cities are not included in this report. I do think this
will double when the complete report is in. It is interesting to note
there are two cities-Atlanta and Kansas City-which show a
slightly lower number of minority students expelled than others. It
does seem maybe somebody is doing something right.

I would like to call your attention to the fact, back to the South
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again, most of these districts did away with the compulsory attend-
ance law. There is no compulsory attendance law there and just to
look at the report of the Mississippi Department of Education 1972,
it shows over 200,000 students of school age just disappeared. They
are not attending either public or private schools according to their
records.

Even though the data is incomplete, I think the samples of reports
which have been given provide enough information to indicate that
a serious crisis exists in many school systems of the nation both
North and South. And while on the surface, the South seems more
oppressive to minorities, I would urge the committee to reserve judg-
ment on that until an indepth study has been done on the extent towhich the north puts its "push outs" in juvenile homes, special
schools for the disruptive and detention homes.

We have not come here today to ask for any new laws. We would
be very appreciative for enforcement of laws on the books. The poor
can't afford the lawyers it takes to go into court to defend their
rights. The protection of rights can't be left to private organizations.

All we can do is scream real loud and come over hear and talk to
you ladies and gentlemen in Congress.

I think there should be a Students' Rights and Protection Office
in JIEW whose duty it is to lookout for rights of students and in
each Department of Public Instruction as well as in the major school
systems.

We are talking not just about minority rights. We are talking
about children without regard to race. I know that many things have
happened to white children as with our own children. I have met
with them and am advised that we need to have these offices staffed
with persons interested in justice and fair play. We ought to prove
that school systems ought to be fair and should offer justice.

Special funds should be made avail-able to colleges and juniorcolleges so they can set up programs aimed at giving the push-
outs a. second chance.

Finally, I would like to agree with Hayes Mizell as to some kind
of studeit rights which would say just because a student happens to
be 16 or 21, he is still a citizen and is entitled to rights.

111rs. CHISHIOLAt. Thank you very. very much.
There are quite a number of things which are quite clear. 'e can

no longer in this nation ignore the student push-out problem. This
is a real problem and has a great deal to do with what the future of
education is going to be like in terms of education, not only in the
South but in the North.

I want to thank all of you for coming here this morning. Now at
this point, we will give the members of the committee an opportunity
to ask a few questions. We will call on Mr. Lehman first.

Mr. LMAN. Do you think any of the funds in this program
should be applied toward school security personnel as a preventive
technique ?

Mr. MIZELL. NO.
Mr. LmiHVAN. Should we include a provision for the hiring of stu-

dents similar to that for the kinds of people we hire as cafeteria
personnel?
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Mr. MIzEUL. You might do something like that, yes.
Mr. LEHMAN. Do you favor the right of a teacher to remove a

disruptive child from a classroom where the teacher could send
him out, but the principal could send him back? In other words, does
the teacher have a right not to teach a certain child that he can't
seem to control? Where do you stand on that.

Mr. ETHERIDGE. As a former principal, I took the position that
we paid the teacher to know more than the kid and if he came to my
office, he had just given up. He would have to negotiate his way
back to the class and excuse his problem unless it was a very serious
problem.

If there is somewhere you can send a kid, they will send him.
Mr. MIZELL. What I am saying is there needs to be an alternative

created. If you put it in those cold, yes and no terms, what we are
going to find are teacher organizations on the wrong side of this
issue.

Mr. LEHmAN. I have never seen any real statistics but I will bet
you that 95 percent of the kids expelled were expelled by maybe
not more than 10 percent of the teachers. I know in our schools,
most of the paddling was done in 8 to 10 percent of the schools.
Most of the expulsions were coming from a certain number of schools.
I think until you find where the pushout is coming from, you
won't remove the pushout effort. Somewhere along the line you have
to identify the kind of students, but it is the faculty that causes the
problems. It is a two-way street.

Mr. ETIIERIDGE. The difference between the ordinary discipline
problems and massive -suspension is based primarily on race and
denies the student the right to protest. I think the newspaper ac-
counts which have come to our attention indicate a separation.

Mr. LEIIrAN. What happens in adult education, where the kid is
15 or 16, expelled from the regular class, admitted to go back after
6 months into an adult education class. All of a sudden he is no
longer a problem. Something happens which keeps that person f roi
being a behavior problem. I think we are going to need funds to r'e-
educate a teacher who has been teaching in a certain type of environ-
ment for many years, then all of a sudden has to deal with a completely
different situation. Some can cope; some cannot. It, is a real problem.

I will yield the balance of my time to Mr. Benitez.
Mr. BENrrEz. No questions. 1 yield all my time to the Chairladv.
Mrs. CISHOLM. There is a correlation between the high proportion

of pushout among minority youngsters and the proportion of minor-
ity teachers in many areas of this country. I am wondering if per-
haps that is the root of the difficulty. Originally, the common school
system was developed for a-certain type of student or certain types
of immigrants who came here. Those who because teachers came
from a certain background and received a certain education. Then
years later all over this country, large minority populations began
to move into the larger cities. We heard in testimony this morning
about the large number of minorities who go to school in the large
cities and it would seem to me, as I said earlier, that we have to
begin to make changes in the teacher education programs in this
country, so that the teacher who comes from one kind of background
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and has never had any relationships or experiences with persons
from another background, does not come into the large city teaching
situation not knowing what to expect, because she has not been
trained.

Having been an educator myself in New York City, I find part of
the difficulty is the fear and the lack of understanding and sensitivity
on the part of many of those teachers to the new kinds of children
found in inner city schools all over our country.

Mr. ETHERIDGE. I would like to react to a part of your statement.
I think aside from the educational reasons why we need to have

people to take care of the situations we have, there is the lack of
somebody to emulate, the hopelessness when one realizes that even
going to school, "I can't become a teacher."

At least in the southern districts at one time they saw they could
become teachers and preachers. Then when teachers were removed,
a lot of the incentive for studying was removed.

I would like to say with regard to teachers, nonminority, many
of them are also sensitive and are intimidated by communities. Our
record, especially in the southern region, show white teachers who
have concern for black students are often dismissed themselves.
We have the case of two teachers in Mississippi, you probably
read about in the papers, who received $20,000 in back pay forhaving been fired. I can cite examples in other States, but I wouldsay that many nonminority teachers are also sensitive, but perhaps
someone like Dr. Jones, who has been a dean of education, might
have a better idea of teacher education systems.

Dr. JONES. I would simply like to underscore the point whichhas been made several times for teacher education institutions to
feed into the process those elements which would make individuals
more appreciative of the culture and background of the studentsthey may have to teach. Whether racial, cultural or economic-
there is the whole difference. There is the problem as to the sensi-
tivity of the teachers.

Mr. LEIIMAN. Teacher training institutions-I think that is part
of the problem.

Mrs. CHISHOLMr. Miss Jones, do you have any reaction to some
of the comments we have been making?

Ms. JONES. I have been thinking about another recommendation
I would like to bring out at this point. I would like to see the
Federal Government do something or make some type of commit-ment regarding young people and the problems they are having
with the schools now.

I know in some instances, I have been the only person to go
into some of the places I have gone into within the past 3 or 4years. I was the first person they have seen to come in and helpthem with their problem. Young people often feel they have nobody
to turn to and I think it is time to make a commitment to do
something and see that something is done.

When you think of making laws, young people think of lawsas infringing on them, keeping them from doing their thing, but
never as being on their side.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. At this time I would like to introduce Con-
gressman Young.
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Mr. YOUNG. I am sorry I did not get here in time for the testi-
iony but this is a subject I have been interested in since I was

in third grade and got put out of school. The interesting thing
is that the other guy who got put out at the same time never
got back. The difference was my daddy had a good job and my
mother was able to come see about me. His mother was a maid
and never able to come.

I did not see him again until I was a lifeguard during my last
year in college. He came in as a heroin addict and almost drowned.

He was concerned even then about writing a book about his life
and even though I had been through all the schools and colleges
I had been through, at that time writing a book had never dawned
on me. So it was obvious he had more intelligence than I had.
I guess that is my concern about this problem.

The other thing is this was a segregated school. I always had a
grudge against that principal and I always thought the pushout
phenomena is based as much on class and intelligence as it is on
race.

I have spoken before groups at prisons and universities. I have
found the level of discussions and interest in the prison was far
greater than that which I found at the university. The intelligent
black male is the one most apt to get put out. In every instance in
Atlanta, the more aggressive and intelligent kids are the ones being
put out of school. That is probably as much by black teach~rs--s-
by whites.

The whole authoritarian structure comes down to poor people
with creative intelligence are the ones I am concerned about and
I am glad to see this committee concerning itself with this. I don't
know what we can do about this legislatively but because you
had the foresight and sensitivity to bring it to the attention of
the Congress, I commend your subcommittee and all the people
who have testified here.

Mr. LEhAIN. My experience on the school board was that most
of the high school kids expelled were self-supporting and somehow
or another employed on a job they could keep. I know one time we had
expelled 15 kids on a cafeteria riot and each one of them brought his
boss down. The boss said he was a good worker.

Any expulsion for streaking yet?
Ms. JONES. Yes.
Mr. BENITEZ. Of great importance in taking this testimony is

the attempt to bring an awareness that school continue to be the
most important dimension of the future. I believe we have gone
through in the last 20 years a duplication in the meaning of schools.'
It has become fashionable to assume that there are many other
institutions which are more significant and I think unless we
reassess the decisive role in the building of a Nation on the building
of individuals of schools and rediscover teachers, what it means
to have this important task, we will be missing the basic essential
point.

The role of schools has to change in our modern society in order
for them to continue to be the leading force in the building of the
present and the future. I think this question of the pushout is prob-
ably one of the most criminal aspects of behavior as a society.
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With basic callousness you throw somebody out of school and stunt
the potential for that individual's development.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Thank you very much, and I am going to ask
unanimous consent to insert the testimony of Congressman Lehman
into the record.

[The document referred to follows.]
TESTIMONY OF lON. WILLIAM LEHMAN, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM

TIE STATE OF FLORIDA

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to have the opportunity to discuss the problems
of minority and even non-minority students who are pushed out of the _public
school programs by suspension or expulsion.

The Dade County, Florida, Public Schools (where I served as Chairman of the
School Board before coming to Congress) seem to have solved this entire
problem.

In Dade County, there are now very successful alternative school programs
for students who formerly would have been suspended or expelled from school.

If a student is suspended from his regular classroom for a period of less
than ten days, he will remain in school at an Alternative Center. There are such
centers in each of the sixty secondary schools in Dade County. The Center is
more than just a detention room. The student works to keep up with his regular
assignments, under the supervision of a teacher or teacher-aide.

If a student has been suspended from his regular classroom for more than ten
days, or if lie has been expelled, he is reassigned to a special school. Dade County
has two special schools or Opportunity Centers for both the Junior and Senior
High levels. At these Centers, students continue their education in a more flex-
ible setting and with special supervision. There is a strong emphasis on mean-
ingful vocational training. As one measure of the success of these Opportunity
Centers, the attendance rate is 85%.

Up through this year, a suspended or expelled student could elect not to
participate in the alternative school program. Beginning with the next school
year, attendance will be mandatory.

This should really mean the end of the "pushout" probelm in Dade County.
Suspension and expulsion, except for the most extreme cases such as a felony
charge, will be replaced totally by a program of student reassignment. Virtually
every child of student age in Dade County will remain in school and none will
be pushed out.

I would like at this point in the record to thank Mr. Eldridge F. Williams,
Director of the Office of Equal Education Opportunity for the Dade County
Public Schools. Mr. Williams has helped make the alternative school program
a success in Dade County and will be providing a copy of the Dade County
Alternative School Plan for inclusion in the record of these hearings.

NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION,
Washington, D.C.

BLACK STUDENTS, TEACHERS, PUSHED OUT OF PUBLIC EDUCATION, NEA SURVEY
SHOWS

WASHINGTON, D.C.-Alarmed over reports of thousands of black teachers and
students being harassed and hustled out of the public school system, officials
of the National Education Association are holding a series of meetings with
leaders of civil rights groups and government agencies to establish immediate
and long-range plans to help the massive educational push-out.

"The Martin Luther Kings and other leaders of tomorrow are not being
allowed to graduate," says Samuel B. Ethridge, NEA's assistant executive sec-
retary for teacher rights. He and Donald R. Shire, special assistant for the
Office of Teacher Rights, met this month in Atlanta, Ga., with Preston M. Roy-
ster, director of the U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare's
Displaced Teacher Program, and William C. Young, deputy, HEW's Division of
Equal Educational Opportunities, for a two-day evaluation and planning
meeting.
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"In that meeting we were told that between the 1967-68 and 1970-71 school

years more than 6,000 black educators had been displaced," Ethridge noted.
During the current school year, of the more than 1,870 educators who were
displaced, 909 were dismissed and the remainder were either demoted, assigned
out of field, or unsatisfactorily placed, according to a report submitted at the
Atlanta meeting by Associate Commissioner of EEO, Herman R. Goldberg.
The report also noted that "many desegregating school districts have initiated
the practice of hiring only token numbers of black educators, while the number
of white educators being employed increases."

The Conference on Displaced Students and Educators heard even more
shocking evidence of Illegal student suspensions, racial intimidation, physical
violence and even murder of students in an 1-state area in the South. A March
report of thousands of such incidents led the NEA's Council on Human Rela-
tions to demand an immediate nationwide Investigation. By April 17 fragmented
data from 238 of the 2,278 school districts In 11 Southern states Indicated that
there had been 19,441 student walk-outs, boycotts or demonstrations; 11,146
students had been suspended or expelled; more than 2,000 arrested; and 22,750
students in Mississippi alone put out of school.

Much of this data was from a survey of 20 per cent of the newspaper pub-
lished in Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, North
Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Virginia. This survey, con-
ducted by Leon Hall, field director of the School Desegregation Project of the
Southern Regional Council, Indicated that during the 1970-71 school year
hundreds of the nation's public schools resembled armed camps bristling with
guns, knives and firebombs. In addition to some 4,350 suspended and expelled
students, the Southern press reported nearly 100 fights ranging from "scuffles"
to riots involving up to 700 students and resulting in dozens being hospitalized.
At least a half-dozen children and adults lie dead. Eight bombs were exploded,
34 bomb threats reported, along with at least one cross-burning incident.
Vandalism, assaults, robbery, gunfire, sniping, flve, and closed schools in
response to tensions have made the learning of readin', writin', and 'rithmetic
low priority in many of the South's public schools, Hall reported.

"'Our report only scratched the surface of what's going on here," he told the
NEA this month." The truth is that the violence this year has more thar,
doubled according to press accounts, and thousands of our youth are in jail or
roaming the streets because they are prohibited from attending class, and not
able to find jobs because they cannot obtain their high school diplomas."

An overwhelming number of the "incidents" reported to NEA and gleaned
from Hall's survey were the result of racial clashes in recently desegregated-
schools. In some cases black students and parents protested the closing of
previously black schools which forced children into the hostile and sometimes
danwerous environment of formerly white schools. Many of the incidents followed
tim firing or demotion of black teachers, coaches and school administrators, or
the lack of representation on school boards, student government councils, sports
and social events. Tension was so high in some areas that at least 36 schools
were closed.

Nicholas von IIoffman, nationally known columnist for the Washington Post,
noted on April 17 that "Your average pushout ... is male ... 17 years old, and
has just started his senior year in high school. From all reports he tends to be
a leader, or just the kind of kid who we keel) saying can most benefit from
school. For that reason the National Education Association has sent out a
circular letter to college and university heads asking if there isn't some way
they can get these poor but promising students in their Institutions on some
kind of an early matriculation program."

Quoting Don Sutton, director of the Educational Resource Center, von Hoff-
man describes the "atmosphere of terror" In the Southern school system and
notes that "the whites are giving themselves the business at the same time...
they're destroying their own schools. And all of this, mind you, in the public
school system which was established to make nice, nonviolent, noncriminal,
pIettuial middle class pei)ple out of dangerous lower lasss ruffians."

Some of the typical Incidents reported by the Southern Regional Council are
as follows:

ALABAMA

In IHmtsville, Ala., the Jan. 28 Journal reported that police used mace, tear
gas and police dogs against 150 blacks during a melee that broke out at a basket-

:35-1Q21---74-35
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ball game. Even were arrested, 3 police injured and 10 students suspended and
threatened with arrest if they trespassed on school property. Riot police squads
were called to the Murphy High School in Mobile in March, according to the
Journal, where five students had been injured earlier following fighting which
had erupted over the playing of "Dixie" and display of the Confederate flag.
Racial fighting in Atmore elementary and high schools resulted in nine injured,
and the closing of schools, and in Birmingham white students boycotted the
school for two days alleging preferential treatment for blacks, and demanding
that "Dixie" be included in the school's anthem, and the Confederate flag be
used as the West End High School flag.

ARKANSAS

In Arkansas, some 1,200 black students at Eudora's junior and senior high
schools walked out protesting the firing of a black teacher, and black parents
kept their 500 children at home to protest the firing of a black basketball coach
and social science teacher at Walker High School in Wabbaseka, Ark. Some
200 students were suspended for their participation in the boycott, and a few
days later the superintendent expelled these students for the rest of the year,
the Arkansas Gazette reported on Oct. 20, 1970. Racial fighting, the suspesion
of 212 students, boycotts and bomb threats broke out in Texarkana High Sclool.
The Federal District Court ordered the reinstatement of 101 black students,
ruling they had been illegally dismissed. One day after the court's decision,
arsonists attempted to-burn down four black churches.

In Pulaski County, black parents boycotted the College Station Elementary
School to protest elimination of the upper three grades of the school, and to
protest the busing of black children but not white children. In Blytheville, 44
blacks were arrested for iiiarching nearly a formerly all-black high school.
When the school superintendent granted amnesty to the boycotters, a third of
the white students boycotted, charging special treatment for the blacks.

FLORIDA
Assaults, extortions, suspensions and shootings plagued the Florida schools

during 1970-1971. In Port St. Joe 500 black students stayed out of a newly
integrated school because their parents feared a "strong Klan influence,"
according to the Miami Herald. A 17-year-old Coconut Grove black youth was
shot fatally by police, touching off black-white skirmishes which left three
students injured. Racial violence erupted at the Suncoast High's north campus
when a black youth was arrested for refusing to leave a classroom. When 100
students left their classes to protest, police cleared the area with "billy clubs,
tear gas foggers and cattle prods," the Miami Herald reported last February.
A cross-burning incident at Fort Pierce Central High School sparked violence
resulting in injuries, tear gassing and arrets of 32 black students and 2 whites.

The executive director of Dade County's legal service program charged that
"school security guards consistently violate the legal rights of students and
particularly discriminate against blacks." He added that the guards arrest only
black participants in disturbances and do not inform the students of their legal
rights. The April 18 issue of the Miami Herald stated that more than 1,000 black
teachers have been deirted or dismissed in Florida in the past three years, and
quoted an American Federation of Teachers representative who charged that it
was "a system which finds it more important to hire security police to keep
kids in their place than to hire more teachers to help them learn."

GEORA
Georgia's Gov. Lester Maddox, calling public school officials "two-faced

cowards," urged parents to defy desegregation plans. Boycotts, bomb threats,
arrests, stabbings, suspensions and racial fights have since spread throughout
the state. In Dublin, Ga., according to "The Status of School Desegregation in
the South-1970," the report of a survey done by six civil rights organizations,
police used mace on children outside of the school building. Some 100 black
students were suspended, though no white suspensions were reported, and sohie
of the black students who attempted to return to school were arrested and
jailed. Police patrolled the school's halls.

The May 11, 1971, Atlanta Journal reported that a 43-year-old white Calhoun,
Ga., housewife, her husband and 24-year-old son beat up a 64-year-old black
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schoolteacher, charging that the teacher had spanked the parents' younger child
for chewing gum. In Columbus, the Macon Telegraph reported that same month,
white students walked out of Baker High School where classes were suspended
indefinitely. The students were angered by an administration decision to add
two black cheerleaders to the all-white eight-student squad. And in Butler, Ga.,
some 600 black pupils boycotted Taylor County schools after only white bus
drivers were permitted to carry female white students.

LOUISIANA

Picketing, arrests, high rates of absenteeism, and racial brawls were reported
throughout Louisiana. Police used tear gas to break up fighting among 600
students at an integrated high school in Bogalusa, and six blacks were arrested,
according to the New York Times. Some 200 white pupils at Francis T. Nicholls
High School in New Orleans boycotted classes In a counter-protest to black
demands that the school, named after a Confederate general, change its name
and discontinue playing "Dixie." Police patrolled the halls of Abramson High
School following racial violence which broke out in April of last year.

MISSISSIPPI

The same pattern of suspension, arrests, bomb threats and boycotts was seen
In Mississippi. At Moss Point, 34 students were arrested in a racial fight, and
black students charged they were losing their identity at the integrated school,
alleging unfairness in competition for school honors and cancellation of social
events. At Provine High School in Jackson, a racial brawl resulted in-one child
.being hospitalized, and other students receiving minor cuts and bruises. Police
confiscated switch blade knives and pieces of pipe and steel rods. "Three blacks
were arrested after they were pointed out by whites. No whites were charged,"
.the Jackson Daily News reported. In Coffeeville, Miss., 1,100 black students
boycotted schools to protest a desegregation plan which segregates by sex.
Some 120 blacks were arrested and jailed.

A report, based on statistics supplied by the Mississippi Superintendents of
Education and covering 80 per cent of the student population, shows that at
least 22,675 children were reported out of school, with an adjusted figure of

-closer to 28,447. Of that latter figure, 16,814 are nonwhite, 3,721 did not state
their race. The Mississippi State Department of Education, which provides the
more conservative figure of 18,766 dropouts in the state during 197f-71, reports
that 6,479 are missing for "reasons unknown," 3,176 "dislike school experience,"
2,152 left for "other known-reasons," but of the 19 reasons listed as causes for
dropping out, not one refers to racial hostility or discrimination. The report does
note that 34 oLthese children had "poor pupil-staff relations," and another 31
had "poor relations to fellow pupils."

NORTH CAROLINA

North Carolina news sources r-ported at least 64 schools torn by bomb
threats, suspensions, fires, racial violence, and one death. Riot-trained highway
patrolmen cruised through Wilmington, and a leader of the North Carolina-
Virginia Commission for Racial Justice charged "the mayor and the city council
with conspiracy in setting up the -black community for annihilation." Black

' leaders accused police of murdering an unarmed youth. The Atlanta Inquirer
reported that students had armed themselves following a bomb threat on a
church in which they had met to discuss the racial tension in Wilmington, and
after Klansmen had cruised through the area shooting at the church. In July,
1971, the Norfolk Virginian-Pilot reported that two Pinkerton guards hired
to protect Willston Junior High School were shot to death but "police declined
to speculate on a racial motive in the slayings."

The North Carolina Good Neighbor Council reported that almost half of the
state's racial incidents during 1970 were in schools. At least 15 schools were

closed between September and December due to racial incidents, school dis-
ruptions stemming from busines complaints, assaults, black resentment over
the playing of "Dixie," and lack of representation on school governing boards.

SOUTH CAROLINA

In South Carolina the playing of "Dixie" and display of the Confederate flag
.on schoo grounds and at athletic events resulted in dozens of boycotts, demon-
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strations, bomb threats and physical violence.'The Greenville State reported
that white parents smashed windows of newly integrated Berea High School
following demands from black students for police protection and a ban on
"Dixie." A black senior at Aiken High complained: "When two schools merge
and whites keep their mascots and songs and the black man loses his, it's as if
the black man is being marched over, stepped on again by the white man. That's
what we're upset about." Black students were arrested and at least one hos-
pitalized following a demonstration protesting the hiring of a white athletic
coach rather than promoting a black assistant coach. Some 200 students, most of
them black, were suspended, six teachers were injured, and the school super-
intendent suffered a broken rib during the disturbance.

TENNESSEE
A 20-year-old black youth was shot to death at all-black Hamilton High

School in Memphis, Tenn., another state plagued with fires, bombings, student
suspensions and vandalism. School officials arrested 85 students at Hamilton
for carrying weapons. Gunfire erupted at a Nashville campus over an athletic
event, and at another school in that city a 15-year-old hallway monitor was
shot in the leg. Police and state troopers were called out at Riverside High
School in Chattanooga following a rock-throwing incident, and in Selmer the
FBI was asked to investigate racial disturbances and a boycott by 75 black
students at Central High School.

TOXA8

In Texas, 200 black students walked out when election ballots were counted
in the absence of black election committee members, and four black basketball
players were suspended despite the principal's earlier pledge not to discipline
those who walked out. Nearly two dozen students were later expelled, many of
whom left their homes to live with relatives in other school districts in order to
continue their education. At Furr Junior-Senior High School in Houston, the
Jackson Daily News reported, 15 white dropouts entered the school and attacked
a black student.

VIRGINIA

More than 4,900 suspensions were administered during the last school year
in the Norfolk School District, according to a July 2 report in the Norfolk
Virginian-Pilot. The figures would indicate that between 5 and 10 per cent of
the school population had been "disciplined." The chief of Virginia's NAACP
legal staff noted that black students throughout the state had been arbitrarily
suspended on "trivial grounds," and Richmond's vice mayor reported that in
the past year Virginia's black principals had been reduced from "about 100 to
10" as they were demoted to junior high positions following desegregation. The
Richmond News-Leader reported that five Richmond parents were arrested by
police for violation of the state's compulsory school law. Some 2,500 missing
pupils in the school system were believed being kept out of school by their
parents, the article noted.

The U.S. Government, acting through the EEO's Operational Program for
Displaced Educators and Students, noted in January that their 1972-73 objec-
tives included: discontinuance of the current practice of displacing minority
educators when schools are in the process of desegregation; returning displaced
teachers to their former positions or finding new positions in education for them;
persuading desegregating school systems to reestablish the practice of recruiting
and hiring minority educators on an equitable basis; and assessing the magni-
tude and determining solutions to the problem created by desegregating schools
where they improperly place minority students in special education classes.
The report stated that the Division of Educator and Student Rights would
work closely with the NEA at national and regional levels to assure represen-
tation of minority educators at all levels, and to prevent displacement of these
educators.

In the meantime, Ethridge has called on major college and university presi-
dents to meet "the educational needs of. .. students-immediate and long-range.
We call upon you and your institution to help save the future hope of America.'"
Ethridge asked the higher education leaders for evidence of grants and aid or
loan programs, and "college personnel and students willing to experiment in
some kind of outreach program developed to assist displaced students in meeting
requirements for high school graduation."



531
1971 SURVEY OF MINORITY EXPULSION IN 2,831 DISTRICTS

(Reprinted by NEA Teacher Rights based on Office of Civil Rights, HEW
statistics)

The following question was asked-on-the district- summary form for the
first time in fall 1971: "During the previous school year, how many pupils [by
race/ethnic group] were officially expelled from any school in this system?"

Nationally, less than half the districts surveyed in 1971 said they expelled
any students during the 1970-71 school year: 1227 districts, districts, of the
2831 districts surveyed, reported expelling a total of 21-thousand students, or
two out of every thousand students in school in those districts.

In those same districts as a whole, the expulsion rate for minority students
was twice that of non-minority students, and for black students, three times
that of non-minority students.

Omaha expelled the greatest number of minority students, 1091, and propor-
tionately, their expulsion rate for minority students (8%) was four times
greater than their rate for non-minority students (2%).

One hundred eighty-two districts expelled ten or more minority students.
Together, these districts accounted for 78% of the 11-thousand minority stu-
dents reported as expelled.

Thirty-two of the 182 districts had equal or near-equal expulsion rates for
minority and non-minority students. The rest, except for three districts, had
variously disproportionated expulsion rates favoring non-minority students.

The m minority epul8ion rate tvas: Double the non-minority rate in 31 districts;
Triple the non-minority rate in 26 districts; Quadruple the non-minority rate in
16 districts; Five to ten times the non-minority rate in 49 districts; and,
Greater than ten times the non-minority rate in 25 districts.

On the following four pages, 91 of the 182 districts are listed for special
attention because they showed the most minority expulsion in terms of amount
and/or severity. The 91 districts are divided into six sub-lists. The sub-lists
are presented in what we consider to be their order of importance, considering
both the number of minority students expelled and the severity or disproportion
of expulsion for minority students versus non-minority students. Together,
these 91 districts account for two-thirds of the 11-thousand total minority
students reported as expelled.

Following the 91 districts are two concluding sections:
Three Districts Reporting Disproportionate Expulsion of Non-minority

Students.
Expulsions in 20 Districts Containing the Largest Minority Enrollments.

NINETY-ONE DISTRICTS REPORTING MOST MINORITY EXPULSION

Fifteen districts expelled more than 100 minority students. In eight of those
districts, the minority expulsion rate was double or more than double the non-
minority expulsion rate. The eight districts were: (NOTE: The expulsion rates
are the percent columns under A and B.)

A B C D
Minority Nonminority
expelled expelled Non-

Percent Percent Minority minority
Parish Number of C Number of D total total

Vernon Parish, La ............................... 163 13.5 146 1.9 1,209 7,655
St. Martin Parish, Le ............................ 644 16. 1 245 4.5 4,002 5,440
Omaha, Nebr ................................... 1,091 8.0 1,040 2.1 13,579 50,352
Jefferson Parish, La ............................. 181 1.2 173 .3 14,743 50,671
Mobile, Al1 ..................................... 104 .3 18 .1 31,045 35,548
East Baton Rouge Parish, La ...................... 130 .5 100 .3 26,040 39,866
Charleston County, S.C .......................... 126 .5 60 .2 27, 284 29,338Memphis, Tenn ................................. 120 .2 36 .1 78,661 67,242
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Fifteen other districts expelled from 50 to 99 minority students. In fourteen

of those districts, the minority expulsion rate was double or more than double.
the non-minority expulsion rate. The fourteen districts were:

A B C D
Minority Nonminority
expelled expelled Non-

Percent Percent Minorit minority
Parish Number of C Number of D totil total'

Bloom Township High, III ........................ 60 3.6 10 0.3 1,677 2, 995
Lafayette Parish, La ............................. 80 1. 1 30 . 1 7, 150 21, 488:Texarkana, Tex ................................. 71 3.7 35 .7 1,920 4,818
Oklahoma City, Okla ............................. 70 .4 41 . 1 9, 570 49,571Suwannee County, Fia ........................... 74 6.4 72 2.3 1, 162 3,086
Saginaw Mich ........................... 57 .6 24 .2 9,871 12,400,Corpus Christi, Tex ........................ 67 .3 18 . 1 26,370 19, 530
Flint, Mich ..................................... 60 .3 18 . 1 20,086 25,424
Poughkepsie, N.Y .............................. 78 4.0 61 1.8 1,959 3,345
Niagara Falls, N.Y ............................... 92 2.8 241 1.7 3,316 13,842
ORden, Utah .................................... 59 2.3 164 1. 2 2,581 13,559Galveston, Tex .................................. 70 .9 16 .4 7,944 4,569Kansas City, Kans ............................... 70 .6 73 .3 12,540 21,684Indianapolist Ind ................................ 50 . 1 25 .0 38,992 63,334

Forty-five districts expelled from 25 to 49 m' ority students. The minority ex-
pulsion rate was double or more than double th, ),on-minority rate in thirty-seven
of those districts. Twenty-seven districts had a minority expulsion rate that was
/our or more time greater than the non-minority rate. Here are those districts:

A B C D
Minority Nonminority

expelled expelled Non.
Percent Percent Minority minorityParish No. of C No. of D total total

Wichita, Kans ................................... 45 0.4 7 0.0 11,007 48,861
Benton Harbor, Mich ............................ 35 .5 0 .0 6,554 4,407Florence County No. 1,$.C ...................... 27 .5 2 .0 5,983 8,462
Forrest City, Ark ................................ 27 .8 1 .0 3,466 2,343St. James Parish La .............. ...... 32 .9 1 .0 3,384 2,017Franklin Parish, Ia.....------------------- 33 1. 1 4 . 1 3,006 3,557
Pine Bluff, Ark .........--- 38 1.0 6 . 1 3,857 4,727Rochester N.Y .................................. 42 .2 5 .0 18,076 26,076Richland County No. 1, S.C ....................... 39 .2 4 .0 20,220 17, 499
Charlotte-Mock, N.C ............................. 29 . 1 4 .0 26, 116 54,926
Denve,, Colo .................................. 25 .1 5 .0 37,663 57,177
Dw. Eisenhower HSD, III ......................... 35 2.7 18 .3 1,290 5,951New Hanover County, N.C ........................ 40 .7 10 . 1 5, 519 13,891
Chester County, S.C ........................ 28 .7 2 . 1 4,185 3.969W. Orange Cove, Tex ............................ 39 1.8 14 .3 2,133 5,023Temple,Tox .................................... 30 1.2 9 .2 2,541 5,036
St. Mary Parish, La .............................. 33 .6 13 1 5,885 10,140
Sumter County No. 17, S.C ....................... 32 .6 7 .1 *, 482 5,372
Livingston Parish, La ............................ 32 2.2 37 .4 1,468 9, 174

- Proviso Township High, III ....................... 27 2.2 26 .4 1, 202 7,284York County No. 3 SC ...................... 45 1.1 13 .2 4,158 8,483
Grand Rapids, Midh ......... 47 .5 14 .1 9,226 25,030Peoria, III ..................................... 29 .5 11 .. 1 5,409 20,001
Toledo, Ohio .................................... 33 .2 ,19 .0 19, 166 43,580
Hallettsville, Tex ................................ 28 12.5 23 2.9 224 785Rapides Parish, La .............................. 38 .4 18 . 1 9,972 18,425Marion County, Fla .............................. 26 .4 13 . 1 6, 133 12, 450

One hundred seven districts expelled from 10 to 24 minority students. The
minority P.pulsion rate was double or more than double the non-minority raite
in eighty-eight of those districts. Seventeen districts had a minority expulsion
rate that was greater than ten time the non-minority rate. Here are those
districts :
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A B C D
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent Percent Minority
No. of C No. o1 D totalParish

Non.
minority

total

Fayette County, Ky .............................. 15 0.2 0 0.0 6,513 29, 599
Garden Grove, Calif .............................. 10 . 1 1 .0 6,959 45, 024
Ontario 8, Oreg ................................. 10 1. 7 1 .0 598 2,344
Barrow Count), Ga .............................. 11 1.2 1 .0 901 3. 319
Acadia Parish, La ............................... 11 .4 1 .0 2,899 9.019
Rockford, Il ......... ................... 15 .3 2 .0 1,915 36, 218
Nacogdoches Tex ............................... 14 .8 0 .0 1.706 2,934
Dublin City, Ga ................................. 18 1.1 1 .0 1,652 2,216
Pomona Unif., Calif .............................. 15 .2 1 .0 8,871 13,272
Shaker Heights, Ohio ............................ 14 .7 2 .0- 2,010 5, 320
York, Pa ...... ......................... 12 .5 2 .0 2.491 6.539
Bowling Green, Ky......................... 13 1.6 5 . 1 834 4, 716
Normandy, Mo .................................. 11 .3 0 .0 3,504 5, 516
Pulaski County Spec., Ark ........................ 15 .3 4 .0 5,251 21,696
Ozark City, Ala ................................. 12 1.4 5 . 1 836 3,725
Ponder County, N.C ............................. 16 .6 1 .0 2, 566 2,032
Fairfield City, Ala ............................... 16 1.0 0 .0 1.677 1,233

Forty-seven, of the 182 districts expelling ten or more minority students,
expelled at least 1% of their total minority students. The preceding lists of dis-
tricts Include 26 of these districts. The remaining 21 districts are listed below
in descending order of their percent of all minority students expelled:

A B C D
NonminorityMinority expelled expelled Non-

Percent Percent Minority minority
Parish No. of C No. of D total toter

Sargent, Colo ................................... 158 100.0 268 100.0 158-- 261
eoton County, Miss ............................ 118 9.8 71 10.8 1,199 658

Essex County, Vocational, N.J ..................... 75 6.2 58 6.5 1,219 887
Norphlet, Ark ................................... 11 6.1 13 3.1 180 423
Carthage, Ark ..... ....................... 11 5.6 1 1.0 198 101
Chandler High No. 202, Ariz ...................... 22 4.9 23 1.8 452 1,264
Citrus County, Fla ............................... 19 3.3 100 2.7 576 3,691
ProvidenceR.1 ................................. 149 2.7 332 1.8 5,597 18,554
St. Anne Community High, III ..................... 11 2.5 0 .0 438 211
N. Sacramento Elementary, Calif .................. 35 2.1 53 1.4 1,691 3, 733
Tooele County, Utah ............................. 18 1.9 65 1. 1 944 5,988
Romulus Community, Mich ....................... 19 1.8 58 1.1 1,028 5, 271
Upson County, Go... ....................... 20 1.8 24 1. 6 1, 135 1, 526
Barnwell County No. 45, S.C................... 16 1.7 6 .5 949 1,187
Huntsville, Tex ................................. 23 1.6 8 .4 1,479 2,177
San Augustine, Tx .............................. 12 1.6 8 1.0 771 794
Camden County, Ga ............................. 18 1.4 8 .4 1,305 1,936
Ecorse, Mich .................................... 31 1.3 21 1. 2 2,357 1,729
Iredell County, N.C .............................. 24 1.2 19 .2 1,962 8,415
Idabel, Okla .................................... 10 1.2 9 .6 837 1,402
Putnam County, Ga .............................. 15 1.1 3 .4 1,403 672

For the record: In addition to 25 previously-listed districts, the following four
additional districts expelled more than 50 minority students:

A B C D
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent Percent Minority Nonminority
Parish No. of C No. of D total total

Baltimore Md .................... 956 0.7 319 0.5 129,993 60,742
Dayton, Ohio ........................ 190 .8 248 .8 23,693 31,348
Louisville, Ky ..................... 113 .5 124 .5 24,654 25,786
New Orleans, La .................... ill .1 33 .1 79,110 28,323.
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THREE DISTRICTS REPORTING DISPROPORTIONATE EXPULSION OF NON-MINORITY

STUDENTS

Three districts, of the 182 districts expelling ten or more minority students,
had disproportionate expulsion rates favoring minority students. Gary, Indiana
reported expelling 12% of its 11-thousand non-minority students, but only 0.1%
of its 34,622 minority students: 1,300 non-minority students were expelled and
39 minority students:

Long Beach, California and Petersburg, Virginia had an expulsion rate for
non-minority students that was double the rate for minority students. Long
Beach expelled too non-minority students (02%) and 17 minority students
(0.1%). Petersburg expelled 8 non-minority students (0.4%) and 11 minority
students (0.2%).
EXPULSIONS IN TIlE TOP TWENTY CITIES (DISTRICTS CONTAINING THE LARGEST

MINORITY ENROLLMENTS)

Expulsions were generally non-existent or low in the Top Twenty cities where
the greatest number of minority students are enrolled (equalling 34% of all
minority students surveyed in 1971). Eleven of these districts reported no students
expelled, minority or non-minority, and eight of the remaining nine districts
had equal or near-equal expulsion rates for minority and non-minority students.
(However, one district, Baltimore, reported expelling the second highest number

of minority students in the country.) Memphis' minority expulsion rate was
double the non-minority rate. Here are the Top Twenty districts, listed in order
of their minority enrollment totals:

A B C D
Minority expelled Nonminority expelled

Percent Percent Minority Nonminority
Parish No. of C No. of D total total

New York City ...................... 0 0.0 0 0.0 727, 297 424, 418
Chicago ............................ 0 .0 0 .0 383,601 185.321
Los Angeles ........................ 36 .0 9 .0 324,634 309,504
Detroit ............................. 0 .0 0 .0 189,024 94, 105
Philadelphia ........................ 0 .0 0 .0 176,856 96,602District of Columbia ................. 1 .0 0" .0 135,977 5,450
Baltimore .......................... 956 . 7 319 .5 129,993 60,742
Houston ............................ 0 .0 0 .0 123,994 107,587
Miami ............................. 13 .0 4 .0 119,110 125,712
Cleveland .......................... 0 .0 0 .0 88, 742 60, 112
New Orleans ....................... 1!I .1 33 .1 79,110 28,323
Mem is ........................... 120 .2 36 .1- 78.661 67, 242
St. Louis ........................... 0 .0 0 .0 73,601 34,385
Dallas ............................. 0 .0 0 .0 73,410 85,782
Atlanta ............................ 24 .0 1 .0 72,474 27,698Newark --------------------------- 38 .1 8 .1 69,841 9,820
San Antonio ....................... 0 .0 0 .0 58,941 16,014
San Francisco ....................... 1 .0 0 .0 55,241 28,343
Oakland ................ .......... 0 .0 0 .0 46,371 15,617Milwaukee ......................... 0 .0 0 .0 42,497 89,318
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EXPULSION AND SUSPENSIONS. 1972-73, BY RACIAL/ETHNIC GROUP CITIES WITH MORE THAN 25,000 BLACK

PUPILS, DISTRICTS RESPONDING TO HEW-OCR AS OF MAY 17, 1974

City/school district (region) Blacks Percent White Percent Total

Broward ...................Number suspended ..........................Percent suspension rate ...............
Dade County .................................Number suspended .........................Percent suspension rate ......................
Mobile .........................................

Number suspended ..........................Percent suspension rate ......................
Dallas .......................... ..........Number suspension .......... ..........Percent suspension rate ......................
East Baton Rouge ...............................Number suspended ..........................

Percent suspension rate ......................
Duval County ...................................Number suspended .........................

Percent suspension rate ......................
Indianapolis ....................................

Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ......................

Pittsburgh ...................................
Number suspended ........................Percent suspension rate ......................

Detroit. ........................................Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ......................

Buffalo ..................................
Number suspended ....................Percent suspSion rate ......................

Prince Georges County ..........................
Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ...............

Houston .................................
Number suspended ......................
Percent suspension rate ......................

Boston .........................................
Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ... ...........

Cleveland .........................
Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ......................

Richmond ......................................
Number suspended ..... : ....................
Percent suspension rate ................

Cincinnati ................................
Number suspended ..........................Percent suspension rate ...............

Charleston ..............................
Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate..: ...................

Washington D.C .................................
Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ......................

Memphis .......................................
Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ......................

Kansas City ........................
Number suspended. ................
Percent suspension rate ..................

Atlanta ........................................
Number suspended ..........................
Percent suspension rate ......................

30,019 22
2,065 50

6.9 ............
64,573 26
3,634 53

5.6 ............
29,887 46
1,253 64

4.2 ............
62,763 41
6 324 63id.0 ............

25,904 39
4,144 60

16.0 ............
36,843 60
6,641 52

18.0 ........
37,963 41.4
4,642 60.3

12.2 ............
28,978 42.4
5,699 60

19.7 ............
184,975 70.1

5,560 87
3 0 ............

25,013 42. 5
1,236 57
4.8........

43,919 28
4,438 43

10.1 ............
89,329 4
5,179 57
5.8........

31,963 34.1
1,919 47

5.8 ............
79,027 57.4
8, 058 69

10.2 ............30,015 73
2,606 84

8.7 ............
35. 539 49

1.882 57
5.3 ............

26,790 49
2, 329 55
.8.7........

129,249 96
2,623 99

2.0 ............
81,425 68
6,555 70

8.0 ............
34,677 56
1,726 55

5.0 ............
71,786 81

3.348 79
18.8 ............

10,255 76
2,025 49

2.0 ........
112,077 46

2,237 33
2.0 ............

35,222 54
704 34
2.0 ............72,688 47

3,423 34
4.7 ............

40,527 61
2,761 40

6.8 ............
74, 480 67
6,177 48

8.3 ............
53,292 58
3,042 40

5.7 ............
39,147 57
3,884 41

9.9 ............
73, 759 28

785 123
1.1 ............

32,527 54
893 41
2.7

107,667 ...... 705,842 57
5.4 4 .... ..

87,776 41
2,G37 29
3.0 ............

53,593 57.2
2,049 50.1

3.8 ....
54,783 40
3,401 29

6.2 ............
10, 799 26

495 16
4.6 ............

37,025 51
1,395 43

3.8 ............
27,666 5
1,927 45

6.7 ............
4,332 3.2

13 .5
.3 ............

37,847 32
2,074 22

5.8 ............
25,155 41
1,319 42

5.2 ............
15,997 18

869 21
5.4 ............

135,003
4, 120

3.1
244,395

6,812
2.8

65, 184
1,957

3.0
153,549
10,549

6.9
67,011
6,919

10.3
111,458
12,819

11.5
91,714

7,697
8.4

68,414
9,586

14.0
263,958

6,396
2.4

60,752
2,179

3.6
154,498

10,333
6.7

216,982
9,151

4.2
93,647
4,090

4.4
137, 572
11,634

8. 540,960
3,103

7.6
72,958
3,277

4.5
54,635
4,272

7.8
135, 079

2,639
2.0

119,512
9,339

7.8
62, 096
3, 141

5.1
88. 125
4,227

4.8



EXPULSIONS AND SUSPENSIONS, 1972-73, BY RACIALEThNIC GROUP--CITIES WITH MORE THAN 25,000 BLACK PUPILS, BY REGION

American Asian Spanish
City/schooldistrict(region) Indian Percent Black Pencent American Percent surnamed Percent Others Percent Total

Boston, Maine (Northest):
Tot(A (VIA) ......................................................... Is 0.1 31,963 34.1 1.954 2.1 6,052 6.S 53593 57.2 93,647Expelled (V IlIA) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Suspended (Vio) ................................................... 4 .1 1,919 47 12 .3 106 2.6 2.049 50.1 4,090

New York. N.Y. (Northeast):Total(VIA) ------------------------------------------------------- 446 .04 404.289 36.6 21 928 2 296,261 27 380.706 34.4 1,105,632
Expelled (VIIA) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Ss en ded, (V.IIB) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- "

Buffalo. N.Y. (Northeast).:Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 511 .84 25,813 42.S 71 .11 1,830 3 32,527 54 60,752Expelled (VIIA) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Suspended (VI18) ................................................... 7 .32 1,236 57 ------------------- 43 2 893 41 2,179Pittsburgh, Pa. (Northeast):%
Total (VIA) ......................................................... 7 .01 28,978 42.4 165 .24 117 .2 39,147 57 68,414Expelled (VIIA)-------------------------------------------------------- 2---------------------------------------------------------------------- 2 

Philadelphia, P (Northeast): 0 0 699 60 2 .02 1 .01 3,884 41 9,586 C
Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- S 0 173, 874 61. 4 0 0 9,550 3.4 99,541 35.2 282, 965
E xp elle d (V IIA ) . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . .. .Ss pe de ( I 1 ) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------.: ":

Newark. N.J. (Northeast):Total(VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 21 0 56,736 72.3 116 .1 11,981 15.3 9.638 12.3 78,492Expelle (V . A) ---------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------- --------------- --------------- ---------------
San Francisco, Calif. (West):

Total(VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 249 .3 25,055 30.6 19,088 23.3 11,511 14 26,067 318 81,970Expelledd ((VIIA)- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------Eupeed (VII) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Suspended (vIIe)..................................................................................".................."". .. "...........
Oakland, Calif. (W est): ... 1 1.. . . . . . . .

Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 6 22 1 39,121 60 3,966 6. 5,412 8. 3 16.048 24.6 65,189
Expelled (VIIA) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Los Angeles, Calif. (West):
Total (VIA)------------------------------------------------- 1,347 .2 156,680 2L 2 21.220 3.4 148,109 23.9 293,303 47.3 620,659
Expelled (V--A)............................................................................................................................
Suspended (VIIB)...............................................................................................................--------------------------

Compton, Calif. (Wet):
Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 60 .2 32,612 87.1 88 .2 3.878 10.4 823 2.2 37,461
Expeled (VIIA) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Suspended (VI IS) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Columbus, Ohio (Northeast):
Total (V(IIA) ----------------------------------------------- 29 .02 31.201 It 259 .2i 106 .1 70,747 69.2 102,26
Exe.. . . . . . . .. 0 0 7 78 0 0 0 0 2 22 9
Speed (VHS)-----&---------------------Suspended (VIIB) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cincinnati. Ohio (Northeast):
Total(VIA) --------------------------------------------- 8....... 4 .06 35,539 49 247 .33 99 .13 37,025 51 72,958
Expelled (VIIA) ------------------------------------------------ 0 0 20 62.5 0 0 0 0 12 .32 32
Suspended (VII) ------)-------------------------------------------- 0 0 1882 7 0 0 0 0 1.395 43 3,277

Detroit.Mich. (Northeast): k
Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 253 --------- 184,975 70.1 553 .2 4.418 2 73,759 28 263,958
Expelled (VIIA) ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------- 3 .04 5,560 87 2 .03 46 .71 785 12.3 6,396
Ind 3n , Id (North oe st):

Total (VIA) ---------------------------------------------------- -- 39 .04 37.963 4L 4 172 .2 248 .3 53,292 58 91,714
Expelled (VIIA) ------------------------------------------------ 0 0 79 86 0 0 0 0 13 14 92
Suspmded (VIB) ---------------------------------------------- 0 0 4,642 60.3 1 .01 12 .2 3,042 40 7,697

Clev3atnd. Ohio (Northeast): 137,572
Total(VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 349 0.3 79,027 57.4 307 .22 3,106 .3 54,783 40
Expellec (VIIA) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Suspended (VIB) ----------------------------------------- 1s .2 8,058 6 5 .04 151 1.3 3401 29 11.634

Chica Il. (Northeast):
Total(VIA) ----------------.--------------------------------------- 1,028 .2 312,188 52 5,152 1 63,084 12 157,913 29 539,365
Ezpeiled (V I IA).------------------------w--------------------------------- w------------------------ -------------------------------------------------------
Suspended (VIIB) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 0

Gary Ind. (Northeast):
VTotallA) -.--------------------------------------------- 29 .06 31,303 72 59 .13 3,281 8 8, 680 20 43,312 -4
Expelled (.V I A) ---------------. ..------------------------------- 0 0 48 84 0 0 5 9 4 7 57
Suspended.(V ) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SL Louis, Mo. (Border):
Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------- 54 .1 72,629 is 9 0 2 .2 32.632 30.9 105,617
Expelled (VIIA) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

nijM r ' P:(-------------------------w-------- 215 .34 34,677 56 118 .2 1,931 3.1 25,155 41 62,096
Expelled (VIIA) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------------------
Suspended (VI 1)--------------------------------------------- 13 .41 1,726 55 3 .1 80 2.5 1,319 42 3,141

Louisville,' Ky. (Border):
Total (VIA) -------------------------------------------------- 17 0 25,078 51 15 0 12 0 24.011 48.9 49,133
Expelled (VIIA)------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ;-------------------------------------
Suspended (VI S) ------ w----------------------------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------

Prince Georges County. Md. (Border):
Total (VIA) ------------------.----------------------------------- 189 .12 43,919 28 1,598 1 1.125 1 107,667 70 154,498
Expelled (VIIA) ---------------------------------------------------- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Suspended (VIB) -------------------------------------------------- 2 .01 4,438 43 13 .12 38 .4 5,842 57 10,333



EXPULSIONS AND SUSPENSIONS, 1972-73, BY RACIAL/ETHNIC GROUP-CITIES WITH MORE THAN 25,030 BLACK PUPILS, BY REGION--Continued

American Asian Spanish
City/school district(region) Indian Percent Black Percent American Percent surnamed Percent Others Percent Total

Baltimore. Md (Border):Total(VIA) ------------------------------------------ ---------------- 0 0 129,250 69.3 0 0 0 0 57,350 30.7 186,600
Expelled (VItA) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Suspended 0 /118) -------------- -------------- ------------- -------------- -------------- ------------- -------------- -------------- ------------- -------------- -------------

Washington, D.C. (Border):Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 20 .01 129,249 96 641 .04 837 .61 4,332 3.2 135,079
Expelled (VIIA) --------------------------------------------------- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Suspended (VIlB) -------------------------------------------------- 0 0 2,623 99 0 0 3 .11 13 .5 2,639

New Orleans, La. (Southeast):
Total (VIA) --------------------------------------------------------- 37 0 77,504 74.6 141 .1 1,622 1.6 24,535 23.6 103,833
Expelled (VIIA) ................................................................................................................................................................Suspended 0/11 B) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Memis, Tenn. (Southeast):
Ita (VIA) ........................................................- 19 .01 81,425 68 175 .14 46 .03 37.847 32 119,512

Expelled --IIA)..................................................................................................................................................................
Suspended (VIS) .................................................. 1 .01 6,555 70 1 .01 2 .02 2, 074 22 9,339

Dallas. Tex. (Southeast):Total(VIA) ......................................................... 516 .33 62,763 41 382 .24 17,200 11 72, b88 47 153,549
Expelled (VIIA) .................................................... 0 0 37 88 0 0 2 4.8 3 7.1 42Suspended (VIIB) .................................................. 13 .12 6,324 63 2 .01 1.085 11 3,423 34 10,048

Broward County, Fla. (Southeast):
Total (VIA) ...................................................... 150 .11 30,019 22 227 .2 2,452 2 102,155 76 135,003
Expelled (VI I A) .................................................... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Suspended (VI18) ................................................. 6 .14 2,065 50 0 0 24 .6 2,025 49 4,120

Dade County, Fla. (Southeast):Total (VIA) ......................................................... 189 .1 64,573 26 698 .3 66, 858 27 112.077 46 .44,395
Expelled (VIIA) .................................................... 0 0 115 85 0 0 6 4.4 14 10 135Suspended (VIIB) .................................................. 1 .01 3,634 53 1 .01 939 14 2, 237 33 6,812Birmingham, Ala. (Southeast):
Total (VIA) ......................................................... 7 0 34,290 59.4 31 .1 29 ..1 23,372 40.5 57,729
Expelled (VIIA)-.......................................................----..........................................................................................................
Suspended (VII B) .................................................................................................................................................................

Mobile, Ala. (Southeast): o
Total (VIA) ........................................................ 12 .01 29,887 46 18 .02 45 .06 35,222 54 65,184Expelled (VIIA) .................................................... 0 0 3 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 3Suspended (VII B) .................................................. 0 0 1,253 64 0 0 0 0 704 36 1,957



Chaleston, S.C. (Southeast):Total(VIA) -------------------------------------------------------- 58 .1 26,790 49 162 .3 159 .3 27,666 51 54.63Expelled (VIIA) ..................................................... 0 0 53 52 8 0 3 3 46 45 102Suspended (VIIB)-------------------------3 . 2,329 55 2 .04 11 .3 1927 45 4.272
Houston, Tex. (Southeast): 3 " ...........................

Total (VIA) ..............................- 207 .1 89,329 41 832 .4 38,838 18 87,716 41 216,.9ZExpelled (VIIA) ............. .. "......................... 18 87 77 41 216 W
SupneO ..... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Suspended (ViB) : ------------------------------------------- 0 0 5,179 57 11 .12 1,324 15 2,637 29 9.151Atianta, GA. (Southeast): "..................

Total (iA)--------- -------------------------------------- 10 .0 7.81 10 5 1 203 1.98 8,2ox~ (.)........."..'::""::":..... 0 1 100 0 0 0 0n 0 0 1
Suspended (VIIB)-......................-0 

0 3,348Mecklenbur County, N.C. (Southeast): 0 0.. . . . . 7 0 0 10 .23 969 21 4,227
Total (VIA) ----------------------------------------- ----------- 151 .2 25,821 32.4 46 . 166 .2 53,629 67.2 79.813Expelled (VItA)-------------------------------------------------
Suspended (VII B) --... .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .

Richmond, Va. (Southeast): .................................................................
Total (VIA) -------------------------------------------------------- 31 .1 30,015 73 77 .2 38 .1 10,799 26 40,960Expelled (VIIA) 0 0 17 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 '17
SPshnded (othaB) : 2 .1 2,606 84 0 0 0 0 495 16 3,103Caddo Parish, La. (Southeast):
Total (VIA) .......................... &-. .-....- 9 .01 25,776 52 33 1 137 3 24.099 48 50.054E x p e lle d ( V I A ) . .. .. . ... . ... . .. . 3 .4.0 9 9 4 8 "" ", 0 5 4
Suspended (VII B) ..... _ ---------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------

J a c k s o n v ille , O u v a l C o u n ty , F la . ( S o u th e a s t) : ------------------.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total (VIA)-- - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- 3.0
Expelled (VIIA)-34 .03 36,843 33 60 1 41 .03 74.480 67 111,458Expeled .......... " ......................................

Susened(VI I ) ------ ........................................ 0 0 20 69 0 0 0 0 9 31 29Suspended (VII B)------------------------------.................... 0 0 6,641 52 1 0 0 0 6.177 48 12, 819
East Baton Rouge, La. (Southeast):

Total (VIA) ------------------------------------------------ 173 .3 25,904 39 97 .14 310 .5 40,527 61 67,011Expelled (VIIA) ............................................ 0 0 277 65 0 0 0 0 148 35 425suspended (VIB)-----------------"------------------------ 1 .01 4,144 60 1 .01 12 .2 2,761 40 6,919
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Mrs. Crsnior. I want to thank everyone for attending these hear-
ings and everybody who testified. We have gotten further insight and
depth into this situation.

[Information received for inclusion in the record:]
LANIER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION,

Lakeland, Ga., May 28, 1974.
Representative AUGUSTUS F. HAWKINS,
Chairman, House R-b-Committee on Equal Opportunity Education and Labor,

House Office Building, Washington, D.C.
DEAR REPRESENTATIVE HAWKINS: On Thursday, May 23, 1974, in The Atlanta

Constitution, the Lanier County School System was cited as being guilty of
"pushing out" black students in the face of school desegregation efforts. The
article (page 2-A) entitled "5 Georgia Counties Seen 'Pushing Out' Black Pupils"
stated that in Lanier County Schools (black enrollment of 38 percent) 76 percent
of those expelled and 82 percent of those suspended were black. After reviewing
the article we immediately began to make efforts to have the erroneous news
report retracted. School desegregation efforts in Lanier County have been very
successful and the school are not guilty of ."pushing out" black pupils.

On October , 1973, the Lanier County School System filed its Fall 1973 Ele-
mentary and Secondary School Civil Rights Survey with the U.S. Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare Office for Civil Rights. In compiling the
individual school campus information for Form OS/CR 101 School System Sum-
mary Report, an error was made. The incorrect report stated that there had
been a total of 17 pupils expelled and 32 pupils suspended. The error was dis.
covered on February 4, 1974. and corrections were made in the Office of Civil-
Rights. The correct information is as follows:
Number of pupils expelled during the previous school year:

American Indian ------------------------------------------- 0
Black --------------------------------------------------- 0
Spanish surnamed individuals ---------------------------------
Other individuals ------------------------------------------ 0

Total - ---------------------------------------- 0

Number of pupils suspended at least once during the previous school year:
American Indian ------------------------------------------- 0
Black -------------------------------------------------- 12
Spanish surnamed individuals --------------------------------- 1
Other individuals ------------------------------------------ 4

Total ------------------------------------------------- 17

The preceding information shows that no pupils were expelled. Of the pupils
suspended the percentages were as follows: 6% Spanish Surnamed American,
70% Black. and 24% Other. Although there were 12 incidents where black pupils
were suspended, actually only 8 pupils were expelled. Some pupils were expelled
more than one time. This would reduce the percentage of black pupils expelled
to 47. Of the 12 expulsions made, 6 were made by a black principal.

We wanted you to be aware that the report concerning Lanier County wact
erroneous. Evidently, the information was obtained from Lanier County's School
System Summary Report before corrections were made. The reporter from The
Atlanta Constitution has assured us that a retraction would be made.

Sincerely,
RICHARD B. YOUNo,

Superintendent.
The meeting stands adjourned.
[Whereupon at 12:25 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, subject to.

call of the Chair.]
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